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Wing Lung Bank, founded in 1933, is among the oldest local
Chinese banks in Hong Kong. The Bank has at all times
followed its motto of “Progress with prudence, service with
sincerity” in providing personalised and sincere service to

customers.

The Chinese name of the Bank means “Perpetual
Prosperity”. Originally established as an indigenous Chinese
bank, Wing Lung Bank developed and expanded as Hong
Kong underwent a remarkable economic transformation after
the War. The Bank has since established itself as one with
contemporary outlook and comprehensive services, catering
to the needs of the business community and playing a part in

the generally vibrant economy of Hong Kong.

China Merchants Bank successfully took over Wing Lung
Bank in 2008. Wing Lung Bank has since become a member
of China Merchants Bank Group.

China Merchants Bank was incorporated in Shenzhen in
1987 as the first share-holding commercial bank wholly
owned by corporate legal entities in China. After more than
two decades of effort, China Merchants Bank, now listed
in Shanghai, China and Hong Kong, has transitioned itself
into a leading national commercial bank with total assets
exceeding RMB2,000 billion, operating over 700 banking
business outlets and having a total staff of over 40,000 by
the end of December 2009.

China Merchants Bank and Wing Lung Bank will step up
efforts in business integration and complement each other.
Through the synergy from the merger, both banks will be
able to offer a wider range of quality products and services

to customers.
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Corporate Information

#wHR Chairman

B T 2 Dr MA Weihua, PrD

HFEHR Vice-Chairman

ROGHE Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PhD

wH Director

2= Mr LI Hao, MB4

K Mr ZHU Qi, MSc

WA Dr XU Zhihong, PhD

0 S e Mr KWOK Kin Hung, BSocSc

LI Dr ZHENG Xianbing, PhD

FFHE Dr XU Shiqing, piD

e Dr WU Po Him Philip, B4, MBA, PhD, DBA(Hon), FHKIB, BBS, JP
* 08 T G *Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, GBS, LLD(Hon), BA, JP
*BRUL ST *Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MBA, JP
* R *Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP
* s A TEF * Independent Non-executive Director

& Secretary

KA Ms CHU Hon Yee Iva, BA(Hons), MCG, ACIS, ACS

BHERE Management Committee

KB (EM) Mr ZHU Qi, Mse (Chairman)
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K i Mr ZHU Qi, Mse
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MRt T Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MBA, JP
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PROGHE (L) Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PiD (Chairman)

LI Dr ZHENG Xianbing, PhD

[N Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP

FEutE R E LR & Audit and Risk Management Committee

2= (£ Mr LI Hao, MB4 (Chairman)
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Dr XU Zhihong, PhD

Mr KWOK Kin Hung, BSocSc
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Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM
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Assistant General Manager
Ms NG Chi Mei Christine, BSc, ACA

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MBA, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS
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Mr CHAN Yick Yiu, BBA, MSc
Mr ZHANG Kexin, MBA

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited



6

i R Y v

HHEE

— ULV RE R B B > AR
TSR o B AR MRAT A RA R ([
FERAT)) SATHE S - TRk EH AT
RNV DN SN TR ¥ e
EERZREEZE - —JLILILE— AN
AR ERAT » AT RIEFRATE - o
Al A —JLLLAE LA ~ 0 0 =4F LA
KO OLF+— HRIFAT IR E 15 4
RARA R EHBR - B EH AN ERE
ARAFAEHRE MBS EHARA
AEHREE WA 00 4FE-E HIESE
WHEREBRAREDSR - 55 00 /FT
HREZRAE/ARITERR o [FRHEE P
1] (e8] 5 s ) R b A K T L
TRl PReMEGHEHESE - F
BAT e m g S S -
YIS R B2 8% R L & ey S R AL
TURER U HE R BLAE i AR R AR
E -

R -

A#EHE

— LN AR ROR B AE R R AR 2 »
— JU/\ N AF 75 bR B 40 i B A L B
i1 > O O O 4F-J4 VG 7 HA 48 K B2 56 o 22
BT = SRR - — O O LA
HAEYEAT 48 B SRAT AT E R TR &
ZOONFETHRERTAARITRIES
12 o [A] REYEAT o [ 4 Al B2 6 s TS B 5 -
FEREGMEBTR TR - RREMEERS S
Al € R K 3 B B ) e o A L
BE®E - _OO_MFENAZE_-00L
AR R RRITITR . —00k
FLHE O OJFEL AT IR B I
FERARARRESER L =0 O /NIF =
AHEZOONWFLAEHBREMEESR
RARIHEER -

AKBESRATA IR R 0 O JUFEAEHR

R E M B RS R

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr MA Weihua, D

Chairman

Graduated with a doctorate degree in Economics in 1999 and is a senior
economist. He is currently an Executive Director, the President and the
Chief Executive Officer of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (“CMB”). He
is also currently a National Committee Member of the Eleventh Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He has been the President
and the Chief Executive Officer of CMB since he joined CMB in January
1999. He has been the Chairman of the boards of CMB International
Capital Corporation Limited, CIGNA & CMC Life Insurance Company
Limited and China Merchants Fund Management Company Limited since
September 1999, September 2003 and November 2007 respectively, and
a Director of China Merchants Group Limited since July 2002. He has
been appointed the Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He is
also the Vice-Chairman of China Chamber of International Commerce,
Executive Deputy Chairman of China Enterprise Directors Association,
and a Member of the Standing Council of China Society for Finance and
Banking and of the Standing Council of the Eighth Council of Red Cross
Society of China and a Director of Shenzhen Soft Science Development
Foundation and a part-time professor at numerous higher educational
institutions including Peking University and Tsinghua University.

Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PnD

Vice-Chairman

Graduated from the Department of Economics of Jilin University in
1983, and obtained a master degree in Economics from Jilin University
in 1986. In 2000, he obtained a doctorate degree in Economics from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics and is a senior
economist. He has been the Executive Director and an Executive Vice-
President of CMB since April 2007. He has also been appointed the
Vice-Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He has been a Member
of the Standing Council of China Society for Finance and Banking,
Deputy Chairman of both Guangdong Society for Finance and Banking
and Guangdong Commerce Association respectively. He has been the
Member of the Fifth Committee of China Council for the Promotion
of International Trade. From September 2002 to April 2007, he served
as the Chief Executive Officer of Guangdong Development Bank. He
had been the Vice-Chairman of the board of CMB International Capital
Corporation Limited from July 2007 to July 2009 and the Chairman of
the board of CMB Financial Leasing Company Limited from March 2008
to July 2009.
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Mr LI Hao, mB4

Non-executive Director

Graduated with a master degree in Business Administration in 2000
and is a senior accountant. He has been an Executive Vice-President of
CMB since January 2002, and concurrently the Chief Financial Officer
of CMB and an Executive Director of CMB since March 2007 and June
2007, respectively. He has also been appointed a Director of the Bank
since October 2008. He had been the Executive Assistant President of
the head office of CMB and subsequently an Executive Vice-President of
CMB since 1997 and was previously the General Manager of Shanghai
Branch of CMB from April 2000 to March 2002.

Mr ZHU Qi, Mse

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Graduated with a bachelor degree and a master degree in Economics
from the Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics in 1982 and
1986 respectively. Mr ZHU has over 23 years of banking experience.
He joined CMB in August 2008, and has been appointed the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Bank since September
2008 and October 2008 respectively. He sits on the board of all principal
subsidiary companies of the Bank and Great Eagle Holdings Limited.
He has also been an Executive Vice-President of CMB since November
2008. He had been the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and Chairman
of Chinese Mercantile Bank from 2000 to July 2008.

Dr XU Zhihong, PhD

Executive Director & General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive
Graduated from Accounting Department of Anhui University of Finance
& Economics in 1984, and obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from University of Oklahoma in 1990. He also obtained
a doctorate degree in Accounting from Renmin University of China in
1994. He joined the Bank in 2010, and has been appointed the Executive
Director and General Manager of the Bank since February 2010. He is
also a Director of all principal subsidiary companies of the Bank. He has
over 20 years’ management experience in banking business.

Mr KWOK Kin Hung, BSocSc

Executive Director & General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive
Joined the Bank in 2008 as Chief Operating Officer. He has been
appointed the Executive Director of the Bank since November 2009 and
has been appointed the General Manager of the Bank since January 2010.
He is also a Director of all principal subsidiary companies of the Bank
and Bank Consortium Holding Limited. Holds the degree of Bachelor
of Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and has over 20
years’ management experience in banking business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr ZHENG Xianbing, pPiD

Non-executive Director

Graduated with a doctorate degree in Economics from the Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics in 1989. He has been appointed the
General Manager of Ningbo Branch of CMB since February 2010. He
had been the General Manager of the Investment Banking Department of
the head office of CMB from 2007 to January 2010 and has concurrently
been the Director of CMB International Capital Corporation Limited,
CIGNA & CMC Life Insurance Company Limited and CMB Financial
Leasing Company Limited respectively since 2002, 2003 and 2008. He
has been appointed a Director of the Bank since October 2008 and sits
on the board of the principal subsidiary companies of the Bank. He had
been a lecturer, an associate professor and a deputy dean of the Finance
Department of Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics from
July 1986 to June 1993. He served as the Deputy General Manager of the
Trust and Investment Department (in charge of the daily management),
Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Development
Department (in charge of the daily management), and General Manager
of Organisation Management Department of the head office of CMB,
Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Branch of CMB, General Manager
of Research Department of CMB and the team leader of the listing team
of CMB, General Manager of CMB International Capital Corporation
Limited, Chairman of the board of Shenzhen New Jiangnan Investment
Company Limited and Finance Office Executive of CMB since July
1993.

Dr XU Shiqing, pPiD

Non-executive Director

Graduated from the Department of Mathematics of Tianjin University
in 1983, and obtained a master degree in Economics from Nanjing
University in July 1990. He also obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from University of Missouri in USA in September
1990, and obtained a doctorate degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern California in August 2000. He had held a teaching
position in the Department of Mathematics of Nanjing University and
worked in the Economic Planning Commission of Jiangsu Province.
He has been the General Manager of the Strategy and Development
Department and the Overseas Development Department of CMB since
August 2006. He has been appointed a Director of the Bank since
October 2008 and sits on the board of the principal subsidiary companies
of the Bank. He held various positions such as an Executive Assistant in
the General Office, Deputy General Manager of International Business
Department, Deputy General Manager of Offshore Business Department,
General Manager of Funds Custodian Department, and General Manager
of Planning and Financial Department of the head office of CMB and
Assistant General Manager of Fuzhou Branch of CMB from 1993 to
2006.
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Dr WU Po Him Philip, B4, MBA, PhD, DBA(Hon), FHKIB, BBS, JP
Non-executive Director

Joined the Bank in 1975. Elected an Executive Director since 1982,
appointed Chief Executive Officer from 2005 to 2008, and appointed
Non-executive Director since October 2008. He sits on the board of Wu
Jieh Yee Company Limited and The Hong Kong Academy For Gifted
Education Limited. Member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal and
Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings. He is the
Chairman of the Lord Wilson Heritage Trust and the Sir Edward Youde
Memorial Fund.

Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, GBS, LLD(Hon), BA, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank since 2002. Executive Deputy
Chairman of Television Broadcasts Limited and Deputy Chairman of
Transport International Holdings Limited. He is the Pro-Chancellor of
City University of Hong Kong and a Member of the Advisory Committee
on Post-office Employment for Former Chief Executives and Politically
Appointed Officials.

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MB4, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited since 2003. Also
an Independent Non-executive Director of Wah Ha Realty Company
Limited. He is a stock broker and the Chairman of Soo Pei Shao
& Company Limited, Member of the Committee of the SAHK and
Chairman of the English Major Advisory Council of Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank in 2007. Executive Director and
President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. An Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business
community, he also serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China. He is also a former
member of the Legislative Council and Executive Council of the Hong
Kong SAR. In addition, he holds directorship in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited,
City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited and
Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms NG Suk Ying, DMED, FCIB, FHKIB

Deputy General Manager

Joined the Bank in 1968 and appointed Assistant General Manager in
2006. Appointed Deputy General Manager in 2010. Member of the board
of Wing Lung Credit Limited, Wing Lung Property Management Limited,
Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited, Wing Lung Bank (Nominees)
Limited, Wing Lung Bank Foundation Limited, Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited, Joint Electronic Teller Services Limited, JETCO
Systems Limited, and i-Tech Solutions Limited, and Alternate Director
of Bank Consortium Holding Limited. Honorary Secretary of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers and Executive Committee Member of the
Chinese Bank’s Association Limited.

Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Financial Officer

Certified Public Accountant. Joined the Bank in 1991 and appointed
Assistant General Manager in 2007. Appointed Chief Financial Officer
in 2010. Member of the board of Sea Wing Investments Limited.

Mr WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Chief Information Officer

Joined the Bank in 2009 as Assistant General Manager. Appointed
Chief Information Officer in 2010. Chairman of Wing Lung Information
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and member of the board of Hongnet
Limited.

Ms NG Chi Mei Christine, BSc, 4C4

Assistant General Manager

Chartered Accountant. Joined the Bank in 1989. Appointed Assistant
General Manager in 1998. Member of the board of Wing Lung Insurance
Company Limited, Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited, Wing Lung
Agency Limited and Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited.

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MB4, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS
Assistant General Manager
Joined the Bank in 1981. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2010.

Mr TANG Yiu Leung, BSocSc, EMBA

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank in 1994. Appointed Assistant General Manager in
2010. Alternate Director of Joint Electronic Teller Services Limited and
JETCO Systems Limited.

Mr CHAN Yick Yiu, BB4, MSc
Assistant General Manager
Joined the Bank in 2009. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2010.

Mr ZHANG Kexin, MBA
Assistant General Manager
Joined the Bank in 2010 as Assistant General Manager.
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Chairman's Statement

K6 R % HER

MA Weihua Chairman

2009 was the first full year for Wing Lung Bank (the “Bank”) to attain
five-year integration goal after becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Merchants Bank (“CMB”). Confronted by sweeping global
financial crisis and uncertain external and internal economic outlooks,
the Bank actively fulfilled the requirements of the regulatory authorities,
overcame various unfavourable factors, put forward relevant reform and
innovation, and steadily advanced the integration with CMB, thereby
maintaining a positive development trend as a whole.

At the end of 2009, the consolidated total assets of the Bank amounted
to HK$117.3 billion, up 16.6% from the beginning of the year. Total
deposits grew by 10.9% over the beginning of the year to HK$92.3
billion, while total advances to customers rose by 21.6% over the
beginning of the year to HK$52.9 billion. Non-performing loan ratio and
capital adequacy ratio were 0.8% and 16.2% respectively. The Bank has
achieved a turnaround with profit after taxation amounted to HK$884
million.

In 2009, the Bank’s business development demonstrated the following
features. Firstly, the Bank’s profitability grew noticeable. Net interest
income amounted to HK$1,332 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 4.3%. Our non-interest income (excluding insurance business)
increased significantly from last year to HK$899 million. Return on
average assets and return on average equity were 0.81% and 8.11%
respectively. Secondly, the asset to liability ratio remained sound.
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Average liquidity ratio for the year amounted to 55% representing an
increase of 3.3 percentage points from 2008. At the end of the year, loan
to deposit ratio grew by 5.0 percentage points from the end of 2008 to
55.5%. Thirdly, the Bank’s market share expanded significantly.
Annual growth rates in total assets and total loans were higher than
the average level of our peers in Hong Kong. The Bank’s subsidiaries,
including Wing Lung Securities Limited and Wing Lung Insurance
Company Limited, achieved breakthroughs in the business development.

2009 was a challenging year for the Board of Directors of the Bank.
During the year, the Board held four meetings while its specialised
committees conveyed 5 meetings, in which 32 proposals had been
considered and approved, and various major decisions were made.
These efforts supported the operations of the management. In particular,
the Board achieved remarkable results in the integration with CMB,
the improvement in corporate governance and the enhancement of
management level.

As regards the integration with CMB, the Bank strived to put forward
customer referral and resources sharing between two banks, leverage
the advantages of internal and external linkage, and build an integrated
cross-border financial service platform. During 2009, coordinated
businesses grew rapidly, and signs of synergies emerged. The Bank
closely cooperated with CMB in various fields such as accepting
guarantee from domestic enterprises as security for loans granted to
overseas enterprises, accepting guarantee from overseas enterprises as
security for loans granted to domestic enterprises, syndicated loans,
international settlement, financial market trading, foreign exchange
trading, account opening witnessed by CMB manager, centralised
procurement, swapping of credit card merchant discount, etc. The Bank
and CMB jointly launched innovative services, namely China-Hong
Kong Express Link, cross-border Renminbi trade settlement transactions,
receiving bank for IPO, Renminbi non-deliverable forward contracts and
online appointment for cross-border account opening, which received
customer recognition. The Bank and CMB further enhanced the sense
of identity, crisis, responsibility and mission through close interaction,
communication and mutual learning, thereby showing initial success in
cultural integration.

To strengthen corporate governance, the Bank has restructured
the Board of Directors, under which the Strategy Committee, the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee as well as the Audit and Risk
Management Committee were set up with well-defined duties. The
restructuring help improve operation authorisation assignment, and
ensure proper delegation of authority to the management and relevant
departments. The Bank has also devised methods for appraising the
management, in the hope of achieving co-development of efficient,
quality and scale through establishing a scientific incentive and
restrictive mechanism.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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Chairman's Statement

To enhance management capability, the Bank has reshuffled its
internal organisational structure to be in line with the operation of
the management of modern commercial bank as well as business
development needs. The Bank realised separating of the front office,
middle office and back office, thereby strengthening its overall risk
control capacity and risk alert system. Besides, the Bank also worked
with CMB to put forward the implementation of the New Basel Capital
Accord and the consolidated supervision. The Bank continued to upgrade
its IT system and endeavoured to enhance the quality of the customer
services, especially the comprehensive internet banking service. In
addition, the Bank also set up three new branches, and replaced the
original logo with new logo, thus enhancing the brand image.

The above achievements were attributable to the dedicated service
of all our staff and the strong support from all our customers, fellow
bankers and the public. On behalf of the Bank, I would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all our friends for their
continuous support.

2010 will be a critical year for the Bank to expedite the integration
with CMB and maintain sustainable development. Entering into the
post financial crisis era, coupled with the global and local economic
uncertainties, the Bank will face considerable operating pressure. The
persistent improvement in local and mainland economic conditions,
active cross-border investment and consumption as well as the close
cooperation with CMB will bring new development opportunities to
the Bank. Under the new situation, the Bank will further strengthen its
corporate governance, integration with CMB and capability in critical
areas, so as to enhance management level and profitability.

We have confident that we can excel in 2010. The Bank will offer quality
service and achieve better results so as to meet the expectations of the
public. We sincerely look forward to continued strong support from the
public in the years ahead.

Ma Weihua
Chairman

12 April 2010



L

WA

 fEn

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer’s o
Statement




16

1T BB R E ]

OO DI R B EE ) —AF o
TERIREA G T ET » AibEER
(B B8 — 2= B B WAC A > B 2R A
HIEHER S > BB EFEREHE > FBK
7 IE 12 A 4 i fE M B gl e e o

T OO > L REEET

BREC AT IR 55 = 45 B U J Y g w%
I H KBS R T # tE B  RA B MR BOUR
HHGARFRRKREES > FEEEEMG
Yo O O JUAF R AR > A BREC ) i
e > (HEMRMAREMREZE - HHEW
JE PR SR R ZANE N R
T RERBESFEA > FHFBRER

WETLFHE LS %%Fﬁt%ﬂ
Lo NEHER N EIRZE W28 -

BRI K R SRE
1EHE
OO JUFEARTT E E B RAT (T4

111) RS TAE %ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ?
BH > Hih 7] 200 B - 2 B HE TR D B AR B9
SER > BT A T SR R AR P LA
RPN FR AL

AKBESRATA IR R 0 O JUFEAEHR

Chief Executive Officer's Statement

The year of 2009 was a challenging year. Although Hong Kong’s Gross
Domestic Product contracted severely in the first quarter of 2009 amid
the global financial crisis, it recorded an obvious improvement in the
second quarter and resumed year-on-year growth in the fourth quarter.
Hong Kong economy is gradually moving out of the financial crisis.

In early 2009, global economy remained in doldrums in the wake
of the sweeping financial tsunami. With the introduction of massive
fiscal and monetary stimulus by governments and central banks, the
global economy was awash with liquidity, thus relieving the stress of
credit market. In the second half of 2009, the global economy seemed
to be stable, but was still complicated and changeable. Given its open
economy, Hong Kong is affected by the global economic environment.
The influx of capital has fuelled stock and property market rally.
Employment situation and domestic consumption continued to improve.
Meanwhile, inflation has started to take shape. Against the gradually
improving environment, the Hong Kong banking industry regained its
footing.

In 2009, the Bank focused on its integration with China Merchants Bank
(“CMB”). Coordinated business gradually started, and sign of synergies
emerged. Consequently, a better-than-expected performance was
achieved. Smooth handover and transition is realised after the completion
of acquisition of the Bank’s shares by CMB.
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The Group recorded a consolidated profit after tax of HK$884 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009. Net interest income amounted
to HK$1,332 million, representing an increase of 4.3% from the same
period of last year. Loan-to-deposit ratio was 55.5%, which is higher than
2008’s 50.5%. In view of low interest rate environment, the significant
increase in loan amount offset the impact of low interest rates. Net fees
and commission income amounted to HK$382 million, representing
an increase of 11.2% from the same period of last year, which was
mainly contributed by the growth in commission income from securities
brokerage given active stock market. The insurance business achieved
a turnaround from a net expense in 2008 to a net income of HK$5.05
million (before taking investment gains into account), mainly due to
the decrease of 23% in the claims for insurance. Moreover, the Group’s
impairment charge for credit losses was HK$78 million, representing a
decrease of 89.6% from that of 2008, which was mainly attributable to
substantial provisions for certain debt securities investment made in 2008
amidst the financial tsunami. Operating expenses amounted to HK$1,152
million, an increase of 10% as compared to that of 2008. Of the total,
staff cost went up by HK$48.13 million, mainly due to the increase in
number of employees and retirement benefit cost. Besides, depreciation
expenses also increased by HK$20.8 million.

In July 2009, the Bank entered into a repurchase agreement with 15
other distributing banks and the regulatory bodies under which each
bank would offer to repurchase the Lehman Brothers Minibonds from
eligible customers. During 2008 and 2009, the Bank has made full
provisions of HK$213 million for the Lehman Brothers Minibonds
repurchased from the eligible customers and the other charges under
the repurchase scheme. The repurchase of Lehman Brothers Minibonds
progressed smoothly. Most of the eligible customers accepted the offers
of the repurchase scheme. The value of the Lehman Brothers Minibonds
repurchased by the Bank is not recognised in the account due to
uncertainties over the ultimate value of the said minibonds.

At the end of 2009, total assets and net assets of the Group increased by
16.6% and 9.6% to HK$117.3 billion and HK$11.4 billion respectively
when compared to the end of 2008. As at 31 December 2009, the capital
adequacy ratio and core capital adequacy ratio of the Group were 16.2%
and 9.9% respectively, and the average liquidity ratio for 2009 was 55%,
all above statutory requirements. To enlarge its capital base for future
business growth, the Bank issued subordinated notes totaling HK$3,000
million (including subordinated notes of HK$1,500 million issued to
CMB) in 2009.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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Deposits

As at 31 December 2009, total deposits of the Group grew by 10.9% to
HK$92.3 billion as compared with that at the end of 2008.

Among the various kinds of deposits, Hong Kong Dollar deposits
increased by HK$6,451 million or 11.9%, of which time deposits
recorded the strongest growth; the US Dollar deposits after conversion
decreased by HK$1,438 million or 10.7%; and deposits in other foreign
currencies after being translated into Hong Kong Dollar surged by
HKS$4,091 million or 26.1%, among which Renminbi deposits after
translation rose substantially by HK$774 million or 74.2%.

The Bank will continue to provide customers with quality deposit
service as well as other related services, and further enhance cross
selling capacity. Besides close cooperation with CMB, the Bank will
make every effort to promote “Account Opening Witnessed by CMB
Manager” service, aiming at widening customer base. Moreover, online
appointment for account opening function has been launched so as to
provide more convenient service to CMB customers.
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As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s total advances to customers,
including trade bills, grew by 21.6% to HKS$52.9 billion as compared
with that at the end of 2008. Overall loan quality remained sound with a
non-performing loan ratio of only 0.80%.

With respect to corporate banking business, total loans amounted to
HK$22.0 billion at the end of 2009, an increase of 43.2% over that at
the end of 2008. In 2009, the Bank devoted much effort to expanding its
syndicated loans, corporate loans to large enterprises in both China and
Hong Kong as well as business in accepting guarantee from domestic
enterprises as security for loans granted to overseas enterprise, and the
results were remarkable. The Bank will further enhance its cooperation
with CMB and leverage on the advantages of provision of cross-border
financial service.

As to commercial banking business, the balance of loans amounted to
HK$872 million at the end of 2009, representing an increase of 68.8%
as compared to that at the end of 2008. Given sluggish foreign trading
environment, the small and medium sized enterprises appear to be on
a slow path of recovery. The Bank will proactively secure more small
and medium sized corporate clients, and recommend the government-
launched “Special Loan Guarantee Scheme” to its existing and new
customers. It is expected that the Bank is able to grow its customer
franchise and achieve loan balance growth through close collaboration
and mutual sharing of customers with CMB.

With respect to mortgage and personal loan business, total loans
(including all branches) amounted to HK$25.0 billion at the end of
2009, representing an increase of 5.1% from year-end 2008. Of the
total, residential mortgage loan balance amounted to HK$9,429 million,
representing a decrease of 1.3% as compared with that at the end of
2008, which was mainly due to customers’ early redemption of loans.
In view of the robust property market, much emphasis will be put on
residential mortgage business. The Bank will offer more competitive
mortgage terms in line with market so as to enlarge its market share
amid keen competition environment.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s debt securities investment balance
amounted to HK$28.9 billion, representing an increase of 167.7% over
that at the end of 2008. The increment was mainly attributable to the
purchase of several tranches of high quality bonds during the reporting
period in order to increase interest income. At the end of 2009, an
impairment of HK$116 million was made for the debt securities. More
than 82.7% of such debt securities are rated A3 or above and their risks
are comparatively low.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

For the year 2009, revenue from foreign exchange trading amounted to
HK$71.64 million, representing a decrease of 21.2% as compared to last
year. The continuously weakness of US Dollar caused foreign exchange
trading to shrink, suppressing foreign exchange revenue and related
earnings. Supported by robust economic growth in China and influx of
foreign currencies, revenue from foreign money exchange amounted to
HK$37.82 million, representing a sharp increase of 40.8% over 2008.

To expand its revenue avenues, the Bank has introduced “Renminbi Non-
Deliverable Forward Contracts”. The Bank has established “Corporate
Desk” to acquire corporate clients, thus expanding its clientele. The
Bank will closely cooperate with CMB so as to seek more business
opportunities. In addition, the Bank will also strengthen its risk
capabilities and strictly monitor the market risk involved.

The Group’s wealth management business realised a revenue of
HK$28.64 million in 2009, representing a decrease of 42.2% as compared
to 2008. The decrease was primarily attributable to the sales suspension
of certain relatively higher risk products. Moreover, investors’ prudent
view towards the market also dampened revenue generation.

The Bank has focused on developing its wealth management service
branded “Sunflower”, providing a comprehensive service platform to
high-end customers, thus achieving brand and service integration with
CMB. To cater for variety of individual investment objectives and risk
parameters, the Bank is committed to diversifying its wealth management
products. The Bank will also continue to step up sales force training
and product analysis so as to provide customer with professional wealth
management service, thereby enhancing corporate image.

The Bank issued more than 240,000 credit
cards as at 31 December 2009, down
3.5% from 2008 year-end. The credit card
receivables amounted to HK$423 million,
down 10.2% as compared to the 2008 year-
end level. The Bank has adopted a prudent

credit card approval policy, resulting in
Mast@ contraction in the total number of credit cards
issued and the receivables. The merchant
business turnover was HK$2,316 million, up
20% as compared to the year 2008.
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Following the launch of the world’s first diamond credit card “Luxe Visa
Infinite”, the Bank issued the first “World MasterCard for Business” in
the Greater China, aiming at attracting high-end customers. The Bank
will strengthen the close collaboration with CMB for sharing more
mutual promotion programs from merchants, allowing cardholders of
two banks to enjoy favourable offers. Meanwhile, the Bank will continue
to launch various spending reward programs and merchant offers to
customers, thus enhancing the appeal of products. To provide customers
with diversified products, the Bank is now studying on the launch of
dual currency card.

Supported by the continuous influx of capital, the local stock market
recorded a considerable growth in 2009, evidencing an active market. In
2009, Wing Lung Securities Limited (“Wing Lung Securities”) realised
a commission income of HK$235 million, representing an increase of
24.5% as compared to that of 2008, and achieved a growth in market
share.

In 2009, Wing Lung Securities launched various privilege offers in order
to boost customer transactions. Continuous effort has been placed on
expanding distribution network for larger market share. New securities
centres were set up in China Hong Kong City Branch, Mei Foo Sun
Chuen Branch, Shatin Branch and Des Voeux Road West Branch in 2009.
Wing Lung Securities will continue to launch promotion campaigns and
enhance its service channels so as to expand customer base and improve
profit.

Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited (“Wing Lung Insurance”)
realised a gross premium income of HK$604 million in 2009,
representing a decrease of 9.2% as compared with that of 2008. Total
insurance claims amounted to HK$403 million, a substantial decrease of
23% as compared to that of 2008. Underwriting business recorded a loss
of HK$45.67 million, indicating a remarkable improvement as compared
to a loss of HK$131 million in 2008. Investment income also recorded a
good growth.

In 2009, Wing Lung Insurance revised its strategy, emphasising more
on profit growth rather than market share expansion. The Company also
enhanced its risk management, thereby achieving a breakthrough in its
business. Wing Lung Insurance will work closely and interact proactively
with CMB in order to further expand insurance business.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Branch network

The original logo was replaced with CMB’s logo in all branches in
May 2009. The Bank proactively expanded its branch and distribution
network. In 2009, the Bank achieved target of setting up three additional
branches, namely Des Voeux Road West Branch, China Hong Kong City
flagship branch and Mei Foo Sun Chuen Branch. The Bank has a total of
39 banking offices, including headquarter and branches in Hong Kong at
present.

Currently, the Bank has 2 branches, a sub-branch and a representative
office in the PRC, and two overseas branches, one in Los Angeles and
the other in Cayman Islands.

The preparation work for the set up of Macao Branch as well as the
upgrade of Guangzhou representative office is in progress.

Information technology

After acquisition by CMB, the Bank has revised its objective, focusing
on customer centric service and providing unique cross-border service.
To facilitate the new business strategies and goals, Information
Technology Department has completed several system enhancement
and business support projects. The Department has already started the
upgrade of IT infrastructure and the hardware of the host was enhanced
in 2009.

Human resources
As at 31 December 2009, the total number of employees is 1,711 (31

December 2008: 1,680), of which 1,592 are in Hong Kong, 104 are in
the PRC and 15 are overseas.
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In order to upgrade the skills and overall competitiveness of its staff
for further development, Training and Service Quality Department has
been actively organising seminars related to the Bank’s businesses and
new products or services. Specialised training sessions on new products
and services related to wealth management, insurance, MPF, trust and
remittances, training sessions on selling techniques and seminars on
operational knowledge are regularly arranged for frontline staff. The
Department also organises training courses jointly with peer banks for
those staff who possess MPF intermediary, estate agent, securities and
futures intermediary or insurance intermediary qualifications in order to
maintain their respective professional qualifications through continuing
learning.

In view of the unprecedented monetary and fiscal stimulus packages
introduced by governments and central banks around the world, excess
liquidity is likely to persist with rising risk of inflation and asset market
bubbles during 2010. Besides, the impact of the unwinding of fiscal and
monetary stimulus on the global economy is unpredictable. Confronted
by uncertain economic outlook, the operating environment continues to
be challenging for the banking sector. The Bank will stay alert to the
ever-changing operating environment, and devote efforts to strengthening
its risk capabilities, enhancing cost control measures and improving
resources allocation. Being a member of the CMB group, the Bank has
strong parental support and much room for further development. The
Bank will strive to realise synergy effects through further integration and
collaboration with CMB. Moreover, the Bank will also cooperate with
CMB to build a cross-border financial service platform, so as to enhance
competitive edge and boost overall profit growth.

ZHU Qi
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

12 April 2010
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.
Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2008
interim dividend: HK$0.5 per ordinary share, 2008 final dividend: Nil)
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s reserves are set
out in note 39 to the financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$5,166,000 (2008: HK$399,000).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s other properties
and equipment are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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In 2009, the Bank issued 2 callable subordinated floating rate notes and
1 callable subordinated fixed rate notes (the “Notes”) at par totaling
HK$3,000,000,000, which are qualified as supplementary capital of the
Bank. The HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note will mature
on 14 July 2019 with an optional redemption date falling on 15 July
2014; the HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note will mature
on 22 September 2019 with an optional redemption date falling on 23
September 2014; the HK$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
will mature on 28 December 2021 with an optional redemption date
falling on 28 December 2016. The net proceeds from the notes will be
used for the general funding purposes of the Bank. Details of the Notes
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The directors during the year and up to the date of the financial
statements are as follows:

Dr MA Weihua (Chairman)

Dr ZHANG Guanghua (Vice-Chairman)

Mr LI Hao

Mr ZHU Qi* (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr XU Zhihong* (appointed as Executive Director on
5 February 2010)
(appointed as Executive Director on

12 November 2009)

Mr KWOK Kin Hung”

Dr ZHENG Xianbing
Dr XU Shiqing

Mr CHUNG Che Shum? (resigned on 1 February 2010)
Dr WU Po Him Philip

Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman!

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln'

Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard'

# Executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any
other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ interests in contracts

The Bank rents from Wings Investment Company Limited certain office
space in Wings Buildings under two tenancy agreements, for terms
of three years commencing January 2008 and six years commencing
December 2008, at rentals based on independent professional valuations.
Dr WU Po Him Philip is directly interested in Wings Investment
Company Limited as a shareholder.

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s business
to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
which set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the income statement,
state of affairs and capital adequacy. The financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2009 comply fully with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of
the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
MA Weihua
Chairman

12 April 2010
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Corporate Governance Report

The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Bank, the
Board has put in place governance practices with special emphasis on
an effective Board for leadership and control, sound business ethics and
integrity in all business activities.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2009, the Bank has followed
the guidelines set out in the “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority in September 2001.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is charged with leading the Bank
in a responsible and effective manner. The Board has adopted formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities. Its
main responsibilities include, but are not limited to, ensuring competent
management, approving objectives, strategies and business plans,
ensuring prudent conduct of operations within the laws and approved
policies, ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Bank’s conduct of
affairs. Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility
for the proper direction and management of the Bank.

The Board currently comprises twelve members, three executive directors
and nine non-executive directors, of whom three are independent non-
executive directors. The individuals who make up the Board draw on a
rich and diverse background of experience from both within and outside
of the banking community. The independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The names and brief biographical
details of the directors are shown on pages 6 to 9 in this Annual Report.

The Bank has in place established Board process. Regular Board
meetings are held at least four times a year, and, if necessary, additional
meetings would be arranged. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda. Notice of meeting will
be sent to directors at least fourteen days prior to a regular Board
meeting, and each director may request inclusion of matters in the
agenda for Board meetings. The directors will receive from the Company
Secretary a comprehensive information package, including the agenda,
minutes of the previous meeting, detailed business reports prepared
by the Management Committee and other information on matters to be
discussed at the meeting at least three days in advance of Board meetings
normally to facilitate deliberate informed discussions.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings, which will be sent to all directors for their comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting before being confirmed by the Board,
at the immediate subsequent meeting. The minute books are kept by the
Company Secretary and will be available for inspection by the directors
upon request. All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the
procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations are
complied with.
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On appointment, new directors will be given an orientation package,
including all key legal requirements, the Bank’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and Board policies and guidelines. Executive
Directors will meet with the new directors to give them more detailed
knowledge of the Bank’s business and activities. The Bank will sponsor
directors to attend professional development seminars if they consider
it necessary. To ensure that non-executive directors have a proper
understanding of the Bank’s operations, the Management Committee
provides them with detailed business reports on the management’s
business strategies and objectives, updates on different lines of business,
action plans, etc before each Board meeting.

Since the Bank has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., the Board strives to improve its corporate
governance and ensure operational compliance so as to enhance
management quality. In August 2009, the Board approved the
establishment of Strategy Committee, Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee (in place of Remuneration Committee) and Audit and Risk
Management Committee (in place of Audit Committee), to further
improve corporate governance and to oversee particular aspects of the
Bank’s affairs. Each of the committees has defined terms of reference
setting out its duties, powers and functions. The committees report
regularly to the Board and, where appropriate, make recommendations
on matters discussed. The Board, in addition to its overall supervisory
role, retains specific responsibilities such as approving specific senior
appointments, approving financial accounts, recommending dividend
payments, approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc.

The positions of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer are
separate.

The Chairman, Dr MA Weihua, provides leadership for the Board. He
is responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr ZHU Qi, in conjunction with
the Management Committee, is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for running the Bank’s operation and implementing the
Bank’s business strategies.
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The Management Committee consists of three members, all appointed
by the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi (Chairman), Mr
XU Zhihong and Mr KWOK Kin Hung. The Management Committee
exercises the powers, authorities and discretions of the Board relating
to the management and day-to-day running of the Bank in accordance
with its terms of reference and directions as the Board may determine
from time to time. The Management Committee is responsible for the
implementation of policies and execution of business plans as set by the
Board, assisting the Board to formulate the Group’s risk appetite and
strategies for managing the various types of risks to which the Group’s
businesses are exposed, and the implementation and maintenance of
the overall risk management framework across the Group’s businesses.
The Committee also participates in evaluating large credit applications
and making credit decisions for those requiring approval in excess of
the Credit Committee’s authorities, and oversees the Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Risk Management Committee. The latter
three specialised committees are the main committees established by and
under the direct supervision of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee presents to the Board regularly by way
of detailed business reports on management’s business strategies and
objectives, updates on different lines of business, action plans, etc
for discussion at each Board meeting. The Committee also provides
appropriate and sufficient information to the other members of the Board
in a timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest development of
the Bank so as to enable them to discharge their duties.

The Strategy Committee consists of five members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Dr MA Weihua (Chairman), Mr ZHU
Qi, Dr XU Shiqing, Dr WU Po Him Philip and Mr SOO Hung Leung
Lincoln. The principal duties of the Strategy Committee are to establish
strategic development goals, and to formulate medium to long term
development strategies of the Bank. The Committee is also responsible
for the approval of significant investment, capital expenditure plan and
the donations made to charitable organisations, and evaluating the Bank’s
key partnership with external organisations.
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The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of three members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Dr ZHANG
Guanghua (Chairman), Dr ZHENG Xianbing and Mr CHAN Charnwut
Bernard. The principal duties of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee are to oversee, examine and evaluate the execution of the
Bank’s annual business plans and the Board’s resolutions. The Committee
is also responsible for studying the performance appraisal standards
for the Directors and senior management, and conducting appraisals
and making recommendations annually. Besides, the Committee also
participates in studying and reviewing the remuneration policies and
packages for the Directors and senior management, evaluating and
approving the employment or service agreements of the Bank’s Directors
and senior management, the Bank’s remuneration strategies, the annual
pay adjustment as well as benefits schemes for the staff of the Bank.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists of five members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr LI Hao
(Chairman), Dr XU Shiqing, Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, Mr SOO
Hung Leung Lincoln and Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard. They possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise, and are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties. The principal duties of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee are to ensure the rationality and accuracy
of the internal accounting and financial control systems of the Bank;
to propose the appointment or replacement of external auditors, and
assess their independence and performance; to evaluate the procedures
and performance of internal auditors as well as to monitor the risk
management system of the Bank, conducting regular assessment of
the risk position of the Bank and proposing the implementation of
the relevant policies. In addition, the Committee also takes part in
auditing the internal control system of the Bank, and monitoring the risk
management of the Bank’s exposures to credit risks, market risks and
operational risks, etc by the senior management.

The Bank does not have a Nomination Committee. The Board as a
whole is responsible for the procedure of agreeing to the appointment
of its members and for nominating appropriate person for election at the
annual general meeting, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing directors.
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The Board and senior management are responsible for establishing,
maintaining and operating an effective system of internal control. The
internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee and other designated committees
have been established with the objective of assisting the Board to
manage and monitor various risks. The Board’s expectations regarding
duty, responsibility and integrity of each department are clearly spelled
out in formal policy statements, which include Code of Conduct, Internal
Control Policy Statement and Compliance Policy Statement, etc. The
Board has clearly defined the lines of authority and responsibilities
of each business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and
balances.

Our internal control system covers every business and operational
function of the Group. Our system is designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against loss and misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting
records for producing reliable financial information; to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material fraud and errors.
Policies and procedures are established to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and industry standards. To cope with the
increasingly stringent requirements from relevant regulatory authorities
together with ever-changing business environment, the Board has
dedicated more resources and efforts to further strengthen the Group’s
management structure and oversight. Internal Control Committee has
been established with a primary objective of assisting management to
oversee the overall internal control system of the Group. Regular Internal
Control Committee meetings are held and the Committee reports its work
to the Management Committee annually.

The Group has had in place various risk management policies and
procedures. There are specific committees and units that are responsible
for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing the risks that the
Group faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits are
established and approved by the Board or the Management Committee.
A more detailed discussion of the polices and procedures for managing
each of the major types of risk the Group is facing, including credit,
market, liquidity and operational risk, is included in note 2 to the
financial statements “Financial Risk Management” section.
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s internal control framework. It provides
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions. All internal audit reports will be submitted to
the Audit and Risk Management Committee for review. Significant issues
raised in the management letters from external auditors and reports from
regulatory authorities will be brought to the attention of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is
taken. All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time. Pursuant to a risk-
based methodology, the Internal Audit Department plans its internal
audit schedules annually with audit resources prioritised towards higher
risk areas. The Internal Audit Plan is submitted to the Management
Committee as well as the Audit and Risk Management Committee for
approval. To preserve the audit independence, the Board has established
the Audit Charter to set out the authorities and responsibilities of
internal audit function. The Group Chief Auditor reports directly to the
Management Committee as well as the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009, the directors have applied suitable accounting policies
consistently, approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent judgements and estimates, and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of 4 months and 3 months respectively after the
end of the relevant period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WING LUNG BANK LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Lung
Bank Limited (the “Bank™) set out on pages 35 to 186, which comprise
the consolidated and the Bank’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

12 April 2010
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Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense

Net fees and commission income

Insurance operating income

Net trading gain/(loss)

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale

securities
Other operating income

Operating income

Operating expenses

Impairment charge for credit losses
Charge for insurance claims
Net loss on disposal of other properties

and equipment

Operating profit/(loss) before gain/(loss)
on certain investments

Fair value gains on investment properties
Share of net profits/(losses) of jointly

controlled entities

Share of net profits of associates

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Income tax

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders

ARl R

Consolidated Income Statement

H 1E 2 4EJ For the year ended 31 December 2009

EROIO))N
2009
Ex W T
Note HKS$°000
4 2,022,011
5 (690,187)
1,331,824
447,654
(65,529)
6 382,125
7 408,133
8 299,918
68,897
9 147,692
2,638,589
10 (1,151,601)
11 (77,921)
7 (403,085)
(2,283)
1,003,699
29 38,084
30,174
2,961
1,074,918
14 (190,473)
884,445

—OO0ON

2008
W T
HK$°000

3,277,081
(1,999,748)

1,277,333

419,141
(75,642)

343,499

444,855
(1,150,745)

131,202
174,577

1,220,721
(1,046,591)
(746,725)
(523,517)

(1,635)

(1,097,747)
137,586

(84,667)
1,882

(1,042,9406)

226,791

(816,155)

The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEOOJUFTH =1—HIL 24 For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Net profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Surplus on revaluation of bank premises

Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale securities

Transfer to income statement on disposal of
available-for-sale securities

Transfer to income statement on impairment of
available-for-sale securities

Share of associates’ reserves

Share of jointly controlled entities’ reserves

Effect of deferred taxation on other
comprehensive income items

Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting
from the change in tax rate in 2008

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to shareholders

—OO0Oh

2009
T
HK$’000

884,445

4,039
188,766
(68,897)

137
4,489

(11,094)

117,440

1,001,885

—OO0ON

2008
i I
HK$°000

(816,155)

780
(989,828)
(131,202)
309,785

(175)
(5,119)

16,636

1,450

(797,673)

(1,613,828)

The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ZOOMETZHA=+—H Asat 31 December 2009

—0OO0Oh —OO0oON
2009 2008
AR W Tou BT
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
K e Assets
JEEAF B R R Cash and short-term funds 17 18,728,093 36,060,920
Placements with and loans and advances
[Fi] 3 7 J 47 T e Bk to banks 18 11,021,479 4,869,242
FEEE G2 &5 Trading securities 19 2,452,783 2,809,833
fiitE&m T H Derivative financial instruments 20 116,965 40,375
PAAPE (B RS AR 4 iR Financial assets designated at fair value
2B E through profit or loss 21 3,611,322 2,356,318
At B W S5 Available-for-sale securities 22 12,332,278 1,539,543
FrE 3 R Held-to-maturity securities 23 11,136,988 4,720,418
B H A R IR Advances and other accounts 24 54,413,444 44,788,117
L[] 2 ) A 5 Interests in jointly controlled entities 27 181,619 153,900
g/ Interests in associates 28 4,936 5,867
ERd<C7/E 3 Investment properties 29 2,275,960 2,346,550
FHE + HhfE 25 Interests in leasehold land 30 246,797 237,173
HoAth ) 2 B s Other properties and equipment 31 625,667 489,767
A (5] Ui A JE Tax recoverable 86,433 85,922
A0 J0E 30 T Deferred tax assets 36 75,159 88,909
MmEE Total assets 117,309,923 100,592,854
I=R i Liabilities
[A] ZEA7 K Deposits and balances from banks 3,398,540 914,484
AAHRIE T 2 A& Trading liabilities 32 34,006 595,471
Cigactery = Derivative financial instruments 20 568,606 197,606
DA TR 56 AR i HR Financial liabilities designated at fair value
2 EE through profit or loss 33 402,144 2,076,092
B Deposits from customers 34 92,301,427 82,493,626
AT 2 AT Certificates of deposit issued 1,981,341 1,020,970
BT B ETE Subordinated debt issued 35 3,000,000 -
W 15 Current taxation 13,686 5,118
R IERL TE B Deferred tax liabilities 36 414,821 276,363
HoAth AR TE K TE 1 Other accounts and accruals 37 3,791,572 2,611,229
N =L Total liabilities 105,906,143 90,190,959
B 4 Equity
A Share capital 38 1,160,951 1,160,951
Tt Reserves 39 10,242,829 9,240,944
1 5 40 Total equity 11,403,780 10,401,895
WE 4 I B fEAAR Total equity and liabilities 117,309,923 100,592,854
BER _O—OFMWA T _HMEEFEE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April
T e BERE A 2010.
Jisy=iE 3 HRER MA Weihua Chairman
&K OE AT ZHU Qi Director and Chief Executive Officer
&R LS ke XU Zhihong Director and General Manager
TP 5k LS Sk KWOK Kin Hung Director and General Manager

AL EH EE 186 H 2 51 7 1y % if
BEZ — My o

The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

ZOOJMETZH="1+—H Asat 31 December 2009

<923
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BT AE
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B

JBE A B JF £ 1
A R 5P T

AR
HE £
Je A
it
4 A AH

fEfn I A A

MER O~ OFMNHA T " HHERG

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Placements with and loans and advances
to banks

Trading securities

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Advances and other accounts

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Investment properties

Interests in leasehold land

Other properties and equipment

Tax recoverable

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks

Trading liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit issued

Subordinated debt issued

Current taxation

Deferred tax liabilities

Other accounts and accruals

Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

A S ARERE A 2010.

Jisy= i3 HREE MA Weihua
) R IAT AR ZHU Qi

wmEE AR R XU Zhihong

TR HE HEFAKH KWOK Kin Hung

T4 EH £ 186 H 2 51 B /4y b 25 f

Bk —HBY o

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

FERE
Note

17

18
19
20

21
22
23
24
26
27
29
30
31

32
20

33
34

35

36
37

38
39

Chairman

—O0Oh

2009
T 0
HK$°000

18,469,495

11,336,479
2,427,002
104,430

3,537,203
12,152,565
11,136,988
53,387,547

300,163
80,098
2,355,760
246,797
539,460
86,284

116,160,271

3,491,979
34,006
567,065

402,144
93,902,693
1,981,341
3,000,000
1,155
412,304
1,906,031

105,698,718

1,160,951
9,300,602

10,461,553

116,160,271

—OOAN

2008
T
HK$°000

35,787,145

4,844,097
2,699,500
40,375

2,204,939
1,364,071
4,720,418
43,901,566
300,155
86,062
2,425,050
237,173
410,503
85,922

99,106,976

1,011,512
595,471
197,606

2,115,948

83,337,532
1,020,970

274,537
853,597

89,407,173

1,160,951
8,538,852

9,699,803

99,106,976

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April

Director and Chief Executive Officer
Director and General Manager
Director and General Manager

The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.
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Share
capital
R T
HK$’000
RZOONF—H—H At 1 January 2008 1,160,951
ZOONFHEREHEMME :  Change in equity for 2008:
EREZOOLAMAMME 2007 Final dividend paid =
EIRE 0 O/VEEFHIRE 2008 Interim dividend paid s
Total comprehensive
AR 2 H income recognised
g A for the year =
BAEERE Transfer to statutory surplus =
RZOO/MEFZA=+—H% At31 December 2008 and
Z00ONF—A—H 1 January 2009 1,160,951
“OOJUFRAAHMINE ©  Change in equity for 2009:
A EERER N 2 Total comprehensive income
it 2 recognised for the year =
B REEA Transfer to retained earning =
RZOOMEFZA=+—H  At31 December 2009 1,160,951

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARaHERR W) R

HEZOONETZH =+ —H ILZHJE For the year ended 31 December 2009

Bt
Capital
reserve

AT

HKS$000

57,500

57,500

57,500

Bl

% 2 Gk
Bank
premises
revaluation
reserve

BT
HK$000

35,069

1,076

36,145

3373

39,518

i

B R
Investment
revaluation
reserve
HHET o
HK$’000

972,543

(798,749)

173,794

114,067

287,861

ekl WERE  RERA
Statutory ~ General  Retained At
surplus ~ reserve  earnings Total

T kT W R
HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

- 1,003,730 9,250,310 12,480,103

_ ~ (348,285)  (348,285)
(116,095)  (116,095)

(816,155) (1,613,828)
25 - (25) -

25 1,003,730 7,969,750 10,401,895

- ~ 884445 1,001,885
(29) - 2 -

1,003,730 8,854,220 11,403,780

R EAEH B 186 H Z sE FE A IS B The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.

Bk —HB o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEOOJUFTH =1—HIL 24 For the year ended 31 December 2009

BEEHZBE
(F ), WA H

SEA A A 1B
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BREWGHZBE
(R i),/ WA S

BEEBH)

AL B 2 s &
FrE B
L[] P ) B 2 R
[ e )
W wl R 2
WA B ) 922 o) B e
/N iy o)
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(F i),/ WA T

il 5 35 )
RS
BT 2 RIEARIA

Al 3 B < B
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B&RERBGIHE Z &

(W), Hm

R—H—-HB&Rk
FRBEHEH

A1 e 4 5 ) 2

BEZA=1+—HB&K

FRIBEEHA

BREGHZHSHEARE

FLRHA
FE ST
PR A

T4 EH £ 186 H 2 51 B /2y b 25 Bf

Bk —HB o
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Cash (used in)/generated
from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of available-for-sale securities and
held-to-maturity securities

Loans repaid from jointly controlled entities

Interests in jointly controlled entities
and associates

Dividends received from jointly controlled
entities and an associate

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
available-for-sale securities and
held-to-maturity securities

Payment for additions of investment properties

Payment for additions of other properties
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of other properties
and equipment

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid
Subordinated debt issued

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities include:

Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends received

—ZOO0Oh

2009

it W TOU
Note  HK$’000

44(a)  (1,367,028)

(20,850)
(20,452)
(1,408,330)

(50,795,658)
5,964

3,005

33,837,769

(116,080)

307

(17,064,693)

3,000,000
3,000,000

(15,473,023)

39,299,383
(410,513)

44(b) 23,415,847

2,029,449
773,856
11,920

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$°000

11,514,404

(81,156)
(13,319)

11,419,929

(19,935,303)
11,202

(35,000)
6,154
22,041,113

(10,866)

(65,671)

437

2,012,066

(464,380)

(464,380)

12,967,615

26,397,095
(65,327)

39,299,383

3,392,981
2,026,944
40,093

The notes on pages 41 to 186 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”, a collective
term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading (including derivative financial instruments), financial assets and
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 3.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
The Group adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs which are
relevant to its operations:

—  HKFRS 8, Operating Segments
— HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements

— Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

—  Amendments to HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 9 and HKAS 39,
Reassessment of Embedded Derivative

—  HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)
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1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way that
the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards and manages the
Group, with the amounts reported for each reportable segment being
the measures reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of assessing segment performance and making decisions
about operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a disaggregation of the
Group’s financial statements into segments based on related products
and services and on geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has
resulted in the presentation of segment information in a manner that is
more consistent with internal reporting provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management, and has resulted in additional reportable
segments being identified and presented in note 41. Corresponding
amounts have been provided on a basis consistent with the revised
segment information.

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. As a result of the adoption of HKAS
1 (Revised), details of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses in a revised
consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other items of income
and expense are presented in the consolidated income statement, if they
are recognised as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a
new primary statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. This change in presentation has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for any period presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurements. In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. The
adoption of the amendment results in additional disclosures but does not
have an impact on the financial position or the comprehensive income of
the Group. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions
set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative
information for the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been provided.
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1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments to HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 9 and HKAS 39 clarify the
accounting treatment for embedded derivatives regarding subsequent
reassessment on whether embedded derivative should be separated
from host contract. In addition to a change in the terms of contract
that significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have
been required under the contract, the amendments require a subsequent
reassessment to be performed when there is a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category,
which shall be made on the basis of the circumstances existed on the
later date of: (a) when the entity first became a party to the contract;
and (b) a change in the terms of contract that significantly modified the
cash flows that otherwise would have been required under the contract.
The amendments to the interpretation are unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 13 requires customer loyalty award credits
to be accounted for as a separate identifiable component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted. The fair value of the consideration
received or receivable in respect of the sales transaction is allocated
between the award credits and the other components of the sale. The
consideration allocated to the award credits shall be measured by
reference to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed
or the liability is otherwise extinguished. The interpretation is unlikely to
have any material financial impact on the Group.

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)” comprise a number of minor
and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs which the HKICPA
has issued as an omnibus batch of amendments. The impact of these
amendments are not considered to be material to the Group, except
for the following, which results in changes to the Group’s accounting
policies:

—  As a result of amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in associates,
impairment losses recognised in respect of the associates carried
under the equity method are no longer allocated to the goodwill
inherent in that carrying value. As a result, when there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount, the impairment loss will be reversed. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in the amendment, this new policy will
be applied prospectively to any impairment losses that arise in the
current or future periods and previous period have not been restated.

The adoption of the above HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and did not have significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet effective
for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2009 and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRS which are relevant
to the Group’s operations is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s result of operations and financial position except for HKFRS
9, Financial Instruments, which may have an impact on the Group’s
classification and measurement of financial instruments:

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2009), which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010.

—  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. They include entities
in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the
Board of Directors, controls more than half of the voting power or holds
more than half of the issued share capital.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets
and any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the interests in jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

1.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decision. This is
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the associates’ net assets and any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associates and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the associates’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the interests in associates are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are recognised
in the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but
does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract, including
cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage loans, that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by the
Group and is recognised when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a continuing service
to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period in which the
cost or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest income.
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1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(c) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognised as interest income over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned. Commission paid to dealers for
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is included
in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to the income statement
over the expected life of the lease as an adjustment to interest income.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment is quoted ex-dividend.

1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
loans and receivables, trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity securities, and
available-for-sale securities. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short term funds,
placement with and loans and advances to banks, trade bills and
loans and advances to customers, are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses.
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1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Trading securities

A financial asset is classified as trading if it is acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group does not have derivative financial instruments which meet
the criteria for hedge accounting as described in note 1.9.

Trading securities are stated at fair value, and transaction costs taken
directly to the income statement. Changes in fair value are recognised
as “Net gain/loss from trading securities” in the income statement as
they arise.

(c) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are not
those financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term but designated by management as such at inception
if they meet the following criteria:

—  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring
the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on

different bases;

— A group of financial assets is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about these assets is provided internally to
the management;

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

—  The separation of the embedded derivative(s) from the financial
instrument is not prohibited.

These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement. Changes
in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” in the
income statement in the period in which they arise.
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1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses.

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify a financial asset as held-to-maturity, it shall be
reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.

(e) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. Available-for-sale securities are those intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or
equity prices.

Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified from equity to the income statement.

Purchases and sales of trading securities, financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale
securities are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument. Loans are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
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1.7 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i)

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv)

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.
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1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If the financial asset has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics.
Those characteristics relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor’s ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets are
considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data on economic and credit environment to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently.
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1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should
reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related observable
data from period to period (for example, change in unemployment rates,
property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes
in the probability of losses in the group and their magnitude). The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all the
necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of the allowances for loan impairment in
the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.

(b) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement is removed from
the investment revaluation reserve and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income
statement.
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1.8 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, deposits, certificates of deposit issued and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

(a) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is carried
at fair value and any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit or loss if it
is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated include
certain certificates of deposit issued and certain deposits received from
customers that are embedded with derivatives. A financial liability is
typically so designated if it meets the following criteria:

—  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring
the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them

on different bases;

— A group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about these liabilities is provided internally to
the management;

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract; or

—  The separation of the embedded derivative(s) from the financial
instrument is not prohibited.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss” in the income statement.
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1.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(c) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debt issued and
other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debt issued,
other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair value
through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the other financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised depending on the purpose of the derivatives.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (2) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or
liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting
is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria
are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
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1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used is amortised to the income statement
over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying amount
of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the
disposal of the equity security.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The gain and loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement
in the periods in which the hedged item will affect profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity in the hedging reserve at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments held for trading and those that do not
qualify for hedge accounting will be accounted for with changes in fair
value reported through the income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

55



56

SR A L

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.10 &% KA A TH2Z h {4

S TAZAEETIRERAERH 2
T35 B A% Sl R R B A0 BRI AR AG R 2 8 4
BATHA o g R DL 2 R
E > Tz A A R DR R 2 O AR
TE o eI LR SR B M T AR TG
PIAS T B - 7 A B B DA (7 3k 8
B (E > B R AP R
b~ B AR 2 R TR ER 2 A
SRR - I8 R B AT B E R
A58 20 AR 8 o R DL R R AT B 2 R E
B

1.11 &M%

BEW TR e AR T A BB
Fr A AR = A Ui 4 B B4 AR T
EHEZ LR SER - %%+
W K B A I R AR G 2 o R BT A
o AR B DL A 2 T8 S R A AR
b g K BB AN I (B A 1) SE M A T
AW | 4y S B M U BB W 3 o ISR
BoE Y LA E A B 77 SR > MR 2
B RFBOR IR S E T 2 HoAh
i -27E

BOE W) 3 B e DURAS B L 45 52 5 2 T 5
R o KEH0 P HERRAR > BUEWSELIAFE
{E 5B o AT AaT PR 22 P8 {1 2 5 0 i i 4
P& W) S A 2 WAt B0k 18 & R U A

CEZEEENEE U e AP L S(Eia<c/ES
I > 5% %) 2E 7 TR T A0 AR T (R B P
B 2 H G RIEF B G ERR 1658
(W€ ~ MBS Dot ) A FLAt 4 T i 4 A
R0 J8 7. 3t 2w A M A TR 2 B A T ek
i o o TG 3 (6 A K 8 ) — 0 R
2 T A Dol (D T 45 R R % S Y R >
B RIIEWCA o BRI G HT R — & &
O 5 (6L 281 B 1 ST AR > o BRER A3 B Wi
iR NANER o 18 E E R AR
Z AW fefi A g vh LAY S E A DR T
i AA -

A BV RPN > Y EHER
B 5 DLEDRT B H B A E
YER AE -

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

1.10 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for estimated
future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.11 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that is not occupied by the companies in the Group, is classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
income statement.

When a property is transferred to investment property following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between
the carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer
and its fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”.
However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases on
previous valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to the
income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the relevant portion of
the bank premises revaluation reserve is released and transferred from
the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.
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1.12 Other properties and equipment
(a) Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where the
land and building elements of the leasehold properties held for own
use can be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease, the land
element is accounted for as operating lease. As such, any leasehold
land premiums for acquiring the land leases, or other lease payments,
are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease or where there is impairment, the impairment is
charged to the income statement. Any buildings which are situated on
such land leases continue to be presented as part of premises. Where
the land and building elements of the leasehold properties cannot be
allocated reliably at the inception of the lease, the land and building
elements will continue to be treated as finance lease and classified as
premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to write
off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the
leases.

— Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the
remaining estimated useful life.

(b) Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance
basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives, at
annual rates ranging from 20% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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1.13 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.14 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed collateral assets are measured at the lower of the
carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.15 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as
equities classified as available-for-sale securities are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.
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1.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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1.16 Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group or the Bank has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

1.17 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As
a general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured
event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur.

(a) Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicle, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary loss.
Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of
premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks
at the balance sheet date is reported as the unearned premium liability.
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are net of
duties levied on premiums.
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1.17 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(a) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the income statement
as incurred. They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even
if they have not yet been reported to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid
claims are separately analysed by class of business. They are estimated
using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group
and statistical techniques for the claims incurred but not reported.

(b) Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities net of related deferred
acquisition costs assets. In performing these tests, current best estimates
of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such
liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the income
statement and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising
from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision).

(c) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the
Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by
the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Insurance contracts
entered into by the Group under which the contract holder is another
insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist
of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term
receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits
as arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with
the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and
are recognised as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an annual
basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement.
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1.18 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

1.19 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on
the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with note 1.18 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in
the income statement.

1.20 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are recognised
when the absences occur.
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1.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates five staff retirement schemes. The assets of these
schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes are
expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations of the
assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost of providing
retirement benefits is charged to the income statement so as to spread the
regular cost over the service lives of employees in accordance with the
advice of qualified actuaries. The defined benefit obligation is measured
as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of government securities which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions in excess of the 10% of the greater of
these schemes’ assets and the defined benefit obligations are recognised
in the income statement over the average expected future working
lifetime of the members of the schemes.

1.21 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term. The Group’s interests in leasehold
land except those qualified to be classified as premises and investment
properties are also accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group or the Bank is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated
in accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the
asset is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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1.22 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in the balance
sheet as “Advances and other accounts”. The net investment represents
the total rentals receivable under hire purchase contracts and finance
leases less unearned finance income. Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 1.7.
Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is credited to the
income statement over the lease period or hire period so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

1.23 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
Information provided to the Group's most senior executive management
to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance
of operating segments is measured in accordance with HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

1.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills
and certificates of deposit.
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1.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to
be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions,
or has joint control over the Group;

(i1) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate or a jointly controlled entity of the Group;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent, or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is
an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit
of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by
the Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.
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2.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to
discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from loans
and advances, debt securities, derivative financial instruments, treasury
bills, and other on-balance sheet exposures to counterparties in the
Group’s asset portfolio. There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet
financial arrangements such as loan commitments. Significant changes
in the economy, or in the health of a particular industry segment that
represents a concentration in the Group’s portfolio, could result in losses
that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The
Group’s credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit
management department which reports to the Management Committee
regularly.

(a) Credit risk measurement
(1) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit
risk exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to
achieve an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and
to maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever
they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and
monitored by the use of limits. All credit risk limits are approved by the
Management Committee. The Management Committee is also responsible
for the review and approval of the largest credit exposures and portfolio
management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities are delegated
to the Group’s Credit Committee and other lending officers. Actual
credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures, limits
and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the Credit
Management Department by keeping a central liability record for each
group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the internal
audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted
by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(1) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

—  Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

— Charges over financial instruments such as equities and debt
securities.
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(i) Collateral (Continued)

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In order
for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the market
value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be reasonably
established. The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset. In addition, the Group is able
to secure control over the asset if necessary. The collateral is revalued
periodically ranging from daily to annually, depending on the type of
collateral. As for those past due exposures, the main types of collateral
held are cash deposits and properties.

(i1) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into
master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes
a significant volume of transactions. Master netting arrangements do
not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities,
as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit
risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting
arrangement to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts
with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.

(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been entered
into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other trading
positions. The Management Committee places trading limits on the level
of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight and intra-day
market positions. With the exception of specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated with these
derivatives are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing
positions, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions. Given the purpose for entering
into such derivative transaction, collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the
Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iv) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is
to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the
total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

(c) Impairment allowance policies

The Group undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring of its
credit portfolios, and requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above preset thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances are recognised
for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on
objective evidence of impairment as described in note 1.7. The Group’s
internal credit rating system assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists.

Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the balance sheet date on a case-
by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts.
The assessment normally encompasses commitment of collateral held
and the anticipated cash flows for that individual account adjusted at the
relevant discount rates.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below preset
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been
individually identified, using available data on historical loss experience,
and economic conditions, statistical analysis and supplemented by
experienced judgment.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

69



70

IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 {5 &ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(d) F JEHE i & Ml {5 BE B B PEHI (d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
Z B 5 5 BB credit enhancements
AL 1T
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T AL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ISR Short term funds 18,254,378 35,562,958 17,995,783 35,289,183
Placements with and loans

[A] 2& & WA Bk and advances to banks 11,021,479 4,869,242 11,336,479 4,844,097

FfEEE Mk 2 #% Trading securities 2,452,783 2,809,833 2,427,002 2,699,500

fiH: 4 Rl T H Derivative financial instruments 116,965 40,375 104,430 40,375
Financial assets designated

PAAFEERA at fair value through

BEEZ SMEE profit or loss 3,611,322 2,356,318 3,537,203 2,204,939

At 2 B R Available-for-sale securities 12,332,278 1,539,543 12,152,565 1,364,071

RS Held-to-maturity securities 11,136,988 4,720,418 11,136,988 4,720,418

B N HoAth B TE Advances and other accounts 54,413,444 44,788,117 53,387,547 43,901,566
Loan to jointly controlled

e [7] 2 ) 1 K entities 55,098 61,062 55,098 61,062

5 BRYE Credit commitments 19,376,946 14,034,091 19,530,204 14,185,509

132,771,681 110,781,957 131,663,299 109,310,720

(e) VoSl s ¢t ] (e) Gross loans and advances to customers
() BFERAFEFEE R (i) Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality
AAEHE Y.
The Group The Bank
—OO0h —O0OO0ON —O0Oh —O0OO0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T il T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

I 700 1 Ko e e (. Neither past due nor impaired 51,437,858 42,025,690 51,110,678 41,747,744
0 31 0 ok (L Past due but not impaired 1,102,492 1,259,930 1,082,748 1,226,818
AL ALl Impaired 270,208 82,482 256,283 54,792

52,810,558 43,368,102 52,449,709 43,029,354
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

impaired
The Group
At 31 December 2009
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
The Bank
At 31 December 2009
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3

LB S L
Real estate
mortgage
#W T
HK$’000

16,519,849
95,663
24,663

16,640,175

LB S L
Real estate
mortgage
W T
HK$°000

16,540,802
95,663
24,663

16,661,128

FoAie

Others
13 1PN
Corporate Individual
W T W T
HK$’000 HK$’000

32,536,546 1,893,688
196,079 79,209
79,282 12,879

32,811,907 1,985,776

HAt

Others
1% 1PN
Corporate Individual
T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

32,323,421 1,760,976
196,079 79,209
76,986 12,879

32,596,486 1,853,064
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(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor

it

Total
BT
HKS$°000

50,950,083
370,951
116,824

51,437,858

it

Total
BT
HKS$’000

50,625,199
370,951
114,528

51,110,678
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2.1 {5 &ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk #AE (%) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(i) A K& s E 2 % S AR (i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor
(#8) impaired (Continued)
A H The Group
oAt
E s Others
Real estate 12 (EPN B
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T wWTon W T W T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

R_OO/N4+—"H At 31 December 2008

= —7%
A — Grade 1 16,112,881 23,590,762 1,915,856 41,619,499
b - Grade 2 69,099 219,413 8,743 297,255
A= Grade 3 8,746 39,290 60,900 108,936

16,190,726 23,849,465 1,985,499 42,025,690
N The Bank
HoAtb
E il Qe
Real estate M2 (EPN Gt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T WMt W T i I
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

WN_OON4ET"H At 31 December 2008

=—F
Al — Grade 1 16,134,361 23,409,897 1,797,295 41,341,553
Al — Grade 2 69,099 219,413 8,743 297,255
Al = Grade 3 8,746 39,290 60,900 108,936

16,212,206 23,668,600 1,866,938 41,747,744
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor
impaired (Continued)

The following definitions have been adopted for the purpose of the above
analysis:

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special monitoring” represents loans with which borrowers are
experiencing difficulties and which may threaten the Group’s position.

Grade 3 “substandard” represents loans in which borrowers are
displaying a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or
collection in full is improbable without realisation of available collateral.

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment
loss where the loans are fully collateralised. While such loans are of
“substandard” grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above table.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

73



IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 {5 8ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk #AE (#H) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(iii) % A M (E 2 & P B AR (iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not
impaired
A H The Group
HAty
LE % Others
Real estate E(oE & A aat
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

BT T T W Tou
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R_OOMN4E+H At 31 December 2009

=+—H
EX N Three months or less 717,827 304,597 63,105 1,085,529
—f\H L Six months or less but
ZRMAH over three months 3,723 8,136 = 11,859
NMEAH U E Over six months 4,892 212 = 5,104
726,442 312,945 63,105 1,102,492
Y. NF) The Bank
Hit
LE B0 Others
Real estate 3 (PN Hak
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T BT T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

W OOMN4E+_H At 31 December 2009

=+—H
A LT Three months or less 717,827 291,933 56,237 1,065,997
EX(CPERY Six months or less but

A H over three months 3,723 8,136 = 11,859
NEA DL E Over six months 4,892 = = 4,892

726,442 300,069 56,237 1,082,748

74 AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



2.1 {5 8ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk #AE (%) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iii) @AM (E 2 & F Bk % (4)  (iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not
impaired (Continued)

AL The Group
FHoAte
E s Qg
Real estate 12 (5PN B
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T Wt W T W Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

R_OO/N4+—"H At 31 December 2008

=f—7
A LA Three months or less 807,812 360,210 85,076 1,253,098
“MAL L Six months or less but
ZRMAH over three months = 4,123 924 5,047
NEA L E Over six months - 1,728 57 1,785
807,812 366,001 86,057 1,259,930
PN iy The Bank
HoAth
) A Others
Real estate 12 EPN &FF
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T WMt W T i I
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

WN_OON4ET"H At31 December 2008

=+—H
=M\ AT Three months or less 807,812 335,880 76,506 1,220,198
“MMAL L Six months or less but

2R A over three months = 3,911 924 4,835
NMEA DL E Over six months = 1,728 57 1,785

807,812 341,519 77,487 1,226,818

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited 75



76

IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 {5 8ABE (%)
(iv) AR 2 W & P B %

C R (E 2 % 5 8 S AR o% 55 18 1] B K
RERANRLR > K% A8 R S A A7 A2
B 2 FBE R > % 1R 3 T3 8K
) FE AR 20 B 4 U BB A A 2B o L AT
wr

A Bk Impaired loans
A4 The Group

— OO L 2009
ZOONE 2008

T Bk Impaired loans
) The Bank

— OO JLF 2009

Z OO N 2008

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The gross amount of impaired loans, which represents those individual
advances where there is objective evidence of impairment resulting
from loss events occurring after the initial recognition of the advances
and where these loss events have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the advances, is analysed as follows:

FoAie
LE % Others
Real estate E(oE &l A aat
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T L T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

68,008 192,649 9,551 270,208
31,893 41,106 9,483 82,482
HoAth
LE %0 Others
Real estate 3 fid A L
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T ol oL AL
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

68,008 179,222 9,053 256,283

31,893 13,615 9,284 54,792



2.1 fa & mbE (5) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) F B HAMEE (4 (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(v) TRl B A2 % P E AR () (iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired
(Continued)
AL 1T
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OO0ON —0OO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

SRR Impaired loans 270,208 82,482 256,283 54,792
% F B A Percentage of total advances
ZHEH to customers 0.51% 0.19% 0.49% 0.13%

Individual impairment

bl B R allowances made in respect
Z A A ek A of such advances 112,816 42,664 99,839 17,920
Total value of collateral taken
FEAG b 22t A8 A s into account in respect of
HEMH % R 2 the assessment of individual
HEH o 2 A impairment allowances 149,419 35,896 149,419 35,896

HRZOONFE+T_H=+—H> R At 31 December 2009, there were no impaired loans in respect of

AR A B E B SR (O OJV4FE ¢ advances to banks (2008: Nil).
) o

AR A W MEHE E % B B EK 24K The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into

i EE - account the value of collateral in respect of such advances.
(v) AR (v) Renegotiated loans
AL N}
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

BT W T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

[ UE eI Renegotiated loans that
M ] A . 4 4 5% would otherwise be past
ERE Z BB due or impaired 33,086 68,997 30,790 68,997
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2.1 fa & mbE (5)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(1) IGES -3 ¢ -F-d-E (f) Gross balance with banks by credit quality
A4 Y.
The Group The Bank

—~OO0Oh ZOO0ON ZO0Oh —~OO0ON

2009 2008 2009 2008

BT BT BT BT T

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EESE& ¢ 1 Gross balance with banks
— A A K S (B — Neither past due nor

(& HI—) impaired (Grade 1) 29,275,857 40,432,200 29,332,262 40,133,280

B — B T ] REME R RERIEE
o A R B RE A o
(g) Wl &

S AF BE A A A (] R A R 2 HISHE o A
T

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

(g) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security, as follows:

A4 [ V. NF)
The Group The Bank

—OO0Oh 00N —~O0Oh ZOO0ON

2009 2008 2009 2008

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(EEcty/ES Residential properties 5,191 2,565 5,191 2,565

Commercial and

BNEE ES industrial properties 2,524 2,826 2,524 2,826
HoAt Others 745 2,481 - 247
8,460 7,872 7,715 5,638

MRTOONEF+—HAH=+—H > A&4H
B A AT 2 0k W] & B 13,938,0000T
(O O\ & #%2,620,0007T) °

Wi ] 49y 36 & 7E AT AT RO LR F R B
Jr WSCRR TR P DA SRR 55 4 K

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

At 31 December 2009, the repossessed assets of the Group and the Bank
amounted to HK$3,938,000 (2008: HK$2,620,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.



2.1 fa & mbE (5)
(h) (BT
() EHES LEER 2 EEE R

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) Debt securities

(i) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality

AL 1T
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WS w6 7 S e Debt securities and treasury bills
— Neither past due nor

— A A K SR impaired

RZOONF+ZH=+—H » xE£H
FAKT B E 2 T 4k B 2 RS s R A
B4 %19,930,00000 (O O N4« i
#136,167,00000) o AL B K AITRA
2 BV IE 2 B w25 0 A A Sl AR
2 B o

MR_OONET_A=1T—H > &KEH
K AT B WAE 2 15 2 B W R 5 75 5 AR AR
Fy s #116,325,0000C (— O O JV4AE @ i
#116,250,00000) © A4 B K AT REAH
2 DR E E R 2500 A > CETR
2 BT O E A 2 U 116,325,000
(OO /N4 & #1116,250,0007T) °

28,867,175 10,782,516 28,793,056 10,631,137

The gross amount of impaired available-for-sale debt securities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2009 was HK$19,930,000 (2008:
HK$136,167,000). No collateral was held by the Group and the Bank in
respect of the impaired debt securities and full impairment provision has
been provided against the gross amount.

The gross amount of impaired held-to-maturity debt securities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2009 was HK$116,325,000
(2008: HK$116,250,000). No collateral was held by the Group and the
Bank in respect of the impaired debt securities, and the accumulated
impairment allowance of HK$116,325,000 (2008: HK$116,250,000) has
been provided.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 f5 &b (4)
(h) EEE7H5 (4E)
(i) A 4 1 B el (L 2 5 b 5 I (B o
T I RAR TIAR IR IMEAS BTN 7T

By A A S AR5 ol o B (B e O 2 R
JE B

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired
The tables below present an analysis of debt securities and treasury bills

by rating agency designation based on the external credit assessment
institutions’ ratings that the Group has used in relation to credit risk

exposures:
A H The Group
I Jek 73 R 2
Treasury Debt fit
bills securities Total
#WT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R_OONE+ A At 31 December 2009
=+—H
AA-EAAA AA-to AAA 1,823,566 12,460,518 14,284,084
A- BA+ A-to A+ - 9,603,078 9,603,078
BBB-%£BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 3,138,344 3,138,344
{K A BBB- Lower than BBB- - 81,386 81,386
HE ST 5] Unrated - 1,760,283 1,760,283
1,823,566 27,043,609 28,867,175
HBITNE - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— YRR M A R AT central banks 1,823,566 453,400 2,276,966
— NS — public sector entities = 173,730 173,730
— $RAT B A 4 b A A — banks and other financial institutions - 18,594,197 18,594,197
— {3 — corporate entities - 7,822,282 7,822,282
1,823,566 27,043,609 28,867,175
Hormn of which classified by:
—REEHE AR ES — trading securities 1,823,566 603,436 2,427,002
— DI PEEREAELIE  — financial assets designated at fair
2 A RNE E value through profit or loss - 3,611,322 3,611,322
— nfit i 2 S — available-for-sale securities - 11,691,863 11,691,863
— FFER WS — held-to-maturity securities - 11,136,988 11,136,988
1,823,566 27,043,609 28,867,175

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



2.1 fa & mbE (5)
(h) EEE7HS ()

(i) 7 7 1) K Jm e A 2 A8 5 w6 75 % el Jei
% (&)

ENF)

R_OONE+ A

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor

impaired (Continued)

The Bank

At 31 December 2009

={—F
AA-EAAA AA- to AAA
A-FA+ A-to A+
BBB-%BBB+ BBB- to BBB+
%/~ BBB- Lower than BBB-
MEEAR Unrated
HBEITANA - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— RBUR S SR AT central banks
— NEE — public sector entities
— SRAT B At 45 il B A — banks and other financial institutions
— {3 — corporate entities
Hormn of which classified by:
—FEEE BB — trading securities
— DI PEEREAEEE  — financial assets designated at fair
Z R E value through profit or loss
— nfit i SR — available-for-sale securities
— R R — held-to-maturity securities

I it 5

Treasury

bills
W T
HK$°000

1,823,566

1,823,566

1,823,566

1,823,566

1,823,566

1,823,566

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

o085 8 27

Debt
securities
T
HKS$°000

12,453,295
9,566,809
3,107,717

81,386
1,760,283

26,969,490

453,400
173,730
18,543,430
7,798,930

26,969,490

603,436
3,537,203

11,691,863
11,136,988

26,969,490

it
Total
BT
HKS$°000

14,276,861
9,566,809
3,107,717

81,386
1,760,283

28,793,056

2,276,966
173,730
18,543,430
7,798,930

28,793,056

2,427,002
3,537,203

11,691,863
11,136,988

28,793,056
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2.1 {5 8ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) EHES () (h) Debt securities (Continued)
(i) A B S MU (E 2 (75 38 77 LB 8 (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor
75 (#) impaired (Continued)
A H The Group
I8 Jek 7 EHS i 5
Treasury Debt &t
bills securities Total
T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R_OONE+ A At 31 December 2008
=+—H
AA-EAAA AA-to AAA 2,040,514 2,026,164 4,066,678
A-EA+ A- to A+ = 3,897,268 3,897,268
BBB-%#BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 1,701,505 1,701,505
{X/*BBB- Lower than BBB- = 73,061 73,061
e A Unrated = 1,044,004 1,044,004
2,040,514 8,742,002 10,782,516
HBTAL - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— YRR N A R AT central banks 2,040,514 738,465 2,778,979
— N — public sector entities = 353,800 353,800
— $RAT B A 4 A A — banks and other financial institutions = 5,398,055 5,398,055
— 43 — corporate entities — 2,251,682 2,251,682
2,040,514 8,742,002 10,782,516
Ho 8 of which classified by:
—FHEEE BB — trading securities 1,808,030 891,470 2,699,500
— DA PEEREAE IR — financial assets designated at fair
Z e E value through profit or loss - 2,356,318 2,356,318
— At RS — available-for-sale securities 232,484 773,796 1,006,280
— FFER WS — held-to-maturity securities = 4,720,418 4,720,418

2,040,514 8,742,002 10,782,516

82 HKEESRATAH FRA A 0 O JUAFEAEH



2.1 fa & mbE (5)

(h) EEE7HS ()

(i) 7 7 1) K Jm e A 2 A8 5 w6 75 % el Jei

7 ()

ENF)

H_=OON4%E+ZH
=+—H
AA-EAAA

A-BA+
BBB-%ZBBB+

& i*BBB-

HEFT AR

HE#T N

— R S
— B

— ST B A A
— ¥

Homh
— FHERERRZ BT
— DLA-FEERE AR 2 R
ZEREE
— At 2 R
— RrEIE R

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

impaired (Continued)

The Bank

At 31 December 2008

AA-to AAA
A-to A+

BBB- to BBB+
Lower than BBB-
Unrated

of which issued by:
— central governments and
central banks
— public sector entities
— banks and other financial institutions
— corporate entities

of which classified by:
— trading securities
— financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
— available-for-sale securities
— held-to-maturity securities

I ok 77

Treasury
bills
i
HK$’000

2,040,514

2,040,514

2,040,514

2,040,514

1,808,030

232,484

2,040,514

B

Debt
securities
BT
HK$’000

1,993,468
3,841,856
1,677,105

73,061
1,005,133

8,590,623

738,465
353,800
5,335,522
2,162,836

8,590,623

891,470
2,204,939

773,796
4,720,418

8,590,623

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor

i
Total
BT T
HK$’000

4,033,982
3,841,856
1,677,105

73,061
1,005,133

10,631,137

2,778,979

353,800
5,335,522
2,162,836

10,631,137

2,699,500
2,204,939

1,006,280
4,720,418

10,631,137

83



IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 fa & mbE (5) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) B - BEREZEBERIIEHIIN (i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance

o sheet items
A H The Group
M E HAE o BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BR_OORE+TZAH At 31 December 2009
=+—H
s Hong Kong 113,631,956 103,088,810 19,096,824
ESyE United States of America 1,491,402 1,241,865 83,192
s N\ R E People’s Republic of China 5,454,788 4,868,293 196,930
BH 2 5 Cayman Islands 24,602 - -
43 BB L AH AL S Inter-segment elimination (3,292,825)  (3,292,825) -
117,309,923 105,906,143 19,376,946
17 The Bank
WG E HMAE o BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BR_OOE+TZAH At 31 December 2009
=+—H
s Hong Kong 112,510,787 102,882,749 19,250,082
ESEY United States of America 1,480,005 1,241,842 83,192
e N\ R E People’s Republic of China 5,437,251 4,866,501 196,930
PSS Cayman Islands 24,602 - -
o e EE i Inter-segment elimination (3,292,374)  (3,292,374) -
116,160,271 105,698,718 19,530,204

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



2.1 fa & mbE (5)

() EE ~ R IR EE AR IHH i
S (A

A 5 Wl

B_OON&E+ A

==

it
ESE

rpEE N R AL

B 2 B
3 # AR

B_OON#E+ A

=1 H

it
ESE

i AR

2T
G H E AR R

LA_E 2347 75 ¥ A4 I 3605 2 BT AE R
W FH o AEBK EREEBERE -

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

sheet items (Continued)

The Group

At 31 December 2008

Hong Kong

United States of America
People’s Republic of China
Cayman Islands
Inter-segment elimination

The Bank

At 31 December 2008

Hong Kong

United States of America
People’s Republic of China
Cayman Islands
Inter-segment elimination

Hong Kong.

HK$°000

98,930,379
1,504,486
2,319,304

133,665

(2,294,980)

100,592,854

HK$°000

97,472,823
1,493,389
2,301,630

133,665

(2,294,531)

99,106,976

N =R

Total
liabilities
BT
HK$°000

89,421,071
1,214,895
1,741,558

108,415

(2,294,980)

90,190,959

R N=Ei

Total
liabilities
BT
HK$°000

88,638,572
1,214,871
1,739,846

108,415

(2,294,531)

89,407,173

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance

5 BARYE
Credit
commitments
BT T
HK$’000

13,792,327
196,605
45,159

14,034,091

5 BRI
Credit
commitments
BT T
HK$’000

13,943,745
196,605
45,159

14,185,509

The above analysis is prepared based on the country/region in which the
Group’s operations are located. The Group operates predominantly in
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2.1 {5 8ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(i) B - BEREZEBERIIEHIIN (i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance
b (4E) sheet items (Continued)
JEB 4 2 B P B L R AR R Geographical sector risk concentrations within the customer loan
portfolio are as follows:
A H The Group
—O0Oh —OO0Oh —OON —OON
2009 2009 2008 2008
#W T BT T
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
U Hong Kong 48,924,190 92.7 40,839,034 94.2
EH United States of America 1,438,096 2.7 1,406,923 32
SRR People’s Republic of China 2,448,272 4.6 1,122,145 2.6
52,810,558 100.0 43,368,102 100.0
) The Bank
—O0Oh —OO0Oh —OO0ON —OON
2009 2009 2008 2008
EW T BT T
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
T Hong Kong 48,542,389 92.5 40,478,806 94.1
EH United States of America 1,459,048 2.8 1,428,403 33
SEENEREE People’s Republic of China 2,448,272 4.7 1,122,145 2.6
52,449,709 100.0 43,029,354 100.0

86 AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



2.2 T35 A

A SR [ BT R Af 2 T 3 ELRR o T3 B T
Sy e A% S BT 5 B M TR 2 A EE
Bl AR A B 4 I A A e B o i A e
TR A HEE A - AN R E A S
35 8 o R T A — R B
I 35 58 5 I 1l 35 B SR S A A 0 -
28 I e S AR AR S W PO ok S TR o AR
A ) 22 T 35 By E R B AP BE R S A

FrfE B R S AE SRAT IR A 2 78 25 KAl
HTH -

(a) 1755 I i 2 /%

B B IE R E A IHA 5 IR LLE
B A 1 A A TR 4 B8 T T 2 T 3
B o JEURR ) LA %) B 4% e BU(E S R MR
Gtk FLUEMT B I B o 2SR IRAE A
B SRR A o DLAR A JE B
W AR IRAR OB PR L Ik A
BREE M S AE o B ¥ B 2 B B P A B
W5 R A B 2 S o e A o B AL B
WA~ g H T A (E SRR 2 2 3
oAt S8 57 PR P AT o T AS 4R B 2 RE XD
PR B 72 5 HEAT B A% Modg & > DA PR AiE
IR E 2 B IR BUEAT RS 5 o BT
71 SR 2 JE 7 o A B 22 A B e
% B O A% A o FTRRAR A b R
HHMEZAREEK -

A [ I Y B 2 22 JRE g )k DA M i
Z S A A T 3 R o et A 4 1 B R
W2 B o B IRl 2 4 5 o o o B
ZEEHEY -

(b) TI755 I 5 1L JBR S 7 Hr
(i) & ¥ B

A 1 2 B e P T R A B R
P SESRAT A A M P E R -

KOO NEF+_HAH=+—H > W*
I B T 7E 8 5 LR RE 2R E AT Bk
0.64% > £ HM P ZEANE T > AEEH K
AAT 2 B BLAR W B K AR S H o B e D
s 118.,040,0007C (— O O JU4E M ¥
6,849,0007C) K ¥ %14,727,0000C (—
O O J\ 4+ # ¥3,581,00000) o HL —
O O/NAEHEE » = O O JLAE 2 4 FE JE b
MURE R > EERE A B E T
F B S Konl ik 6 2 B R -

2.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily
arises from its positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives
in its trading and banking books.

(a) Market risk measurement

The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed by
way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures are
measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional amount
and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product and risk
type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques, including
position limits, sensitivity limits, as well as stop loss limits. All market
risk trading positions are subject to monitored and managed by the
Treasury Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily mark-to-
market valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by departments
independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking and reviews
are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function to ensure
compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and approved
by the appropriate level of management and the Management Committee.
Actual positions are monitored by the Risk Management Committee.

The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure
of the Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
Management Committee.

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis
(i) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign exchange
dealing, commercial banking operations and structural foreign currency
exposures.

At 31 December 2009, if USD had weakened within the pegged range
of 0.64% against HKD with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation for the year would have
been HK$18,040,000 (2008: HK$6,849,000) and HK$14,727,000
(2008: HK$3,581,000) lower respectively. The higher foreign currency
exchange rate sensitivity in 2009 compared with 2008 was attributable to
additional holdings of USD denominated held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale securities.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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2.2 i G EBE (%)
(b) T 55 i B I T ()
(i) =R JE g

AR ) 2 ) S B R B B AR
EiE - AEEEEAMKRUINEAER
T BRI AT IR ] 22 B 1 5 | AE o

AT AR] F1) 2R i & 2 2 DL N TE E s AR
IR GG EAERM AR EE - A
£E [ {1 ) 0] 2 1 1 5 4 DL IRV SE B 4 T
GRS AEZ A RER - 00
WEFZA=Z+—H > mARBREHE -
TH10025 7 > 78 HAth R R4 R > A4k
M Je A AT 2 B B AR s A AR 3t 4 H
W 7 576,0000C (2O O JVAE © #k
#6,435,00000) K # ¥7,303,0000C (-
O O J\AE @ #k#5481,00000) » FEH
S (= =il i e - 0N ) /A o - U [
B R S g E 2 A TEE RG]
B o AN [ K AT HAth A T U 75 S S
ST B EF A RE S A 2 F AL G A A B
AH H) 35 D #29.493,0009C (O O
JUAE - e 2.134,00008) 0 E 2 E S
Al 2 BB 558 - LT O O AR L
1 .0 O JLAE 2 F 3Rl B A8 R B i
o EEHRERER A E 2 A b
T} o

(iii) HECARE B

AL 2 P Ja B £ 2R B A T A
s bl 2 IR RE 5 M LAASYE b 2 R R
TEMB S E 2 B R e EE - HE
TR TR E R I ECE & -

RO ONE+—HA=+—H > nfE4k
TR BN H T B10% - 78 HoAh [F & A 4
Ko B A7 e AR T HLAR 5 B4 8 2 8 o 4 41
BRBE T > ALE Z BRBE KA
D HEHE1,472,0007C (2O O \4F @ ki
12,016,0007C) o A & B} A 17 7y HAth
AT U A I ST BRI R S N 2 AL A
B BRI 2 Bl 0 s 534,342,000
gt (.0 O /\4E : #:%524,058,0000C) K&
#k 113,590,0007C (= O O J\4E « ik
8,134,0007C) © BL — O O /N4 ik, —
OO NEFREEEHBZHESLLUAT
EE 58 AR 45 Bk 2 & Rl 72 22 I E L e
R AR > R T R R HE R
[ o T AT Ak B 2 e R 2 B RE L e Rk
BERR G > R A AR A BRERE I -

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(i1) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing differences
in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
positions.

Any changes in interest rates would affect the value of those financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The Group enters into interest
rate swaps to mitigate the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-
rate financial assets and financial liabilities. At 31 December 2009, if
interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation
for the year would have been HK$7,576,000 (2008: HK$6,435,000) and
HK$7,303,000 (2008: HK$5,481,000) lower respectively, mainly as a
result of revaluation of trading securities and financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s and the Bank’s surplus
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in investment revaluation reserve would have been HK$29,493,000
(2008: HK$2,134,000) lower due to the revaluation of those available-
for-sale securities. The higher interest rate sensitivity in 2009 compared
with 2008 was attributable to additional holdings of available-for-sale
securities.

(ii1) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings
of certain equity securities and option-linked financial assets with
underlying equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2009, if the Hang Seng Index at that date had been 10%
lower with all other variables held constant and all the equity instruments
had moved according to their historical correlation with the index, the
Group’s profit after taxation for the year would have been HK$1,472,000
(2008: HK$12,016,000) lower, and the Group’s and the Bank’s surplus
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in investment revaluation reserve would have been HK$34,342,000
(2008: HK$24,058,000) and HK$13,590,000 (2008: HK$8,134,000)
lower respectively. The lower equity sensitivity for trading securities
and financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss in
2009 compared with 2008 was attributable to a reduction in holdings of
equities. The higher equity sensitivity for available-for-sale securities
in 2009 compared with 2008 was attributable to additional holdings of
equities.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

The average daily revenue in 2009 earned from market risk-related
activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including trading-
related net interest income and other revenue was HK$510,000 (2008:

HK$342,000). The standard deviation of this daily revenue was
HK$1,069,000 (2008: HK$4,314,000).
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2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing
by the Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions,
including currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are
normally offset against other customer transactions or transactions with
the market. Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar
assets is hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in
the tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net
notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to manage the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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At 31 December 2009

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Placements with and loans
and advances to banks

Trading securities

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Advances and other accounts
(including tax recoverable and

deferred tax assets)

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Interests in associates
Investment properties
Interests in leasehold land

Other properties and equipment

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks

Trading liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit issued

Subordinated debt issued

Other accounts and accruals
(including current taxation and

deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Credit commitments

2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

The Group

BT %7
HK$ US$
BHFL BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,602,090 3,550,176
6,857,074 2,312,612
2,056,723 36,196
61,612 19,489
2,442,805 739,529
1,683,300 6,193,571
5,880,267 3,289,749
45,833,806 6,212,584
181,619 -
4,936 =
2,275,960 =
246,797 -
585,610 32,78
76,712,599 22,386,184
170,052 2,018,088
34,006 -
439,105 104,196
402,144 -
60,471,897 12,048,057
1,205,841 775,500
3,000,000 -
3,852,936 72,796
69,575,981 15,018,637
7,136,618 7,367,547
288473 (3,991,816)
18,218,779 1,026,273

W
A$
W T
HK$000

1,742,441

100,812
1,290

350,399
3,124,241
1,693,702

554,455

7,567,340

9,840

8,764,690

BAT
8,818,007
(1,250,667)

1,328,986

At
NZ$
W T
HK$000

1,021,850
507,267

16,204

687,680
197,271

2,434,828

56,363

740

3,863,080

8,198
3,928,381

(1,493,553)
1,435,407

786
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Aty
Others
BT
HK$’000

3,811,536

1,344,526
259,052
18,370

78,589
643,486
75,999

1,969,635

7,779

8,208,972

1,154,037

14,725

7,153,703

242,672

8,565,137

(356,165)

957,158

131,108

it
Total
Ny T
HK$’000

18,728,093

11,021,479
2,452,783
116,965

3,611,322
12,332,278
11,136,988

54,575,036
181,619
4,936
2,275,960
246,797
625,667

117,309,923

3,398,540
34,006
568,606

402,144
92,301,427
1,981,341
3,000,000

4,220,079
105,906,143
11,403,780
18,208

19,376,946
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2.2 i G EBE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) BMim b (#4) (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINEE B

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

(#5) (Continued)
PN iy The Bank
Bt EI Wt IS A L
HK$ US$ A$ NZ$ Others Total
BWTE  B%Trc  wBTxk  BW%Tx B%Tx #w%Tx
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$’000
R=OOM%E+=A At 31 December 2009
=+—H
jogi Assets
FEFEL S R & & Cash and short-term funds 8,418,009 3,478,796 1,742,441 1,021,850 3,808,399 18,469,495
Placements with and loans and
22 WA R B3k advances to banks 172,074 2,312,612 = 507,267 1,344,526 11,336,479
REEERBLESR Trading securities 2,030,942 36,196 100,812 = 259,052 2,427,002
fiEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 49,077 19,489 1,290 16,204 18,370 104,430
DATEERARGR  Financial assets designated at
ZEMEE fair value through profit or loss 2,436,016 672,199 350,399 - 78,589 3,537,203
Ak 2 Available-for-sale securities 1,503,587 6,193,571 3,124,241 687,680 643,486 12,152,565
1 2 5 58 Held-to-maturity securities 5,880,267 3,289,749 1,693,702 197,271 75,999 11,136,988
B AR Advances and other accounts
(BLFE T (el i3 ) (including tax recoverable) 44,712,189 6,233,293 554,455 4,556 1,969,338 53,473,831
g Al 4 Interests in subsidiaries 288,530 11,633 = = = 300,163
Fhf I R 45 Interests in jointly controlled entities 80,098 - - - = 80,098
REYE Investment properties 2,355,760 = = = - 2,355,760
T8 T s Interests in leasehold land 246,797 = = = = 246,797
HAh £ Kk Other properties and equipment 531,234 1,392 - - 6,834 539,460
HgE Total assets 75,704,580 22,248,930 7,567,340 2,434,828 8,204,593 116,160,271
ffE Liabilities
[HE Ze2 Deposits and balances from banks 263,491 2,018,088 - 56,363 1,154,037 3,491,979
RREET Z a Trading liabilities 34,006 = = = = 34,006
MEsmTE Derivative financial instruments 437,564 104,196 9,840 740 14,725 567,065
DIAFEE A E  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMEAR fair value through profit or loss 402,144 - - - - 402,144
BFHH Deposits from customers 61,588,529 12,524,183 8,764,754 3,871,205 7,154,022 93,902,693
BAT LA Certificates of deposit issued 1,205,841 775,500 = = - 1,981,341
BT BEER Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 = = = - 3,000,000
HARIA KA iR Other accounts and accruals
(455 B K (including current taxation and
EALHIEA ) deferred tax liabilities) 1,947,118 79,353 43,471 8,207 241,335 2,319,490
=Y Total liabilities 68,878,693  15501,320 8,818,071 3,936,515 8,564,119 105,698,718
GEAMRNFAEE  Net on-balance sheet position 6,825,887 6,747,610  (1,250,731)  (1,501,687)  (359,526) 10,461,553
G B E RN FHF A4 Off-balance sheet net notional position 288,473 (3,991,816) 1,328,986 1,435,407 957,158 18,208
5 AR Af Credit commitments 18,372,037 1,026,273 = 786 131,108 19,530,204

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR
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At 31 December 2008

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Placements with and loans and
advances to banks

Trading securities

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Advances and other accounts
(including tax recoverable and
deferred tax assets)

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Interests in associates
Investment properties

Interests in leasehold land
Other properties and equipment

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks

Trading liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit issued

Other accounts and accruals
(including current taxation and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Credit commitments

2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

(Continued)
The Group

o
HKS
BT
HK$°000

15,124,054

1,158,722
2,409,608
30,225

1,029,225
400,997
3,941,564

41,247,223
153,900
5,867
2,346,550
237,173
446,876

68,531,984

80,952
595,471
103,827

2,076,092
53,316,938
594,822

2,674,577
59,442,679
9,089,305
(432,863)

13,537,012

XL
USs$
BT
HK$°000

7,827,594
2,357,319
67,701
6,491
1,243,753

519,679
403,610

2,927,546

33,587

15,387,280

619,755

89,779

13,486,441
426,148

95,855
14,717,978
669,302
612,306

350,279

L
AS
BT
HK$000

5,425,201

375,571
74,014
650

7827
160,310
268,125

403,065

6,714,783

853

762

6,010,496

30,824
6,042,935
71,848

(4,365)

i
NZ$
BT
HK$000

3,156,102
449,500

1,530

53,597

3,669,688

1,681

3,620,973

13,225
3,635,879
33,809

(1,959)
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Hib
Others
BT
HKS$’000

4,527,949
528,130
258,510

1,479
75,513

404,960
107,119

376,155

9,304

6,289,119

212,924

1,557

5,458,778

78,229
5,751,488
537,631

(175451)

146,300

S
Total
BT
HKS$’000

36,060,920

4,869,242
2,809,833
40,375

2,356,318
1,539,543
4,720,418

44,962,948
153,900
5,867
2,346,550
237,173
489,767

100,592,854

914,484
595,471
197,606

2,076,092
82,493,626
1,020,970

2,892,710

90,190,959

10,401,895
(2332)

14,034,091
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2.2 i G EBE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) BMim b (#4) (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINEE B

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

94

(%) (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
T EN LT iy Al At
HKS$ US$ A$ NZ$ Others Total
BT W% W BT B%Tr B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZOONEFZA At 31 December 2008
=t—H
B Assets
BAE B4 RS Cash and short-term funds 14851383 7826494 5425221 3,156,100 4527945 35,787,145
Placements with and loans and
IR T2 AR OSB3 advances to banks 1315275 2,175,621 375,571 449,500 528,130 4,844,097
FERE Rz s Trading securities 2,300,034 66,942 74,014 - 258,510 2,699,500
ekt e, Derivative financial instruments 30,225 6,491 650 1,530 1,479 40,375
DATEERARGR  Financial assets designated at
2EMEE fair value through profit or loss 1,007,558 1,121,868 = = 75,513 2,204,939
{7 Available-for-sale securities 240,058 505,146 160,310 53,597 404,960 1,364,071
R ME R Held-to-maturity securities 3,941,564 403,610 268,125 - 107,119 4,720,418
B R H AR Advances and other accounts
(45T [ RiIE) (including tax recoverable) 40,250,930 2,948,663 403,065 8,959 375871 43,987,488
P A ] M Interests in subsidiaries 288,530 11,625 - - - 300,155
SR P R A Interests in jointly controlled entities 86,062 - - - - 86,062
Ry Investment properties 2,425,050 = = = - 2,425,050
e T Interests in leasehold land 237,173 - - - - 237,173
HAb 2 Rkl Other properties and equipment 400,384 1,855 = = 8,264 410,503
BEE Total assets 67,374,226 15,068,315 6,706,956 3,609,688 6,287,791 99,106,976
fif Liabilities
HEY:E¢ Deposits and balances from banks 177,980 619,755 853 = 212,924 1,011,512
THERT 2 Afk Trading liabilities 595,471 - - - - 595,471
Mt e T Derivative financial instruments 103,827 89,779 762 1,681 1,557 197,606
DIATEERARER  Financial liabilities designated at
ZERERE fair value through profit or loss 2,115,948 - - - - 2,115,948
RRf% Deposits from customers 53810535 13,779,028 6633286 3655306 5459377 83337532
BT Certificates of deposit issued 594,822 426,148 = = - 1,020,970
A BRI R Other accounts and accruals
(A EERIEA R (including deferred tax liabilities) 910,037 95,866 30,864 13,322 78,045 1,128,134
HBATRK Total liabilities 58,308,620 15,010,576 6,665,765 3,670,309 5,751,903 89,407,173
BEAEFKFATE  Net on-balance sheet position 9,063,606 57,739 41,191 (621) 535,888 9,699,803
G B E RN F A4 Off-balance sheet net notional position (432,863) 612,306 (4,365) (1,959)  (175,451) (2,332)
R BkIE Credit commitments 13,688,430 350,279 - - 146,800 14,185,509

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR
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2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Group
has established policies and systems to monitor its interest-sensitive
positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are all properly
managed under the limits approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and monitored
by the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement
within the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
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2.2 i G B (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) FIZ&mfr (4)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

96

B R AEZ P RHRE — HE B %5 Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis
Hr
L The Group
—fiA
EUT  —MANE  ZMAML —EUE LD E P g
Up to FE=MA s FhAE Over  Non-interest it
1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
EW T T T BT BT EW T EW T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZOON4E+ZH At 31 December 2009
=t—H
i Assets
B S R E S Cash and short-term funds 17,010,347 - - - = 1,717,746 18,728,093
Placements with and loans and
[f] 3 e M AE I B advances to banks 582,274 8,844,642 1,594,563 = = - 11,021,479
HERBRGRZ %% Trading securities 663,990 926,383 690,598 145,180 351 25781 2,452,783
fESmM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 116,965 116,965
MATEEE AR Financial assets designated at
LEMER fair value through profit or loss 7,445 176,287 666,267 2,761,323 - - 3,611,322
ki 7 Available-for-sale securities 2,708,992 7,873,946 23,749 1,085,176 - 640,415 12,332,278
REIMRS Held-to-maturity securities 4,446,951 4,887,762 533,831 1,244,296 24,148 - 11,136,988
B EIRE Advances and other accounts
(F0 48 ] Il SRR (including tax recoverable
EEHIBERE) and deferred tax assets) 43,799,510 8,082,019 219,905 375,951 100,372 1,997,279 54,575,036
S e e Interests in jointly controlled entities 20,506 33,285 = = = 127,828 181,619
BE Nt Interests in associates - - - - - 4,936 4,936
V4L Ik 3 Investment properties - - - - - 2,275,960 2,275,960
fRE T Interests in leasehold land - - - = = 246,797 246,797
oA R skt Other properties and equipment - - - - - 625,667 625,667
BgE Total assets 69,240,015 30,824,824 3,728,913 5,611,926 124,871 7,779,374 117,309,923
fif Liabilities
FEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 2,672,367 507,672 - - - 218,501 3,398,540
THRET 2 A& Trading liabilities 29,499 4,000 507 = = = 34,006
TEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 568,606 568,606
AT B ARG Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMA R fair value through profit or loss - 201,595 200,549 - - - 402,144
KPRt Deposits from customers 63,100,681 17,607,211 5,877,197 338,512 - 5,377,826 92,301,427
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 745,867 1,235,474 = = = = 1,981,341
BT RERR Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 - - 1,500,000 - 3,000,000
oA IR B g Other accounts and accruals
(6% BLE & (including current taxation
EERIAA ) and deferred tax liabilities) - 56,787 - - - 4163292 4,220,079
e s Total liabilities 67,348,414 20,312,739 6,078,253 338,512 1,500,000 10,328,225 105,906,143
R 2 B Total interest sensitivity gap
(REHE) (unadjusted) 1,891,601 10,512,085  (2,349,340) 5273414  (1,375,129)
FI%RAE TRAHZHE  Effect of interest rate derivatives 1,118,967 1,958,437 (390,714)  (2,880,624) -
IS R BE AR Total interest sensitivity gap
(4B R%) (adjusted) 3,010,568 12,470,522 (2,740,054) 2,392,790  (1,375,129)

TKBESRATA BRAH] =0 O JLARAEH):
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At 31 December 2009

Assets
Cash and short-term funds
Placements with and loans and
advances to banks
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Advances and other accounts
(including tax recoverable)
Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Investment properties
Interests in leasehold land
Other properties and equipment

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
Trading liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit issued
Subordinated debt issued
Other accounts and accruals
(including current taxation
and deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Total interest sensitivity gap
(unadjusted)

Effect of interest rate derivatives

Total interest sensitivity gap
(adjusted)

2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis

(Continued)
The Bank

—MA
EUT
Up to

1 month
EW T
HKS$’000

16,758,996
582,274
663,990

2,708,992
4,446,951

43,746,757
20,506

68,928,466

2,722,367
29,499

64,413,220
745,867
800,000

68,710,953

217,513

1,118,967

1,336,480

—fHA L
E=MA
1-3 months
il
HKS$’000

8,929,642
926,883

156,998
7,873,946
4,887,762
8,086,014

33,285

30,894,530

507,672
4,000

201,595
17,611,182
1,235,474
700,000

56,787

20,316,710

10,577,820

1,958,437

12,536,257

ZMANLE
F—AE
3-12 months
i
HKS$000

1,824,563
690,598

622,592
23,749
533,831

144,332

3,839,665

507

200,549
5,947,085

6,148,141

(2,308,476)

(390,714)

(2,699,190)

—HP L A
R4 Over
1-5 years 5 years
wHTE  EWTR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
145,180 351
2,757,613 -
1,085,176 -
1,244,296 24,148
180,968 98,965
5,413,233 123,464
339,560 -
- 1,500,000
339,560 1,500,000
5,073,673 (1,376,536)
(2,880,624) -
2,193,049  (1,376,536)
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Aat B
Non-interest
bearing
L
HKS$000

1,710,499

104,430

460,702

1,216,795
300,163
26,307
2,355,760
246,197
539,460

6,960,913

261,940

567,065

5,591,646

2,262,703

8,683,354

fit

Total
BT
HKS$’000

18,469,495

11,336,479
2,427,002
104,430

3,537,203
12,152,565
11,136,988

53,473,831
300,163
80,098
2,355,760
246,797
539,460

116,160,271

3,491,979
34,006
567,065

402,144
93,902,693

1,981,341
3,000,000

2,319,490

105,698,718
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<2 il Jl B A B (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 i G B (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) FIFE i (4) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

%‘F&EEZNE’E@MF HE B

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis

98

Hr (45) (Continued)
A H The Group
—fa A
FUT  —MAME  ZEAME —4EYE LD Yiig:)
Up to Z=fA 4 FHE Over  Non-interest At
I month  1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
T BT BT BT T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
RZOON4EFZH At 31 December 2008
“tH
i Assets
B S Cash and short-term funds 35,283,685 - = = = 777,035 36,060,920
Placements with and loans and
EE:Y39/ ¢ advances to banks 347,205 4,376,012 146,025 = = 4869242
RERERBZ® 4 Trading securities 317,981 592,328 1,358,462 417,575 13,154 110,333 2,809,833
ks EEIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 40,375 40,375
A TEEZA Financial assets designated at
&M Eé? fair value through profit or loss 414,764 199,808 610,072 1,131,674 - - 2,356,318
AP 2 R Available-for-sale securities 187,922 385,118 433,240 = = 533,263 1,539,543
BB S Held-to-maturity securities 2,113,891 2,320,196 108,454 149,968 27,909 - 4,720,418
B IRE Advances and other accounts
(F0 48 T Il OB IE (including tax recoverable
REREERE) and deferred tax assets) 37250380 4,994,199 477,635 411,085 149,735 1679914 44,962,948
S e e Interests in jointly controlled entities 2,173 37,571 = - - 94,156 153,900
BE Nt Interests in associates - - - - - 5,807 5,867
4Lk 3 Investment properties = = = = = 2,346,550 2,346,550
MG L b s Interests in leasehold land - - - - = 237,173 237,173
Hoth a3 Rt Other properties and equipment = = = = = 489,767 489,767
mgE Total assets 75,938,001 12,905,232 3,133,888 2,110,302 190,798 6,314,633 100,592,854
fii Liabilities
HE =" Deposits and balances from banks 641,515 103,491 48,736 - - 120,742 914,484
THRAT 2 A& Trading liabilities 359,995 234,961 = 515 = = 595,471
ks EEIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 197,606 197,606
UATEEZA Financial liabilities designated
ZERE F at fair value through profit or loss 482,294 521,725 864,586 207,487 - - 2,076,092
EFEHR Deposits from customers 57,740,908 18,300,803 2,862,653 48,032 - 3,541,230 82,493,626
BT 2 AR Certificates of deposit issued 403,672 617,298 = = = = 1,020,970
FOMfTE R R Other accounts and accruals
(B E MBI R (including current taxation and
RAEBIEA ) deferred tax liabilities) = = = = - 2892710 2,892,710
M Total liabilities 59,628,384 19,778,278 3,775,975 256,034 - 6,752,288 90,190,959
5 R 2 B Total interest sensitivity gap
i‘:?“‘ﬂ% (unadjusted) 16,309,617 (6,873,046) (642,087) 1,854,268 190,798
FIRAETHA#NZ®  Effect of interest rate derivatives 973,151 (438,108) 536,645 (1,175,996) -
SRR £ I A Total interest sensitivity gap
(&%) (adjusted) 17,282,768 (7,311,154) (105,442) 678,272 190,798
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2 ik JE by B B (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 Wi ARE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) FIZ i (#5) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
B E KA P RGPURE — HEE RS Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis
B (48) (Continued)
N The Bank
—fiA
BFUT  —MAME  Z@EALE —4pE REME At
Up to F=MAA F—iE ERE Over  Non-interest S
I month  1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
T T T T T T T T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
HZO0N4E+ZA At 31 December 2008
=t—H
B Assets
B I 4 Cash and short-term funds 35,014,023 = = = = 773,122 35,787,145
Placements with and loans
[F] 3 7 ST R Bk and advances to banks 347,205 4,110,867 386,025 = = = 4,844,097
FERE Rz Bh Trading securities 317,981 592,328 1,358,462 417,575 13,154 - 2,699,500
ST Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 40,375 40,375
AT (RS AR IR Financial assets designated
ZEMERE at fair value through profit or loss 392,330 154,837 551,454 1,106,318 - - 2,204,939
ik 7 Available-for-sale securities 187,922 385,118 433,240 = = 357,791 1,364,071
FREIME S Held-to-maturity securities 2,113,891 2,320,196 108,454 149,968 27,909 = 4,720,418
BRI AR Advances and other accounts
(G4 B E) (including tax recoverable) 37,185,592 5,001,143 353,974 222,088 147,921 1,076,770 43,987,488
I £ Interests in subsidiaries = = = = = 300,155 300,155
LT P I E R R Interests in jointly controlled entities 2,173 37,571 = = = 26,318 86,062
EVd L/ 3 Investment properties - - - - - 2,425,050 2,425,050
& L i 2s Interests in leasehold land = = = = = 237,173 237,173
H b3 B Other properties and equipment = = = = = 410,503 410,503
g Total assets 75,581,117 12,602,060 3,191,609 1,895,949 188,984 5,647,257 99,106,976
A1 Liabilities
GBS Deposits and balances from banks 691,515 103,491 48,736 - - 167,770 1,011,512
O T 2 A& Trading liabilities 359,995 234,961 = 515 = = 595,471
it emTHE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 197,606 197,606
MUAFE (RS AR IR Financial liabilities designated
ZEmaE at fair value through profit or loss 503,253 540,622 864,586 207,487 = = 2,115,948
B Deposits from customers 58,290,894 18,371,170 2,873,679 50,162 - 3,751,627 83,337,532
v O Certificates of deposit issued 403,672 617,298 = = = = 1,020,970
FAbHRIE R AR Other accounts and accruals
(B FELRIAG ) (including deferred tax liabilities) = = = = = 1,128,134 1,128,134
Ak Total liabilities 60,249,329 19,867,542 3,787,001 258,164 - 5,245,137 89,407,173
SRR £ I A Total interest sensitivity gap
(AT ) (unadjusted) 15,331,788 (7,265,482) (595,392) 1,637,785 188,984
FIRAETHANZ®  Effect of interest rate derivatives 973,151 (438,108) 536,645 (1,175,996) =
Tl S SRR e 2 BE AR A Total interest sensitivity gap
(%) (adjusted) 16,304,939 (7,703,590) (58,747) 461,789 188,984
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2 i G B (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) FIZ&mfr (4)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

SR B SR T CRAAPE
{56 AR 40 R A) R = 28 W B0 B R

The table below summarises the effective interest rate by major
currencies of monetary financial instruments not carried at fair value

. through profit or loss:
AL The Group

Wt e Wi # HoAts L

HKS$ US$ A$ NZ$ Others Total

% % % % % %
BRZOOMR%E+F"H At 31 December 2009
=+—H
2953 Assets
FEAF B4 R EE 4 Cash and short-term funds 0.16 0.38 3.1 2.77 0.46 0.74
Placements with and loans and
] 3 78 MR A I R advances to banks 0.29 0.60 = 275 1.92 0.67
Ak s Available-for-sale securities 0.98 1.29 4.63 3.40 1.20 2.20
FEIME S Held-to-maturity securities 0.39 2.24 4.80 3.28 0.81 1.68
HEAR Advances to customers 2.04 2.65 4.18 = 4.37 2.20
A Liabilities
EEYea¢ Deposits and balances from banks 0.19 0.30 - 2.75 2.11 0.95
KEHER Deposits from customers 0.12 0.18 3.23 2.12 0.46 0.53
BT ZAFHE Certificates of deposit issued 0.38 0.53 = = = 0.43
1T 2 RAB AR Subordinated debt issued 3.94 - _ _ _ 3.94
BZOON#E+"H At 31 December 2008
=+—H
B Assets
FEfF B4 M EME 4 Cash and short-term funds 0.99 1.48 433 5.36 1.73 2.07
Placements with and loans and

]38 A I R advances to banks 1.69 2.22 4.40 5.10 248 2.56
Tk 2 B S Available-for-sale securities 0.71 1.68 5.06 7.68 0.73 1.74
RIS Held-to-maturity securities 2.72 3.48 5.74 = 4.01 3.00
BPE Advances to customers 2.66 3.80 7.16 = 6.66 2.80
A Liabilities
] 173 Deposits and balances from banks 0.07 0.41 6.45 - 4.65 1.37
EFHR Deposits from customers 0.89 121 3.99 4.83 1.49 1.40
BT ZAFHE Certificates of deposit issued 2.59 3.56 = = - 3.00
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2.3 i B & A b

U B g ) 6 AR 4 TR RE S B
R H AT AR AT - R R
BE SRR T - WATRE® T2
BB R RERE A A 4R U 5 SR B EE ROR
REE 7R ol B o A< B2 I 45 R T W B
W B IR > DUBATAR B R B K 1
SRS ~ BT HRCUN ~ BRE
EHFRR - DL A RS S XA &
HEAMETARN®RR -

(a) B B2 R B PR JF

ACSE R T B M B DA B A 4 o
SRV R <& 8 INVARIEU B R IFT R S S
Kz B eRUERARERSHNESS
> AEFREIMREFEEZEEH
FE o AR BRI R TS B W T 0 i 2 RE A
1o WHHA - RIAGZBEEREE
o RNE A RS E T R AN A
B AEHPHEREAREUSZEHE
MBS > TR - o PR
JE 2 BA BB A B 2 B
B BEAR 7 0 — BB o WA RN B AR
WA E SR AR
s PR > B S RGERREZ AL -

V|

AL BRI E T B R B A R
Lo 3 30 6 B < B 2 FRBH - DA PR AS 42 1
AN EAT B S FR - A RE i
BB G ME o TR R KT B E
BRAEH < i B e > Al B A
ZEGYAT o LB IR AR IEH 3
AR - M IR ST M S — BT 5 fa
15O AR B IR P AT o B E &
BREFHENMEREEGRERGR

gl: o
(b) ZIH 7

THERKEEEABKIZGMEMA
BR NI AR E 2 BE AL - 7
frimz B EIIREREERELRA
C 8 2 R By A A R BLE W B 2
K o

2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments
to lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash
resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits,
loan draw-downs and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The Group has established policies and systems to monitor and control
its liquidity position on a daily basis. The Treasury Department manages
the Group’s day-to-day funding by monitoring future cash flows to
ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment
of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Group
maintains an active presence in money markets to enable this to happen
and a portfolio of high quality liquid assets that can easily be liquidated
to meet emergency funding needs. The Group also monitors the off-
balance sheet cash flow activities, such as loan commitments, contingent
liabilities under guarantees and standby facilities received, as part of
its liquidity risk management process. Sources of liquidity are regularly
reviewed by the Treasury Department to maintain diversification in
currency, geography, provider, product and term.

Limits for liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio and maturity mismatch
amount have been set to ensure that the Group is able to meet its funding
requirements. All limits are approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and monitored
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee. Stress scenario
analysis for normal business conditions, an institution-specific crisis
and a general market crisis are also conducted on a regular basis to
assess the liquidity risk of the Group. The liquidity management process
is regularly reported to the Management Committee and the Board of
Directors.

(b) Maturity analysis

The tables on the following pages analyse the Group’s assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The analysis
in respect of insurance liabilities is based on the estimated timing of net
cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance liabilities at balance
sheet date.
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2.3 MEE & mbE ()

(b) ZIH 07 (#)

A 5 Wl

RZOONE
tZAEtH

K
EHe LENES

I MR B
HIFRE R L%
eI
UAFREERGA
ik eREE
Al 6 2 %
HESES
S R IR

(@A B R

ERERREE)

LR
B vl i

e UES

g L

B MEE ]

fEE

Al
FEZiE X
LARIE T 2R
ke IR
PUAFREERA
itk 2MAR
R
B2
T2 REEA
HAbIRE B
(BEEMHER
REBIERE)

BAR

L Eop it

AKEESATA RN R —

At 31 December 2009

Assets
Cash and short-term funds
Placements with and loans
and advances to banks
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Advances and other accounts
(including tax recoverable
and deferred tax assets)
Interests in jointly controlled
entities
Interests in associates
Investment properties
Interests in leasehold land
Other properties and equipment

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
Trading liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit issued
Subordinated debt issued
Other accounts and accruals
(including current taxation
and deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

O O JUFAFH

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The Group

—WA —WANE ZWANE

P 2 CTNN
Repayable Up to
on demand 1 month

BT Rt

HK$000  HK$’000

2,372,191 16,286,303

- 138,403
- 663,991

- 2,184,703

1,293,338 959,412

3,605,529 20,232,812

27,682 2,663,186
- 29499

36,043,388 32,435,119
- 109,996

422,779 1,231,669
36,093,849 36,469,469

(33,028,320) (16,236,657)

Z=MA

13
months
LS ST
HK$°000

8,808,392
826,071

158,960

3,224,146

2,776,782

15,794,358

170,360
4,000

201,595
17,607,211
119,988

636,391
18,739,545

(2,945,187)

Eoli
312
months
W
HK$°000

1,792,238
690,598

665,516
1,883,014
2,140,156

8,736,398

15,907,920

337312
507

200,549
5,877,197
1,651,357

468,115
8,535,037

7,372,883

—4EpPE
ELE
15

years
T
HK$°000

282,446
245,991

2,761,322
9,730,493
3,466,898

24,662,958

53,791

41,203,899

338,512
100,000

742,378
1,180,890

40,023,009

AE L
Over 5
years

R
HK$000

351

25,54
78,356
121,085

15,578,196

15,303,512

3,000,000

414821
3414821

12,388,691

HEREBTH
Undated
e
HKS$’000

69,599

25,781
116,965

640,415

567,952

127,821
4,936
2,275,960
246,797
625,667

4,701,893

568,606

303,926

872,532

3,829,361

it

Total
BT
HKS$’000

18,728,093

11,021,479
2,452,783
116,965

3,611,322
12,332,278
11,136,988

54,575,036

181,619
4936
2,275,960
246,797
625,667

117,309,923

3,398,540
34,006
568,606

402,144
92,301,427
1,981,341
3,000,000

4,220,079

105,906,143

11,403,780



2.3 BN AR BE (4) 2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) ZIHI 01 (4) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
N} The Bank

—WA —EANE Z@ANE  —ENL
MR ST E=WA 2F ELE BENE

Repayable Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over JEGENT R At
on demand 1 month months months years Syears  Undated Total

T #RTa EWTx BWTx #WT #WTx #RTx #WTx
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000

RZOON4E At 31 December 2009

A ES i

i Assets

FEAEH 4 I M4 Cash and short-term funds 2,361,811 16,038,085 - = = = 69,599 18,469,495
Placements with and loans and

FEEBEMRAT advances to banks - 138403 8,893,392 2,022,238 282,446 = - 11,336479

FEREMR 2%  Trading securities - 663,991 826071 690,598 245991 351 - 2,427,002

fitk &M IR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 104430 104430

YR HIEGIN Financial assets designated at fair

Rk EMERE  value through profit or loss = - 156998 622,592 2,757,613 - - 3,537,203

{2 Available-for-sale securities = = - 1,883,014 9,730,493 78356 460,702 12,152,565

ERERE ki Held-to-maturity securities - 2184703 3224146 2,140,156 3,466,898 121,085 - 11,136,988

o GERIlE Advances and other accounts
(R ECRIE)  (including tax recoverable) 1,312,499 539,617 2,702,392 8,455,818 24,399,000 15572,712 491,793 53,473,831

12PNl £ Interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - 300,163 300,163
Interests in jointly controlled

HEGHERES  entities - - 7 - 51 - 26300 80,098
REmE Investment properties = = = = = - 2355760 2,355,760
HE T 45 Interests in leasehold land - - - - - - 46797 246,797
HA % Rkt Other properties and equipment - = - = = - 539460 539,460
g Total assets 3,674,310 19,564,799 15,803,000 15,814,416 40,936,232 15,772,504 4,595,004 116,160,271
ffd Liabilities

EES2 Deposits and balances from banks 271,121 2,713,186 170,360 337,312 = = - 3491979
THRETZEfE  Trading liabilities - 29,499 4,000 507 - - - 34,006
MEEMTH Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 567,065 567,065

MAFEERA Financial liabilities designated at

HERZAMARE  fair value through profit or loss - - 201,595 200,549 = - - 402,144
KFTiH Deposits from customers 36,359,348 33,645,518 17,611,182  5947,085 339,560 - - 93,902,693
Bz Certificates of deposit issued - 10999 119,988 1,651,357 100,000 = - 1981341
Wit 2 B EE Subordinated debt issued = = = = - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
FOMARIA K R Other accounts and accruals

(AHEEWBIAR  (including current taxation and

BILRUEA &) deferred tax liabilities) INAT4 874389 567,956 69,441 2417 413459 19354 2,319,490
AAfRK Total liabilities 37,002,943 37,372,588 18,675,081 8,206,251 441977 3413459 586419 105,698,718
WHELEMFH  Netliquidity gap (33,328,633) (17,807,789) (2,872,075) 7,608,165 40,494,255 12,359,045 4,008,585 10,461,553
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2.3 MEE & mbE ()

(b) ZIH 07 (#)

A H

HZOON&E At 31 December 2008
+ZHZ1—R

423 Assets

FEAH 4 R G4  Cash and short-term funds

Placements with and loans and

RIS advances to banks

BIFEERG 2% Trading securities

i afTA Derivative financial instruments

DYNEHEEIN Financial assets designated at fair
Bk 2MEE  value through profit or loss

k7 % Available-for-sale securities

EREE LS Held-to-maturity securities

B R AR Advances and other accounts
(AT BB R (including tax recoverable and
BIEBEERE) deferred tax assets)

Interests in jointly controlled

SR E R entities

=gl 2 Interests in associates

REWE Investment properties

HE TR Interests in leasehold land

BN EY T Other properties and equipment

BEE Total assets

ffd Liabilities

HEL:Z Deposits and balances from banks

THRETZAME  Trading liabilities

MESRmTHE Derivative financial instruments

DAFEERA Financial liabilities designated at
BEEZAMAR  fair value through profit or loss

VARYE Deposits from customers

Birz e Certificates of deposit issued

HAHRIE KR Other accounts and accruals
(AFEWBIAR  (including current taxation and
BRERAARE) deferred tax liabilities)

Baf Total liabilities

B SAMFH  Net liquidity gap

TKPESATA A F — 0 O JUFELER

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The Group
—fiA —WALE
MFeEE gt 2=
Repayable Upto 1-3
on demand 1 month months
L ST L T W
HK$°000  HKS$’000  HKS’000
1,543,584 34,499,774 -
- - 4319,154
- 317,981 518314
- 392,330 172,105
- 1,986,912 1,788,778
1,363,872 1222967 2,079,796
- 2 16
2907456 38419966 8,878,163
124,957 637,300 46,794
- 359,995 234,961
- - 300,100
24,490,668 36,791,470 18,300,303
- - 347413
360,498 402,983 281,548
24976,123 38,191,748 19,511,619
(22,068,607) 228,218 (10,633,456)

WAL
E—F
3-12
months
W T T
HKS$°000

149,025
1,358,462

612,263
724,028
569,566

5,338,284

5,953

8,757,581

105,433

1,213,449
2,862,653
343,677

606,351
5,131,563

3,626,018

—4EbE
ENEF
1-5

years
T
HK$’000

401,063
491,589

1,159,497
196,974
244 878

19,656,366

53,791

22,204,158

515

562,543
48,032
329,880

670,674
1,611,644

20,592,514

HELE
Over 5
years

BT
HK$000

13,154

20,123
85,278
130,284

14,689,521

14,938,360

276,363
276,363

14,661,997

S H
Undated
BT
HK$’000

17,562

110,333
40,375

533,263

612,142

94,138
5,867
2,346,550
237,173
489,767

4,487,170

197,606

294,293

491,899

3,995,271

&
Total
WHT T
HK$°000

36,060,920

4,869,242
2,809,833
40,375

2,356,318
1,539,543
4,720,418

44,962,948
153,900
5,867
2,346,550

237,173
489,767

100,592,854

914,484
595471
197,606
2,076,092

82,493,626
1,020,970

2,892,710
90,190,959

10,401,895



2.3 WBE &Rk (%) 2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) ZIH 07 (#) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
—MA —MALL =MANE —FMUEE
B BT =N B4 nE AEME
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 1-5 Over5 MEzEMIH M ARt
on demand 1 month months months years years Undated Total
WL BT BT EMTr wWT w¥Tr B¥To EMTx
HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS$’000  HK$’000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$°000
RZO0 N4 At 31 December 2008
[SUET
423 Assets
FEGEH 4 JJE M4 Cash and short-term funds 1,539,465 34,230,118 = = = = 17,562 35,787,145
Placements with and loans and
W MFFHOREK advances to banks - ~ 4054009 389,025 401,063 - 4,844,097
FEREMG 2%  Trading securities - 317,981 518314 1358462 491,589 13,154 - 2,699,500
MEEMTHR Derivative financial instruments = = = = = = 40375 40,375
DAT-EEEA Financial assets designated at fair
Bk EMERE  value through profit or loss - 392330 154837 551454 1,106,318 = — 2,204,939
it 7 Bk Available-for-sale securities = = — 724028 196,974 85278 357,791 1364071
EREE LS Held-to-maturity securities - 1986912 1788778 569,566 244878 130,284 4720418
BRI Advances and other accounts
(A CBIE)  (including tax recoverable) 1335334 1,089,761 1994562 5,034,673 19423,600 14,600,308 509,250 43,987,488
Wi Interests in subsidiaries = = = = = - 300,155 300,155
Interests in jointly controlled
SR R entities = 2 16 5,953 53,791 = 26,300 86,062
REE Investment properties = = = = = — 2425050 2,425,050
HE T 45 Interests in leasehold land = = = = = - BB BT
HAbE Kot Other properties and equipment = = = = = - 410503 410,503
BERE Total assets 2874799 38,017,104 8,510,516 8,633,161 21,918,213 14,829,024 4324159 99,106,976
fifk Liabilities
HEZ:24 Deposits and balances from banks 171,985 687,300 46,794 105,433 = = 1,011,512
THRETZEfE  Trading liabilities - 359,995 234,961 - 515 - - 595471
MAELMTHE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 197,606 197,606
DAFEERA Financial liabilities designated at
BEE24MAR  fair value through profit or loss = — 300,100 1233966 581,882 = - 2,115,948
KFfiH Deposits from customers 24995399 37,047,122 18,371,170 2,873,679 50,162 - - 83,337,532
Bl Certificates of deposit issued = - JTAI3 0 33677 329880 = - 1,020970
AR K iR Other accounts and accruals
(B EIERIH (including deferred tax
Ef8) liabilities) 168,997 261,860 184,659 22,824 973 274,537 14,284 1,128,134
BAfR Total liabilities 25,336,381 38,356,277 19485,097 4,779,579 963,412 274,537 211,890 89,407,173
WEHEREEHFHM  Netliquidity gap (22,461,582)  (339,173) (10,974,581) 3,853,582 20954801 14554487 4,112,269 9,699,803
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2.3 WA & E b (4)
(b) ZIH 07 (#)

A B A B H AR 20 A C A A2
£2T B G A AR T G B RE B
ooy R PT A ARG 3 PR AR A il
7E > HEBIAREAME > K HE 5
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A RELRE L A RE D o th AT RE S s 1R
B

A SRR AR A F AR C A LA AT 32 1
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(c) ERIFIH H 2 R IT B B 2 i

THEEOIWALEBREERABREE
AREN H AT A A AT A S
Al R R R B B R BB e
17 R e B 0 B 4 30 B 40 o A9 i T H A
Gr T R ANAE B ARG A R K
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TE A% A i 48 5 2 SO0 20y b /€ 2 R A 4T
BB & i

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the commitment
because the Group does not generally expect the third party to draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable
by the Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities,
and by estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities
at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.



2.3 MEE & mbE ()
(c) &R R H 2 R 97 B B & i 2

(%)

A 5 Wl

REOON
FoR= N

FM Bl AR
IR
FEZiE S
LARIE T 2B
DUAFEERA
Bl EHA K
EAipais oo
FITZRERA
Hit A

WAReRE
AT

R-OON
FEREE-H

FERERRAN
Bk
GEa
AT LA
WATR(EEA
Rl SRS
B fa
EbAL

kB EHE
keI

The Group
—fiA
Mg BT
Repayable Up to
on demand 1 month
EHTT BRI
HK$’000  HKS$°000
At 31 December 2009
Non-derivative cash flow
liabilities
Deposits from customers 36,045,385 32,493,961
Deposits and balances from banks 227,682 2,604,125
Trading liabilities - 29,500
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss - 680
Certificates of deposit issued - 110,755
Subordinated debt issued - 4,454
Other liabilities 420815 1,199,217
Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial instruments - 6,846,018
36,693,882 43,348,710
—filA]
B C/a
Repayable Upto
on demand l\month
BT BT
HK$’000  HKS$°000
At 31 December 2008
Non-derivative cash flow
liabilities
Deposits from customers 24,493,347 36,904,509
Deposits and balances from banks 124,957 637,812
Trading liabilities = 360,000
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss - 3,204
Certificates of deposit issued - 4133
Other liabilities 357,818 307,028
Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial instruments - 562,082
24.976,122 38,778,788

—WANUL
Z=MA
1-3

months
BT
HKS$’000

17,651,517
171,064
4,006

202,255
121,397

25,082
606,811

4,798,866
23,580,998

—fHALE
£=MA
13

months
LSO
HK$000

18,396,558
47,920
235,006

313,465
351,015
222,966

158,867

19,725,797

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

ZWANUE
Eoi 5
312
months
ST
HKS$’000

5,925,129
341,364
506

200,680
1,654,892
88,609
443,173

117,252
8,771,605

=MAMNE
B
3-12
months
EHT T
HK$°000

2,903,053
108,512
6

1,241,082
356,686
589,803

45,117

5,244,259

—HNE
EhA
15
years
W T
HK$’000

345401

100,088
472,578
740,810

35,842
1,694,719

—4EPE
EFika
1-5

years
T
HK$’000

51,470

512
562,178

335,817
669,706

24,306

1,643,989
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AL
Over 5
years

R
HK$000

3,753,562
414,821

4,168,383

AL E
Over 5
years

BT
HK$000

276,363

276,363

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

JEREDTH B
Undated
ST
HKS$’000

303,926

303,926

PRI H
Undated
T
HK$°000

29493

294,293

it
Total

R
HK$000

92,461,393
3404235
34,012

403,615
1,987,132
4,344,285
4129573

11,797,978

118,562,223

i
Total
T
HK$000

82,748,937
919,201
595,524

2,119,949
1,047,651
2,117977

790,372

90,939,611
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2.3 MEE & mbE ()

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) GRIFIHZ KIrBH W E  (c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

(%)
ENE) The Bank
—fiA
My 12 CUNN
Repayable Up to
on demand 1 month
i R L R
HK$’000  HK$’000
RZOOME At 31 December 2009
+ZHA=+—H
Non-derivative cash flow
HMEBREREAR  labilities
BFEH Deposits from customers 36,361,345 33,716,461
EE Deposits and balances from banks 271,121 2,714,126
THEETZ AR  Trading liabilities - 29,500
MUAFEERA Financial liabilities designated at
BHELEMEAR  fair value through profit or loss - 680
Lidipas co Certificates of deposit issued - 110,755
BT mARR Subordinated debt issued = 4,454
Hib& & Other liabilities 370,510 830,758
ik Blaw = Derivative cash flow
MEEmMTR Derivative financial instruments - 6,846,018
37,002,976 44,252,752
—fiA
B C/a
Repayable Upto
on demand 1 month
BT BT
HK$000  HKS$’000
RZO0 N At 31 December 2008
T+ZAZ+—H
Non-derivative cash flow
HRASERRAM  liabilities
BP0 Deposits from customers 24,998,078 37,160,629
B Deposits and balances from banks 171,985 687,812
RHRETZEfE  Trading liabilities ~ 360,000
UATEEEA Financial liabilities designated at
HalkZSMEE  fair value through profit or loss - 3,350
Bt Certificates of deposit issued = 4133
HitaE Other liabilities 166,318 165,474
itk Bla w2 Derivative cash flow
ik amTE Derivative financial instruments - 560,082

25,336,381 38,943,480

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

—WANUL
Z=MA
1-3

months
BT
HKS$’000

17,655,519
171,064
4,006

202,255
121,397

25,082
538,350

4,798,866
23,516,539

—fHALE
£=MA
13

months
LSO
HK$000

18,467,160
47,920
235,006

313,596
351,015
126,005

158,867

19,699,569

ZWANUE
Eoi 5
312
months
ST
HKS$’000

5,995,812
341,364
506

200,680
1,654,892
88,609
44,464

117,252
8,443,579

=MANE
B
3-12
months
T
HK$°000

2914321
108,512
6

1,262,424
356,686
206,152

45,117

4,893,218

—HNE
EhA
15

years

W T
HK$’000

346,452

100,088
472,578
849

35,842
955,809

—4ERE
EFika
1-5

years
T
HK$’000

53,657

512

581,858
335,817

24,306

996,150

AL
Over 5
years

R
HK$000

3,753,562
413,459

4,167,021

AL E
Over 5
years

T
HK$000

274,537

274,537

JEREDTH B
Undated
ST
HKS$’000

19,354

19,354

HEEE A M
Undated
T
HK$°000

14284

14,284

it
Total

R
HK$000

94,075,589
3497675
34,012

403,615
1,987,132
4,344,285
2,217,744

11,797,978

118,358,030

i
Total
T
HK$000

83,593,845
1,016,229
595,524

2,161,228
1,047,651
952,770

790,372

90,157,619



2.3 BN AR BE (4) 2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) BEAEZXLUSIEA (d) Off-balance sheet items

AL The Group
—4P Lk
—4EEU T A LA L
Not later 1-5 Over 5 it
than 1 year years years Total
W Tou W Tou W Tou W Tou
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R_ZOONA: At 31 December 2009
AV ES R
HUFORYE Loan commitments 17,639,248 - - 17,639,248
Y8 (3 B oAt 4 Guarantees and other financial
il 4 facilities
— ERE R A — Guarantees and standby
(BRI letters of credit 679,349 = = 679,349
— Documentary and
—fE ik commercial letters of credit 1,058,349 - - 1,058,349
AT A RYE Operating lease commitments 27,218 51,649 = 78,867
EAKYE Capital commitments 6,012 - = 6,012
At Total 19,410,176 51,649 - 19,461,825
—&EME
—HEHLLT FERAE TR |
Not later 1-5 Over 5 Sl
than 1 year years years Total
L I T T T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HZOO N4 At 31 December 2008
+oAZ+—H
ORI Loan commitments 13,503,060 = = 13,503,060
Y PR3 B At 4 i Guarantees and other financial
T facilities
— PERE K — Guarantees and standby
fig AR letters of credit 409,492 = = 409,492
— Documentary and
— fE K commercial letters of credit 121,539 - - 121,539
BEMA RS Operating lease commitments 25,655 44,380 7,590 77,625
BT Capital commitments 45,127 = = 45,127
GEis Total 14,104,873 44,380 7,590 14,156,843
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2.3 WHE & mb (4)
(d) BEAEZLUSIEA ()

ENF)

ROON4E
ISV ES S

TSR
IR E R A4
HE
— W ORE Rl
f& R

— fE AR
AT A RYE
B AR

A

R=OO0 A
+=A=4—H

TR I
IR B M 4
WK
— WRPRE R
& Fk

— R Ak
CE JEROER
BRI

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Bank

At 31 December 2009

Loan commitments
Guarantees and other financial
facilities
— Guarantees and standby
letters of credit
— Documentary and
commercial letters of credit
Operating lease commitments
Capital commitments

Total

At 31 December 2008

Loan commitments
Guarantees and other financial
facilities
— Guarantees and standby
letters of credit
— Documentary and
commercial letters of credit
Operating lease commitments
Capital commitments

Total

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

AT
Not later
than 1 year

T
HK$’000

17,720,861

750,994

1,058,349
23,671
5,378

19,559,253

—FEHLUT
Not later
than 1 year

BT T
HK$’000

13,587,833

476,137
121,539

24,388
42,991

14,252,888

(d) Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

—4EUE
A
1-5

years
T
HK$’000

49,896

49,896

—FE
FHAE
1-5

years
BT
HK$’000

44,380

44,380

LA L
Over 5
years
T
HK$°000

FAERL E
Over 5
years

T T
HK$’000

7,590

7,590

ait
Total
BT
HK$°000

17,720,861

750,994
1,058,349

73,567
5,378

19,609,149

i

Total
T
HK$’000

13,587,833

476,137
121,539

76,358
42,991

14,304,858
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2.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework to
identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Operational
Risk Management Policy, approved by the Management Committee,
defines responsibilities of various committees, business units and
supporting departments and encompasses various tools including control
self-assessment, risk event management and key risk indicators to
facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk. The Group
also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business lines,
supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority and
responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been clearly
defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures including
risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training and regular
verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts are used in
the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure or natural disaster. Adequate insurance is taken
out to cover a reasonable extent of operational risk.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of
the operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides
an objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system
is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial
liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s balance sheet are estimated as follows:

(a) Balances, placement with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore
the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b) Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for impairment.
All except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed the
fair value of advances to customers and trade bills, after taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.
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2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances bearing
interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from banks
and deposits from customers without quoted market price is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar
remaining maturity. As they are normally less than one year, their fair
values are approximately equal to their carrying values.

(d) Certificates of deposit and subordinated debt issued

The fair value of certificates of deposit and subordinated debt issued
is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted market
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used
based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term
to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of
deposit and subordinated debt after taking into account the relevant
yield curve and noted that the total fair value is not materially
different from the total carrying value.

(e) Other accounts and accruals
The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are

normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.

Except for the above balance sheet items, the following table summarises
the carrying amounts and fair values of other financial assets and
liabilities not presented on the Group’s balance sheet at their fair value.

A R AR AT The Group and the Bank
W T 4] 2 FEAE
Carrying value Fair value
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008
#W T T W T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
4 b B Financial assets
FrE BRI Held-to-maturity securities 11,136,988 4,720,418 11,170,002 4,720,314
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2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether
the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market assumptions. These two
types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in
its valuations where possible.
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2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
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The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value hierarchy

GIHT into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
A H The Group
B e BE)E fit
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EWT T EW T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R OO At 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
HE Assets
FrEEE &
it Trading securities:
— BRI — Debt securities 2,426,043 959 —- 2,427,002
— TR G 5 S — Equity securities and
BgH4 investment fund 25,781 - - 25,781
it m TR Derivative financial instruments - 76,144 40,821 116,965
AL PHEE RS Financial assets designated
Bk at fair value through
BREE profit or loss:
— B — Debt securities 3,534,561 - 76,761 3,611,322
AL E 2 TS Available-for-sale securities:
— B — Debt securities 8,316,196 3,375,667 - 11,691,863
— TR G 5 S — Equity securities and
G4 investment fund 321,823 39,267 279,325 640,415
14,624,404 3,492,037 396,907 18,513,348
fifi Liabilities
L HRIE T 2 Btk Trading liabilities 34,006 = = 34,006
ATA 4 T E. Derivative financial instruments — 84,850 483,756 568,606
AL HEE S A Financial liabilities designated
Bl at fair value through
SRl A fE profit or loss — 402,144 — 402,144
34,006 486,994 483,756 1,004,756
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ENF)

R OO
FoA=

B
FrfE R &

it
— [EHH

A 2 R
— faps s Ix
— JRHE RS o S B
BERE

fifH
LHIRET Z AR
RidemT A
AA-PEERA

Btk
G

AEEPEN - MRYRER 1 L5208 1 50 T8 J5
EEEATEEZEMTH > MEZMH

lf7 48 HE K B HE S o

The Bank

At 31 December 2009
Assets
Trading securities:

— Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets designated

at fair value through

profit or loss:

— Debt securities
Available-for-sale securities:

— Debt securities

— Equity securities and
investment fund

Liabilities

Trading liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities designated

at fair value through
profit or loss

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

g
Level 1
W T
HK$°000

2,426,043

3,507,419

8,316,196
154,280

14,403,938

34,006

34,006

W )E
Level 2
T
HKS$’000

959

63,609

3,375,667

39,267

3,479,502

83,309

402,144

485,453

B8
Level 3
T
HK$’000

40,821

29,784

267,155

337,760

483,756

483,756

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

trit
Total
T
HK$’000

2,427,002

104,430

3,537,203

11,691,863

460,702

18,221,200

34,006

567,065

402,144

1,003,215

During the year there were no significant transfers between instruments
in Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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ZEBIR
AL

RZOONE
—A—H
it / (1)
YIS
-4

e
R
#

fig

RZOOLE
+ZA=+-H

RZOOJLE
+=A=+-H
FrHstigeE /
B HEfFER
FEEBRGNZ
Wit /(B 4%

RZOONE
+ZA=+—H
FrEEA MR
HUFEREE
Hip 2Tl 2
i A

At | January 2009

Total gains/(losses)
recognised in
— Profit or loss
- Other comprehensive

income

Purchases

[ssues

Settlements

At 31 December 2009

Total gains/(losses) for
the year included in
profit or loss for assets/
liabilities held at
31 December 2009

Total gains for the year
included in other

comprehensive income for

assets held at
31 December 2009

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value

measurements is as follows:

The Group
03
Assets

D PR

M2

BREE -

R %
Financial "Ik &
assets A —
designated MBS
i atfairvalue  Available-
SMIR through for-sale
Derivative profit or securities
financial ~ loss - Debt - Equity
instruments securities securities
BRFL W% ERTx
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000
523 389,719 256,204
40,298 19,583 -
- - 453
- - 22,668
- (332,541) -
40,821 76,761 279,325
40,821 (2,198) -
- - 453

sk
Total
BT
HKS$’000

646,446

59,881

453
22,668

(332,541)

396,907

38,023

453

fif

Liabilities

D TR 3
M2
RRALR -

RH RS

Financial

liabilities

designated

fit  at fair value
BRIA through
Derivative profit or
financial  loss - Debt
instruments securities
BT Ww%Tx
HK$000 HKS$’000
(148,103) (703,920)
(335,653) (980)
- (452,000)

- 1,156,900
(483,756) -
(403,388) -

sk
Total
BT
HKS$’000

(852,023)

(336,633)

(452,000)
1,156,900

(483,756)

(403,388)
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N}

RZO0NE
—A—H

figs / (E4R) 4%
RN

- i

HAb 2w

GoE O CmE |

RZOOJLE
+ZA=+-H

R=0O0NE
+-A=+—H
s e /
aff HEHER
FERGNZ
i/ (B18) 4%

BR=0ONE
+ZA=+-H
LR
HEFELeE
K2Rz
gt

At 1 January 2009

Total gains/(losses)
recognised in
— Profit or loss
— Other comprehensive

income

Purchases

Issues

Settlements

At 31 December 2009

Total gains/(losses) for
the year included in
profit or loss for assets/
liabilities held at
31 December 2009

Total gains for the year
included in other
comprehensive income for
assets held at
31 December 2009

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Bank

firtk
BRIA
Derivative
financial
instruments

whT
HK$°000

523

40,298

40,821

40821

43

Assets

AP R fiE
A2
EMEE -

%
Financial
assets
designated

at fair value

through
profit or
loss - Debt
securities
T
HK$°000

259,716

2,573

(232,505)

29,784

2,749

LS
2w -
B i 2
Available-
for-sale
securities
- Equity
securities
BT
HKS$’000

243,277

1,210
22,668

267,155

1,210

sk
Total
BT
HKS$’000

503,516

0871

1,210
22,668

(232,505)

337,760

43,570

1,210

fiik
SMIR
Derivative
financial
instruments

R
HK$°000

(148,103)

(335,653)

(483,756)

(403,388)

fifE
Liabilities

WA
ML
EHAK -

%
Financial
liabilities
designated

at fair value

through
profit or
loss — Debt
securities
LR T
HK$°000

(743,776)

(984)

(452,000)
1,196,760

ek
Total
T
HKS$’000

(891,879)

(336,637)

(452,000)
1,196,760

(483,756)

(403,388)
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2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to
reasonably possibly alternatives

The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are
not supported by prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument and are not based on observable market data. The
following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible
alternative assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10%
of the fair value.

A 4 The Group
At 2 T WL 4% Y 5 2B
Wt/ (k) Mg Effect on other
Effect on profit/(loss) comprehensive income
A5 8) A F) 5 B A5 8 A F) 5 8
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
L T i T i T i T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—~OONh4 2009
HE Assets
A EmTE Derivative financial instruments 4,082 (4,082) = =
PAVAFEER ABHR  Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss 7,676 (7,676) = =
Ak 2 SR Available-for-sale securities = = 27,933 (27,933)
11,758 (11,758) 27,933 (27,933)
£l Liabilities
fiTE 4 T2 Derivative financial instruments 48,376 (48,376) = =
) The Bank
A 2 T WA 45 4 %
Wedi /(i) Mg e Effect on other
Effect on profit/(loss) comprehensive income
H 5 H) A FI5EH) HREH) A F 5 5
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
®WH T BT T BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
ZOOh#E 2009
B Assets
A i TR Derivative financial instruments 4,082 (4,082) - -
DI PEERE A B4l Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss 2,978 (2,978) - =
Al 2 g Available-for-sale securities = = 26,715 (26,715)
7,060 (7,060) 26,715 (26,715)
A Liabilities
4 TH Derivative financial instruments 48,376 (48,376) - -

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited 119



120

SR A LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.6 GEAREH
AREEBEREHZ HBWT -

—  RREATE CRRATSEMRB) E (RAT
3 CEAR) B B EAZR

— DRI F A RE D AT DL
AR R 2 1) ik B HL At A1 7E B AR
B A

— HMEREAEEZTRE LR K

— AR R OR B AR S Bl DL ST AR S
R’ o

Fws CBRAT MBI ZoR & 4R 1T S8R4T
42 [ 4 Rr vk A L e b R E Y L
R(EARFTLEILR) RDR8% o AREHE
2 BB 2N R RN AT A H At % o MR S
H MM ERBERET B TR
2 B EARER o

Jo\ B b B AR 4% CER AT 26 (B AS)
HURID) BT 4R #Y JEL By L B 45 &5 o BE T st
B RN —EELZHETF2ME
Lo FCHs 85 B Al S B~ T SO At
B o A B %5 08 S AR B ST A S I R AE
W e AR AR Z BB B
FE b — s 5 R DL W BR 2 4R
X

A AR ) 2 A R JR A P B A A B
BB g o A B2 51 A AT E S
Y A 7 A ) 3 B R AE T B A e R
R R REEEEAR LT
R o BRILZ AL > AR 4R N g 5 A
f R S H A AL ) AR A
AT A B -

HR_OONFEK _—OONFE+ A=+
— HZAEBE N > AR [ R AR Al 32 HoAh
BEREEE ZREARCAE A S
AR R K LA S 4 A LR T R T A2
ZHRARE AT R R A o

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

2.6 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

—  To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance;

—  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets
(the capital adequacy ratio) at or above the minimum of 8%. Subsidiaries
of the Group are also subject to statutory capital requirements from other
regulatory authorities, such as Securities and Futures Commission and
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored daily by the
Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger capital
adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory requirement
as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In addition, the Group
will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio when there are new
products, new investments or any significant transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 and are well above the minimum required
ratio set by the HKMA.
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The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Changes in the assumptions used would affect the
reported impairment allowances on loans and advances.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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(c) Impairment of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity
securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities are impaired.
This determination requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment has declined; and the credit quality of and
near-term business outlook for the investee or issuer, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flows.

(d) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances —
for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale as such class
is deemed to have been tainted. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost.

(e) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the
net income for the properties using Investment Method of Valuation.
The contractual rental income and the expected future market rental
income after allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements
are capitalised at observed market yields. The principal assumptions
underlying the estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt
of contractual rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods;
maintenance requirements; and observed market yields.

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar
locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of
the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location difference,
building age, time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.
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(f) Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group's critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) to the Group
as of the balance sheet date. The estimation of IBNR claims is generally
subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost
of settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about
the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the
insured until many years after the event that gives rise to the claim has
happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need
to be considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will
ultimately pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the
employees’ compensation and other liability policies can be longer in
tail and difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent
actuary to estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial
methodologies. The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be
affected by various factors. The more significant factors that can affect
the reliability of the liability estimation include jurisprudence that can
broaden the intent and scope coverage of the protections offered in the
insurance contracts issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim
results differ from historical experience and the time lag between the
occurrence of the event and the report of such claim to the Group.

(g) Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in note 13. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.

(h) Provisions

Judgment has been exercised in determining the amount which may be

payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal claims arising
from the sale of investment products.
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2009 2008
Wi T o T oT
HKS$°000 HK$’000

JEA7 IR 4 M AR 2 Cash and balances with banks 447,756 1,255,570
R E Investments in securities
— LW AH — listed 121,985 101,587
— F ETWHAFA — unlisted 224,916 327,278
BFEH Advances to customers 1,125,550 1,493,086
HoAty Others 101,804 99,560

2,022,011 3,277,081

F S A He 45 Rl B BRI A BT T Interest income is analysed by types of financial assets as follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

il T
HK$’000 HK$’000

KA TPEEEAIEIR 2 Financial assets that are not at fair value through

SR profit or loss 1,851,132 3,054,857
FEEE Mg s Trading securities 17,585 68,820
PLAFEE ARG IR Financial assets designated at fair value through

SRl profit or loss 56,423 62,023
R )& %) Interest rate swaps 96,871 91,381

2,022,011 3,277,081
AFETEF B AN FHE E B ZIrFni#E  Included in interest income is unwinding of discount on impaired loans

5] A1) Elie A #E10,920,0007C (O O /N of HK$10,920,000 (2008: HK$1,762,000).
A s H1,762,0000T) ©
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—O0Oh —OO0ON

2009 2008
Wi T o T oT
HKS$°000 HK$’000

Deposits and balances from bank and deposits from

] 317 3K S & P A7 customers 568,918 1,795,115
BT AR Certificates of deposit issued 53,272 124,913
BT 2 RABEIH Subordinated debt issued 13,630 =
HoAth Others 54,367 79,720

690,187 1,999,748

) G0 32 s 4 46 Bl R AN A0 BT R Interest expense is analysed by types of financial liabilities as follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

il T
HK$’000 HK$’000

KPLATEEFEAH# MR Financial liabilities that are not at fair value through

oAz =K profit or loss 600,259 1,860,039
LHMRE T Z AR Trading liabilities 699 29,892
PLAFEE AR IR Financial liabilities designated at fair value through

oAz =K profit or loss 37,669 66,504
| 2= 4530 5 4 Interest rate swaps 51,560 43,313

690,187 1,999,748
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ZOO0Oh
2009
BT
HKS$’000
e 55 2 K AR e Ui A Fees and commission income
76 o5 K8 A S BB RS Securities brokerage and investment services 258,936
5 R0 Credit cards 69,488
HRGEEF 52 4 Credit related fees and commission 58,292
1N Trade finance 14,951
HAhZ 4 $R17 285 Other retail banking services 18,415
oAt AR B e A Other fee income 27,572
447,654
IR s e KA 4 3 Fees and commission expenses
(EURE Credit cards (41,841)
oA A B e 3 Other fee expenses (23,688)
(65,529)
IR 5 2 K AR i A Net fees and commission income 382,125
Hrp e Of which:
i HE 4 E E R s E D
NEEBARRIRZ Net fees and commission income, other than amounts
CREESABETEAZ included in determining the effective interest rate,
i 55 2 K AR e i3 A arising from financial assets or financial liabilities
(R BLFE ARSI A % that are not held for trading nor designated at fair
Z AR value through profit or loss
— BRHs 2 B A — fees and commission income 101,196
— RS B A 4 S0 — fees and commission expenses (36,602)
AREMNKE T AL Net fees and commission income on trust and other
A HASZ SRS E AL fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests
Z s e B AR 4 iU A on behalf of its customers
— MBS & B A A — fees and commission income 8,100
— MR e B A 4 S — fees and commission expenses (468)

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

232,680
69,254
53,690
14,373
20,069
29,075

419,141

(39,454)
(36,188)

(75,642)

343,499

101,544
(31,524)

9,467
(310)



—O0Oh —OO0ON

2009 2008
w1 T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000

PREEEEBA Insurance operating income
Rk Gross
HRAR 2 B R Gross insurance premium written 604,018 665,361
o 3 R e E AR 2 s Change in unearned premium provision (4,497) (4,915)
BB T2 M A A EA Y Premium revenue arising from insurance
REWA contracts issued 599,521 660,446
AR AR Reinsurance
oz AR Reinsurance premium outward (93,467) (102,804)
I 1A PR A 2 i Change in unearned premium provision 2,610 7,955
CEfT RGN RE Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers arising from
AT PR A insurance contracts issued (90,857) (94,849)
N TR LT N Net earned premium income 508,664 565,597
HEA LN Commission income 9,278 8,603
At A Other income 1,075 1,284
i Commission expenses (110,884) (130,629)
408,133 444,855
PREs & e fl (FERR) Charge for insurance claims (note)
A Gross
ER AT R Gross claims paid (432,730) (404,547)

C2WMCRE  C84E
{BoR Bz R E B HoAh Change in reported claims, IBNR and other
PR B e A 2 W5 insurance provision (30,572) (156,310)

(463,302)  (560,857)

AR Reinsurance
Wi [l P 4 R 2 R AE Claims recovered from reinsurers 35,105 26,823
CEHRZRE  C8E
B 2z R I H At Change in reported claims, IBNR and other

PRI e 2 ol s insurance provision 25,112 10,517
60,217 37,340

HRE & Total claims incurred (403,085) (523,517)
TR EIF A () Net insurance operating income/(expense) 5,048 (78,662)

SRR fRBR R RUEM AL E AR ZEFS T Note:  Charge for insurance claims represents net claims incurred on the Group’s
RYE BT A AR THER insurance business and the related claims settlement expenses.
B S
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SR (RN Pk ecatly 75|
UA-PEESABRGRZ
Ef TR B (k)
it em TREH FER
A1 ME B 1 A i

B A
— iR S
— I LT RS 25
BaYEZ WA WG E
258 530,365,000 0
(TOO/NAE -
#32,112,0007C)
PRAEFRAH 42 1 I as
HAth

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

Net loss from trading securities

Net gain/(loss) arising from financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss

Net loss arising from derivative financial instruments

Net gain from foreign exchange trading

Dividend income
— Listed equity securities
— Unlisted equity securities

Rental income from investment properties less direct
outgoings of HK$30,365,000
(2008: HK$32,112,000)

Net rental income on safe deposit boxes

Others

—OO0h

2009
oL
HKS$°000

(13,827)

445,270
(265,962)
134,437

299,918

—O0Oh

2009
il
HKS$°000

9,135
2,785

96,633
23,814
15,325

147,692

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

(80,962)

(598,125)
(570,601)
98,943

(1,150,745)

—OO0OAN

2008
T
HK$’000

36,660
3,433

95,515
24,030
14,939

174,577



ANHEHH

— Fra LOHAM A F

— BARAEA
5 Bkt S
N TR
— YEME

— HAth
Prgg (GERE3D)
P = 27 5 15 4

(FERE30)

JEE 5 B SEHS #E iR
ETHIEER
TR K 3 A
SCH K BRI

K BT 4

7K 7
Y& E X 4
PrBR 2

e 75 R B 22
HAth

WAL ()
— B AT LS
— i 2 R g
— FFEFME I
— W o vl A
— HAhHRIA

Staff costs
— Salaries and other costs
— Retirement benefit costs
Premises and equipment expenses, excluding
depreciation
— Rental of premises
— Others
Depreciation (note 31)
Amortisation of land lease premium
(note 30)
Advertising and business promotion
Electronic data processing
Postage and communications
Printing and stationery
Auditors’ remuneration
Water and electricity
Legal and professional fee
Insurance
Securities related expenses
Others

Impairment losses/(written back) on
— loans and advances and accrued interest
— available-for-sale securities
— held-to-maturity securities
— interests in associates
— other accounts

—OO0h

2009
oL
HKS$°000

523,670
36,423

30,841
33,889
76,308

4,358
30,829
42,002
27,887
12,271
3,834
11,876
16,664
9,383
8,744
282,622

1,151,601

—OOh

2009
il
HKS$°000

88,036

2,004
(12,119)

77,921
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—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

503,154
8,807

25,846
33,508
55,511

4,172
49,120
40,397
27,223
11,789
9,811
11,794
22,893
9,356
8,229
224,981

1,046,591

—OO0OAN

2008
T
HK$’000

36,466
309,785
157,059

243,415

746,725
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(a) Bk B HEAF A 8 Bk AL s 45

161 1
— B
— $5 1
— Ul

G AP
— i
— fit I
— i

SCHO £ 2% T A

(b) T {3t 5 2 G 27 el AR R

A
— i

(c) +F 2 21138 77 Ik A s 48

18 51 AR
— i (GERE23)

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

(a) Impairment losses on loans and advances and accrued interest

ZOO0Oh
2009
BT
HKS$’000
Individually assessed
—new allowances 72,454
— releases (4,639)
— recoveries (2,776)
65,039
Collectively assessed
— new allowances 46,874
— releases (22,039)
— recoveries (1,838)
22,997
Net charge to the income statement 88,036

(b) Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities

—O0Oh
2009

il
HKS$°000

Individually assessed
— new allowances -

(c) Impairment losses on held-to-maturity securities

—~OO0Oh

2009
T
HK$’000

Individually assessed
— new allowances (note 23) =

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

32,590
(10,010)
(5,776)

16,804

34,949
(13,153)
(2,134)

19,662

36,466

—O0O0ON

2008
wT T
HK$’000

309,785

—OO0ON

2008
i I
HK$°000

157,059



(d) H5 8 2> i) HE £ ol 1L s 18 (d) Impairment losses on interests in associates

ZOO0Oh
2009
BT
HKS$’000
A8 A HE A Individually assessed
— Wi — new allowances 2,004
(e) HAbMRIE WAL (o1 48) MR (e) Impairment (written back)/losses on other accounts
—O0Oh
2009
#BH T
HKS$’000
R A A Individually assessed
— (B, B — (releases)/new allowances (12,119)

KRITRFEZ BN BN 2 EHM 4 2E The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to directors of the

FHunE Bank during the year are as follows:
—O0Oh
2009
W T
HKS$’000
Giokery Fees 520
i > EAL M A RS Salaries, bonus and other allowances 13,130
R ARAE AL K Retirement benefits contribution 480
14,130

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

—OO0OAN

2008
T
HK$°000

243,415

—O0O0ON

2008
wT o
HK$’000

1,420
20,180
286

21,886
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ASE B Iy AR AT 2 W B R AT U TE I B AR AR
A EHE o 55 By ARAT — W] B T 2 ] 2 B
B —HE A o 10 IHR R R
PRAR A FHE] > o B A FH ) (fE R 2
[aZat 3 )) E3E — {57 7 1 A st & 5 4
e —18 5 S akEr A > HAEHA —
TE 7 S AR AR AR B~ —TH 2 i SR
BT e 2 B s st # by — TE 2 HR A
FE# o FLAB AR Z BB Al A — R
R > 2Nzt E R E B sz
T 5 A 4w o

TE 2 mt B A LG 0 b > AL
H T Hs st 8 2 % 8 B H #10%1E
R R o AR 4R T B % G B A E 8 EGED
Py 2 A3 FRAE AT RE IR B T 48 15 A Bt
R B BH 5% w1 8 1 R 5 HRE A R 45 T
k> o AR BBl 2 B A K M AR
By e 11,168,0007C (O O J\4F : i
2,392,0007T) ° AL H - KA H 2K
T U BRORT 1 25 WA 2l 2 Ak AR O s
#434,0007C (=0 O J\AE : #:%250,000
Jo) o HMAEAEH » WEE K (00
JAE ) o

NSRS R P QR RS
Co il PN B A wE SRR > ARG A A
BEHAZAEBABRZ%E - MARA
S HILLHE 20,0000 4 FR -

AAE TR 3 5% S A LB L EOR A 2 s
5 FE 4wl 2 At O B v 122,047,000
I (O O\ : #:¥19,125,0007T) °

% wt @ B 558w A Ry e — R E AR
AR ARG B (LR 2 08 7 T3% 45 28 IRkt
B ) 2K R AR 5 RE AT A R S
BRI 2 B R E o ZSF R
At BAR A B B 2 B4R B A 2 w5 AR A
ZFEHE > A G BURYE A A o

5% 55 B RET B B 9 — R 2 K A (B R
TOONEFT A= —H > HEER
TR 2 A BB B A BR A | (RR A G
EHIETNZTF oA > HiE B BFE
HEa o LERE > REFBETAIA
& B A 2 A U e w1998 R BT
i > B RIREN B 2 FE R B R B
8 K MR BS B A ¥ DA T8 51 B8 0 B R T R
B M E R > %IRRT 2 K
F-EE140% (O OJ\AFE 1 99%)

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

The Group operates four staff retirement schemes for the staff of the
Bank and an MPF scheme for the staff of a subsidiary of the Bank.
The four staff retirement schemes comprise a principal scheme (the
“Scheme”) which includes a defined benefit (“DB”) section and a
defined contribution (“DC”) section, a defined benefit pension scheme,
a defined contribution scheme for overseas employees and an MPF
scheme. All new staff members who join the Bank are offered a one-off
choice between the DC section of the Scheme and the MPF scheme.

Under the DC section of the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute
10% of the monthly salary of the members who opted for the DC
arrangement. The Group’s contributions to the DC section of this Scheme
may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totaling HK$1,168,000 (2008: HK$2,392,000) were utilised
during the year. The unutilised forfeited contributions at the year end
amounted to HK$434,000 (2008: HK$250,000) which are available to
reduce future contributions. No contributions were payable at the year
end (2008: Nil).

The Group’s contributions to the MPF schemes are based on 5% of the
monthly relevant income of each employee up to a maximum monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The contributions to schemes with defined contribution arrangements and
the MPF schemes during the year amounted to HK$22,047,000 (2008:
HK$19,125,000) in aggregate.

For the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme (collectively referred to as the “Plan”), the contributions are
determined based on periodic valuations by qualified actuaries of the
assets and liabilities of the Plan. The Plan provides benefits based on
members’ final salary. The costs are solely funded by the Group.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as at 31 December 2009 by Watson Wyatt Hong Kong
Limited — A Towers Watson Company, a professional actuarial firm, who
have among their staff Fellows of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong.
The present values of the defined benefit obligation and current service
cost of the Plan are calculated based on the projected unit credit method.
At the valuation date, the Plan had a funding level of 140% (2008: 99%).



MRTOONEFT A=+ +—HILZ4EF
BEABERANERZ SEITWT

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2009 are
analysed as follows:

—OO0Oh —~0O0ON

2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

EAFEY NS )y Pl

NFEE Fair value of Plan assets 531,757 461,552
CEBEREWAFEH ZBI{E  Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation (380,900) (467,732)
KRR 2K B 18 Unrecognised actuarial losses 48,347 219,760
NEEABERNERZ

B E R AR Net asset recognised in the balance sheet 199,204 213,580

PA_E#y 2 E E FTE 2 i — AR AR AL
(] o b0 I <5 I A 70 B BELOR AR+ A
AL B W SR ek 2 e 0 B B o TR R R AR
Z AR B B R A 4 AR5 B 3t A R AR A
YRS B At AN i 8 2 AL - B — O —
O 4F A& 7y 5 7€ 18 IR AR ALt 31 1 i it

2
mA ©

T Wit R A RERS 2 SRR E

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts receivable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in
actuarial assumptions and market conditions. No contribution to the Plan
is expected to be paid in 2010.

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

—O0Oh —0O0ON

2009 2008
T T oT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

s A Current service cost (21,232) (17,215)
) E R AR Interest cost (5,077) (12,640)
TEIFZ R IRGT# & 2 M #H Expected return on Plan assets 26,437 40,461

C e R0 2 HG e 15 1 Net actuarial losses recognised (14,504) (288)

FIFETEAE RPBRAE M AR 2 Net (expenses)/income for the year included in
() /WA #E retirement benefit costs (14,376) 10,318

BE_OONFETZH=1+—HIEH
B sZ S IRIRET B G E 2 B R 5 i
#87,771,0007C (O O /\AE : Rk ¥
112,311,0007C) °

The actual return on Plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2009
was HK$87,771,000 (2008: a loss of HK$112,311,000).
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ENRERAEE 2 EBHWT - The movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as
follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

T T
HK$’000 HK$’000

h—H—HZ R EE RN Present value of obligation at

HiE 1 January 467,732 367,859
AR H A Current service cost 21,232 17,215
FILE LA Interest cost 5,077 12,640
B R A A S Actual benefits paid (17,566) (9,944)
WE (ki) kR Actuarial (gains)/losses (95,575) 79,962

RTZH =1+ —HZEE
T B AR F B Actual obligation at 31 December 380,900 467,732

HERZEIBRFHS & E A TEE 2 %8  The movements in the fair value of the Plan assets during the year are as
wmr - follows:

—O0Oh —0O0ON

2009 2008
T T oT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

A — H— H %R KRG Fair value of Plan assets at

G 2 AEE 1 January 461,552 583,807
TEFZ R IRGI# & E 2 M # Expected return on Plan assets 26,437 40,461
B R AR 1 S Actual benefits paid (17,566) (9,944)
WHEI S (ER) Actuarial gains/(losses) 61,334 (152,772)

Wt HZ=+—H#%%EIK Fair value of Plan assets at
A E g R 2 AT EE 31 December 531,757 461,552
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ARG BB E EE BT ¢

JRCHE R 55 Equities
e 30 Bonds
W4 Cash
A Total

R OONNE S ENKRFFHZE
EEEARAERTZEREE LB
#160,861,0007C (= O O J\ 4E : ¥k

170,824,0007C) °

TERFAG RE I 3R 2 EERE RS T

IRER
— BRI
— Gt #
AR IRE ) 2 R
LR TES
— BRI
— P #
W2t | 2 FOE AR AR 1y 2
TIP3 357 I T

FEmAB ARG # 2 B R

IR E

Discount rate

The major categories of the Plan assets are as follows:

—OO0Oh
2009

i
HK$°000

273,946
87,225
170,586

531,757

The amount of the Plan assets includes deposits with the Bank of

%

51.5
16.4
32.1

100.0

—OO0OAN
2008
T
HK$’000

188,488
91,672
181,392

461,552

HK$160,861,000 in 2009 (2008: HK$170,824,000).

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation are as

follows:

— Retirement benefit scheme
— Pension scheme

Long-term average return on Plan assets
— Retirement benefit scheme
— Pension scheme

Long-term average rate of salary increase for the

DB section of the Scheme

Pension increase rate for the defined benefit

pension scheme

BE_OONET - A=+—HIL4EE
Sf S W ek B A AR (OO N

o) o
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—O0Oh
2009
%

2.6
1.6

6.0
1.0
5.0

2.5

%

40.8
19.9
39.3

100.0

ENCXCYIN

2008
%

1.1
1.1

6.0

1.0

5.0

2.5

There was no curtailment or settlement impact for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.
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(a) MEEAUsFLE () 2 BUIE  (a) Taxation charged/(credited) in the consolidated income statement

mr represents:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
AHARIIE Current taxation:
— F s AR — Hong Kong profits tax 28,387 21,066
— TR AE VR R B — Over provision of taxation in respect of prior years 42) (2,867)
28,345 18,199
— I ANBLIE — Overseas taxation 21,014 13,629
IRIERLIH Deferred taxation:
—FHEEEHEZEE — Relating to the origination and reversal of
J2 i [m] temporary differences 141,114 (233,546)
— O O /\AF-Fi #5 o } — Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting
IRSER T 4 A7 2 52 from the change in tax rate in 2008 - (25,073)
190,473 (226,791)

WRZOONEH > FSBUNHEMFIS  In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced a decrease
FiHI17.5% N %16.5% > HJTB A A in the profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the Group’s
EEZHFBEE R 00 /4FE 1 operations in Hong Kong as from the year ended 31 December 2008.
A=+t—HFEEEFH - IWF#CAA  This decrease has been taken into account in the preparation of the
L AT 0 O/EZ BB Hts 1 1E  Group’s and the Bank’s 2008 financial statements and the opening
B OO /NFIREBIAL /A2 ] balance of deferred tax for 2008 has been re-estimated accordingly. The
VI BRI O E i AGF - FUSFIASBLE provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2009 is calculated at 16.5%
2 A AF FE A 5T RE BEBL U A DABL % 16.5% (2008 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
(OO /N4 1 16.5%) w5 - B AMBLIH  on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
O FE A AR LA G R B U | LA A SE I ZE for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
BT e M BRAT 8 2 BLRFH . o the Group operates.
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(b) AEEABRBRBLATE R, (1H) 2
5 T B 7 PR A o 2 B A R 5

(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate

Z ImBL A ERA T of Hong Kong as follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
(SN ZEis)) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,074,918  (1,042,946)
PIBL#16.5% (O O/\4E :  Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
16.5%) w5 (2008: 16.5%) 177,361 (172,086)
AR HL 2 S B BITH 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for taxation
L purposes 12,565 32,970
ISR 2 W A BB T 2 5228 Tax effect of income not subject to taxation (26,608) (65,080)
T OO /NAERL R T HIRIE  Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting from
BRI A A7 2 o 28 the change in tax rate in 2008 = (25,073)
B Ath B 2 A [R] B R 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other tax
AL jurisdictions 11,099 6,158
A B YHE A 0 B Over provision of taxation in respect of prior years (42) (2,867)
KMERE R 2 Effect of unrecognised tax loss 16,380 =
HAth Others (282) (813)
B A AL Income tax 190,473 (226,791)
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(c) HoAth A i AR 9 A5 SRR AU TS (c) The income tax effects relating to components of other

Bl comprehensive income are as follows:
—OO0h
2009
BT 4 # Bge®  BlATeH
Before- 38  Net-of-  Before-
tax Income tax tax
amount tax amount amount
wWTor WWTx BWTx B¥T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’°000 HKS$’000
Surplus on revaluation of
B EEZ G bank premises 4,039 (666) 3,373 780
A i ERE S 2 /A Changes in fair value of
EtEne = available-for-sale securities 188,766 (10,428) 178,338  (989,828)
Transfer to income statement
WHET N EE A on disposal of available-for-
(AL YNEES sale securities (68,897) - (68,897) (131,202)
Transfer to income statement on
AR BRI impairment of available-for-

FLCYNTErES sale securities - = - 309,785
TEfL 2% N 7] 7 f# M Share of associates’ reserves 137 = 137 (175)
JEAG L[ 4% i # 2  Share of jointly controlled

i entities’ reserves 4,489 - 4,489 (5,119)

Other comprehensive income
A A A A T A A for the year 128,534  (11,094) 117,440 (815,759)

ZOO0ON
2008

BREz
Income
tax

BT T
HK$’000

296

17,790

18,086

PR &8
Net-of-
tax
amount

BT T
HK$’000

1,076

(972,038)

(131,202)

309,785

(175)

(5,119)

(797,673)

% A AL % I RE A 5640,127,0000C  The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
TIB A ARITIRZE RN (O O N4Efk 3 statements of the Bank to the extent of HK$640,127,000 (Loss

JEfL 1R« #E#294,369,0007T) ©

(a) W J& AN 47 it B

A =0 O JUAFIFHEE IR K

(a) Dividend attributable to the year

attributable to shareholders in 2008: HK$294,369,000).

—OO0Oh

2009

T
HK$’000

TAT RIS (Z.0 O/\4F No interim dividend was declared and paid in 2009
YR 18 R v s ) (2008: HK$0.50 per ordinary share)

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

—OOAN

2008
BT
HK$°000

116,095



(b) TRAAE BE A e B S A i b 47 B i B

and paid during the year

RO O JUAE HEAZ 1 K

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved

—OO0Oh —~0O0ON

2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

- 348,285
PN iy
The Bank
EROIO))N — 00N
2009 2008

il o T
HK$’000 HK$°000

1,781,240 2,136,368
653,798 37,517

A EAF AR A S
(ZOO/\4E : ik No final dividend in respect of the previous financial
232,190,115/ » IREEKE year was approved and paid in 2009 (2008: HK$1.50
W s M1 oTs A) per ordinary share on 232,190,115 shares)
L
The Group
—O0Oh —OO0OAN
2009 2008
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EAI 4 LAEE 2 Cash and balances with banks 1,791,620 2,140,487
7 rp LR AT Balances with central bank 653,798 37,517
55 MR AT kR 2 Money at call and short notice 16,282,675 33,882,916

18,728,093 36,060,920

A OOJFE T _H="+—H > %Z45ME The balances with central bank that are

SRR R i S IR B A7 TR SR RAT A

#5 %69,599,00000 (- O O JVAF #2009 (2008: HK$17,562,000).

17,562,0007C) °

16,034,457 33,613,260

18,469,495 35,787,145

subject to exchange control and

regulatory restrictions amounted to HK$69,599,000 at 31 December
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[7] 3% 7€ W77 ik

CES: ¢

AFEME

R e 77
— AL
— WS Bl
— Ik ki

JB e 77
— &Ll
— 4 iy

JEHE A 2
— & Ll

Placements with banks
Gross loans and advances to
banks

At fair value:

Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

Equity securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong

Equity investment fund
— Listed in Hong Kong

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

AL
The Group

—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
9,636,953 4,457,429
1,384,526 411,813
11,021,479 4,869,242

AL

The Group

—O0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
#WTou T
HK$°000 HK$’000
214,786 553,257
23,307 -
2,188,909 2,146,243
2,427,002 2,699,500
25,757 107,962
- 760
25,757 108,722
24 1,611
2,452,783 2,809,833

YN )

The Bank
—OO0Oh —~0O0ON
2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
9,951,953 4,432,284
1,384,526 411,813
11,336,479 4,844,097

YN )

The Bank
—O0Oh —0O0ON
2009 2008
W T T o0
HK$’000 HKS$’000
214,786 553,257
23,307 -
2,188,909 2,146,243
2,427,002 2,699,500
2,427,002 2,699,500



ACSE M A A7

The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

L T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Included within debt

B & 5 64 securities are:
B 55 (G4 A1 Treasury bills (including
FH 4 EE) Exchange Fund Bills) 1,823,566 1,808,030 1,823,566 1,808,030
HAAEFS 76 75 Other debt securities 603,436 891,470 603,436 891,470
2,427,002 2,699,500 2,427,002 2,699,500
BEEE R EL: s BT AL Trading securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
AL A7
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

T T il T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Central governments and

R B R AT central banks 2,089,802 2,360,202 2,089,802 2,360,202

NN Public sector entities 6,209 17,882 6,207 6,774
Banks and other financial

SRAT A LAt 4 A institutions 207,443 300,549 206,874 258,510

2 Corporate entities 149,329 131,200 124,119 74,014

2,452,783 2,809,833 2,427,002 2,699,500
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TGS TEE A SM THZ K&E  The following is a summary of the notional or contractual amounts,
BRELSALEZ A R/IAEHEH - A fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of each significant type of

B AE S5 SR b derivatives, without taking into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements:
A H The Group
%/ MR %%/ AFEE
GRIEA Fair values BHER Fair values
Notional/ Notional/
contractual B ff&  contractual i =
amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets  Liabilities
Z0O0h ZOOR ZOOR ZOON ZOOA ZOOA
2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008

whTr  EWTx #WTx BWTx  BNTx BT
HKS000  HKS$000  HK$’000  HK$°000  HKS$°000  HKS$000

FefEHEMR LT Derivatives held for trading

SNG4 Exchange rate contracts
EHAH Forward contracts 188,538 2,910 3,725 99,470 1,859 1,546
it Currency swaps 9,326,333 48,696 35,355 211,104 1,761 162
R g Cross currency interest rate swaps 775,500 908 = 426,250 = 2,457
T Options written 838,141 - 5,556 218,258 - 0,054
YN Options purchased 817,842 5,710 = 237,466 6,863 =
11,946,354 58,224 44,636 1,192,548 10,483 10,819
FIREH Interest rate contracts
s Interest rate swaps 143,468 = 8,146 143,375 = 9,443
RS 4 Equity contracts
T th 1 Options written 247,504 - 4782 208487 - 7,196
YN T Options purchased 247,504 15,776 = 208,489 7,196 =
495,008 15,776 4,782 416,976 7,196 7,196
Derivatives managed in conjunction
MR LA TR with financial instruments
HEEZAMTHEZ  designated at fair value through
TR profit or loss
FREG4 Interest rate contracts
ilpsi Interest rate swaps 3,467,325 42,965 218,081 3,967,499 22,696 170,148
RHER Equity contracts
i 1A Options written 2,269,630 - 292,961 - - -

18,321,785 116,965 568,606 5,720,398 40,375 197,606

142 TKBESRATA BRAH] =0 O JLAR4EH



ENF) The Bank
#E&/
BREH
Notional/
contractual
amount
—00n
2009
BT
HK$000
FefEHEMR 2T Derivatives held for trading
SNG4 Exchange rate contracts
wHEH Forward contracts 188,538
LRt Currency swaps 9,326,333
R g Cross currency interest rate swaps 775,500
T Options written 838,141
A Options purchased 817,842
11,946,354
FIREGH) Interest rate contracts
R 4 Interest rate swaps 143,468
EREG 4 Equity contracts
T th 1 Options written 219,204
i A S0 1 Options purchased 219,204
438,408

Derivatives managed in conjunction

3,467,325

JEHE DLV R a6 with financial instruments
HiEEZ EMTRZ  designated at fair value through
TR profit or loss

MEEH) Interest rate contracts
ik SN Interest rate swaps

RHER Equity contracts
Tt B Options written

e

HEZH TERRITHEF HHIES S5
WZEREEM AN e/ T RS - m
oAy B 8 52 5 T3 LA A SR B 2 T
JE\BE - U E R A EE R — 0 o

R mg

2,269,630

18,265,185

The trading transactions are mainly positions arising from the execution of
trade orders from customers or transactions taken to hedge these positions.
The other trading transactions are used to hedge the Group’s own exposure

ATEE

Fair values
2954 il
Assets  Liabilities
ZO0nL  ZOOh
2009 2009
whRTr W T
HK$’000 HKS$000
2,910 3,725
48,696 35,355
908 -
- 5,556
5,710 -
58,224 44,636
- 8,146
- 3,241
3,241 -
3,241 3,241
42,965 218,081
- 292,961
104,430 567,065

%%/
R
Notional/

contractual
amount
ZO0OA
2008
BT
HK$°000

99,470
211,104
426,250
218,258
237,466

1,192,548

143,375

208,487
208,489

416,976

3,967,499

5,720,398

AFRIE

Fair values
i =
Assets  Liabilities
ZO0ON  ZOOA
2008 2008
3 o W oo T
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,859 1,546
1,761 162
= 2,457
- 0,654
6,863 -
10,483 10,819
= 9,443
- 7,196
7,196 -
7,196 7,196
22,696 170,148
40,375 197,606

to market risks as part of its asset and liability management.
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5 e L R
SMHE & &)
g0
JBCHE 5 40

A TRZ SR A SRR AEE H R
TN & > WARGEEB KD - B
T TS5 I 2~ [ 4 o AR M fE A% D B > AT
ETHEARERAM (BE) SAH (8
) - iR emMERE RARZ AT HE
RO R] BEIRF A E R YD) o

5 0 JEL By b 2 4 R AR R A U CORAT 2
(CEA) B WFHE > A R INHB
PR T 2B Z%S e TR 23
JRREGTET S o BT BRI AR B 0%

£150% °

NFEME

R i 5
— AL
— WS Bl
— Ik ki

Credit risk weighted amount
Exchange rate contracts
Interest rate contracts
Equity contracts

AL

The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
49,643 12,688
28,147 11,964
30,626 19,867
108,416 44,519

Y.
The Bank

—ZO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
49,643 12,688
28,147 11,964
16,393 19,867
94,183 44,519

and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

At fair value:

Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

AL
The Group

—O0Oh —OON
2009 2008

#W T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
2,486,798 1,169,482
1,047,763 389,864
76,761 796,972
3,611,322 2,356,318

The contractual amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding as at the balance sheet date and they do
not represent amounts at risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices relative
to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount depends on
the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of the
instrument. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%.

Y.
The Bank

—O0Oh — 00N
2009 2008
T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
2,461,274 1,149,359
1,046,145 388,610
29,784 666,970
3,537,203 2,204,939



DIAFEESABGIRZ &M&EE > K Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are

BT NG analysed by issuer as follows:
A 42 1T
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OO0ON —~OO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

I Public sector entities 156,998 319,745 156,998 319,745
SRAT AN HoA Banks and other financial

AL 4 institutions 509,539 436,730 458,772 374,197
2 Corporate entities 2,944,785 1,599,843 2,921,433 1,510,997

3,611,322 2,356,318 3,537,203 2,204,939

AL 17
The Group The Bank
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

T T T il T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

INSAEAE At fair value:
& 5 5 I5 Debt securities
— FW b — Listed in Hong Kong 39,679 77,792 39,679 77,792
— A B — Listed outside Hong Kong 2,980,175 181,698 2,980,175 181,698
—J kT — Unlisted 8,672,009 746,790 8,672,009 746,790
11,691,863 1,006,280 11,691,863 1,006,280
JRCHE R 55 Equity securities
— FW kT — Listed in Hong Kong 301,605 227,908 134,062 79,897
—JF b — Unlisted 318,592 278,124 306,422 265,196
620,197 506,032 440,484 345,093
JRREH B B4 Equity investment fund
— FW kT — Listed in Hong Kong 20,218 12,698 20,218 12,698
—JE LT — Unlisted = 14,533 = =
20,218 27,231 20,218 12,698

12,332,278 1,539,543 12,152,565 1,364,071

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited 145



146

IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 52 17
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OO0ON —~O0Oh —OO0oON
2009 2008 2009 2008
EW T T T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
Included within debt securities
B w8 I 4 are:
B 2 A7 3G R i Certificates of deposit held with
A - remaining maturity of:
— ZM AL EE—4 — 3-12 months - 100,200 - 100,200
— —4ED BB A — 1-5 years 194,207 - 194,207 -
194,207 100,200 194,207 100,200
B8] i Treasury bills = 232,484 = 232,484
HAb &% Other debt securities 11,497,656 673,596 11,497,656 673,596
11,691,863 1,006,280 11,691,863 1,006,280
At e B, HIET A ¢ Available-for-sale securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
L .
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OO0ON —OO0Oh —_OON
2009 2008 2009 2008
#EW¥T T T T #W T BT IT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Central governments and
R BUR K e sR AT central banks — 394,418 = 394,418
Banks and other financial
AT e H Al RN institutions 9,369,820 716,476 9,348,107 715,217
12 Corporate entities 2,962,458 428,649 2,804,458 254,436
12,332,278 1,539,543 12,152,565 1,364,071

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



TR R R 2 A
— A L
— Wgsh bt

e AR B I < B A

W AE

i fEE RS 2 AP EE

RS i o LA

Frff 2 AP KRR R B A
— —HFU EERF

A A5 6 5

Listed debt securities, at amortised cost:
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong

Unlisted debt securities, at amortised cost

Less: Impairment allowances

Fair value of listed debt securities

Included within debt securities are:

A K ] B A AT
The Group and the Bank

Certificates of deposit held with remaining maturity of:

— 1-5 years
Other debt securities

—0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

W T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
268,342 155,996
2,492,062 500,018
2,760,404 656,014
8,492,909 4,180,654
11,253,313 4,836,668
(116,325) (116,250)
11,136,988 4,720,418
2,753,898 613,318

A5 B B AR AT

The Group and the Bank
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

#W T BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
100,000 -
11,036,988 4,720,418
11,136,988 4,720,418
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RIS HEIT AL ¢ Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
AR R AT
The Group and the Bank
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000

RS BUR B SR AT Central governments and central banks 187,164 24,359
INE TR Public sector entities 10,525 27,280
SRAT RN L At <5 AR Banks and other financial institutions 8,889,406 4,259,793
2 Corporate entities 2,049,893 408,986

11,136,988 4,720,418

R A W EEEIEE ¥R The reconciliation of the allowance account for impairment on held-to-

mp maturity securities is as follows:

A5 M B AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
w—H—H At 1 January 116,250 36,927
e 5 428 ) Exchange difference 75 (232)
B ER R (RERELL (¢)) Charged to income statement (note 11(c)) - 157,059
GRAVNE {173 Amounts written off - (77,504)
wr—_H=1+—H At 31 December 116,325 116,250
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(a) Bk M 3t B IR

&P
WAEMERS (ERE2S)
— 4R R
— (B FRAY

[EE 35S
WEER (FERE25)

— SR A

MR,
WA (FER2S)
— {3 P

oAt R TH
— ME R
— R AR AU ]
(FERE37)
— MBS K HA R TE

WAEMERS (ERE2S)
— 8 51 A

(a) Advances and other accounts

Advances to customers
Impairment allowances (note 25)
— Collectively assessed
— Individually assessed

Trade bills
Impairment allowances (note 25)
— Collectively assessed

Accrued interest
Impairment allowances (note 25)
— Individually assessed

Other accounts
— Insurance premium
receivable
— Recoverable from
reinsurers (note 37)
— Accounts and other
receivable

Impairment allowances (note 25)
— Individually assessed

A4
The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
52,810,558 43,368,102
(126,276) (117,026)
(112,816) (42,664)
52,571,466 43,208,412
57,823 113,692
127) (338)
57,696 113,354
191,566 199,004
(9,232) (1,595)
182,334 197,409
128,821 176,085
176,802 155,953
1,345,544 1,076,611
1,651,167 1,408,649
(49,219) (139,707)
1,601,948 1,268,942
54,413,444 44,788,117

N )

The Bank
—OO0Oh —0O0ON
2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
52,449,709 43,029,354
(100,281) (83,392)
(99,839) (17,920)
52,249,589 42,928,042
57,823 113,692
127 (338)
57,696 113,354
193,357 200,634
(9,230) (1,442)
184,127 199,192
7,719 6,458
937,635 794,028
945,354 800,486
(49,219) (139,508)
896,135 660,978
53,387,547 43,901,566
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(b) il A B % AL £ 50

EEEFRNEEREHRE RHEBGH 2
w"E > Havrar :

(b) Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Advances to customers include investment in finance lease receivables
and hire purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

A
The Group
—~OO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
JRE WA A R Gross investment, receivable
— —FR — Within one year 264,879 261,117
— —FP L ERHE — After one year but within five years 241,752 243,927
— HAERA | — After five years 12,622 17,320
519,253 522,364
A e 2 BAES WA Unearned finance income (37,525) (38,126)
WEFH Net investment 481,728 484,238

B A S 2 2 R R A
T

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase
contracts is analysed as follows:

A4 H

The Group
~O0Oh 00N
2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
—4E R Within one year 241,113 237,735
—A4EDL B E H A After one year but within five years 227,993 229,183
AR E After five years 12,622 17,320
481,728 484,238

bt AR B R A S A 2 08 AR
WAFEAZREZREBEME (COON
A ) o

AN a] i e R A R R A A 2 A
A AR A W E A A AR A R B i
#25,798,0007C (= O O /\ 4 : # %
33,124,0000C) M #5 %12,479,0000C (—
O OJ\4E : #:#524,744,0007C) ©

KBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUAFEAEHR

No unguaranteed residual values were included in the gross investment
in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts above (2008:
Nil).

The collective and individual impairment allowances for uncollectible
finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts included in the
impairment allowances for the receivables amounted to HK$25,798,000
(2008: HK$33,124,000) and HK$12,479,000 (2008: HK$24,744,000)
respectively.



A H The Group

181 3 5 A BB Al

Individual Collective G
assessment assessment Total

T T i i
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

R_OOJLFE—H—H At 1 January 2009 183,966 117,364 301,330
[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments 2,713 9 2,722
GRNE {5 Amounts written off (60,188) (15,805) (75,993)
Recoveries of advances written off
Wi [l £ 4T ELUGR 2 Bk in previous years 2,776 1,838 4,614
TPl R Net charge to income statement 52,920 22,997 75,917
HE AR 1) 7 (B H38 ] Unwind of discount on allowance (10,920) - (10,920)
OO LEFE+T—"-H=1+—H At 31 December 2009 171,267 126,403 297,670
AT AN HRIE AT ER Deducted from:
PR (31F%24 (a)) Trade bills (note 24(a)) - 127 127
PR K AT )R, Advances to customers and accrued
(FEF¥24 () interest (note 24(a)) 122,048 126,276 248,324
HALKEIA (3:FE24 (a)) Other accounts (note 24(a)) 49,219 — 49,219
171,267 126,403 297,670
N} The Bank

BRI R AN
Individual  Collective aat
assessment assessment Total
Tt Tt Tt
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

KOO NFE—H—H At 1 January 2009 158,870 83,730 242,600
[FEE 2% ) & Exchange adjustments 2,713 9 2,722
A TR R Amounts written off (47,511) (15,805) (63,316)
Recoveries of advances written off
Wi [ 43 4F B bR 2 B in previous years 2,329 1,838 4,167
T S A R Net charge to income statement 52,645 30,636 83,281
A 1) BT PR 43 1] Unwind of discount on allowance (10,758) = (10,758)
MRZOONFE+_H=+—H At31 December 2009 158,288 100,408 258,696
R AERIE R IR - Deducted from:
PR GERE24 (2)) Trade bills (note 24(a)) - 127 127
PR K AT IR, Advances to customers and
(5EF¥24 (2)) accrued interest (note 24(a)) 109,069 100,281 209,350
HAbMEIA (3:FE24 (a)) Other accounts (note 24(a)) 49,219 = 49,219
158,288 100,408 258,696
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A 5 W

R_OONE—H—H
T 2 3
G (S

W B 1 4F 2 iR 2 R
I E TS
A5 1) A7 B 45 1)

R_OO0O/NF+_H=+—H

AR BRI R 0B
PHZEZEPE (51fE24 (a)
&P AT AR
(31824 (a))
HARTE (3EFE24 (a))

WR_OONE—H—H
[ifE % 3

AF TR R

Wi [ 4 E AR 22 4K
T SCHU ER R

HE A5 1) 37 B 45 1)

R_OO/4F+_H=+—H

AR BHRIE A 0B
P (51824 (a))
&R AT RIS
(31%%24 (a))
HABIRIA (3:fE24 (a))

KBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUAFEAEHR

The Group

At 1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments

Amounts written off

Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years

Net charge to income statement

Unwind of discount on allowance

At 31 December 2008

Deducted from:

Trade bills (note 24(a))

Advances to customers and accrued
interest (note 24(a))

Other accounts (note 24(a))

The Bank

At 1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments

Amounts written off

Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years

Net charge to income statement

Unwind of discount on allowance

At 31 December 2008

Deducted from:

Trade bills (note 24(a))

Advances to customers and
accrued interest (note 24(a))

Other accounts (note 24(a))

BRI A
Individual
assessment
BT
HK$’000

53,014
(1,913)
(131,368)

5,776
260,219
(1,762)

183,966

44,259
139,707

183,966

B A R4
Individual
assessment
T
HK$°000
38,078
(1,913)
(122,833)
3,282
243,923
(1,667)

158,870

19,362
139,508

158,870

L
Collective
assessment

T
HK$°000
108,436

(102)
(12,766)

2,134
19,662

117,364

338

117,026

117,364

LR ARG
Collective
assessment

T

HK$’000

80,002
(102)
(12,766)

2,134
14,462

83,730

338

83,392

83,730

St
Total
BT T
HK$’000
161,450
(2,015)
(144,134)
7,910
279,881
(1,762)

301,330

338

161,285
139,707

301,330

At
Total
BT
HK$’000
118,080
(2,015)
(135,599)
5,416
258,385
(1,667)

242,600

338

102,754
139,508

242,600



bR IR 2 JRASE

THBAFTR OO NET+—H=4+—
H 2EHBHAZ EEWEAR :

Unlisted shares, at cost

AA7

The Bank
—O0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
T Y o TH
HK$’000 HK$’000
300,163 300,155

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries wholly and
directly owned by the Bank at 31 December 2009:

CEITREMEZ A
Issued and paid up
share capital

4 Name

K BE LR B A R ) Wing Lung Insurance
Company Limited

K e BT AT R A ) Wing Lung Finance
Limited

KRR AR A PR A ) Wing Lung Credit
Limited

K e B A R A Wing Lung Futures
Limited

K RS 25 A PR A ) Wing Lung Securities
Limited

IKBESRAT(E SEABRAH Wing Lung Bank
(Trustee) Limited

K I R o I sl A BR 2 ) Wing Lung Insurance
Brokers Limited

KA PR A 7] Wing Lung Agency

K BERATZREIVE AR A A

Limited
Wing Lung Bank
(Nominees) Limited

KB HEA R T Wing Lung Property
Management Limited
R HRAF Hongnet Limited

Wingspan Incorporated

wE: M
Kg %
LR

i
i
i
i
i
i

i

i
i
i

ik

Wingspan Incorporated 3%

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

US.A.

Bt %4
Number of
shares

29,000,000

2,500,000

1,000,000

800,000

700,000

300,000

250,000

50,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,500,000

s34
Nominal
value

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

HKS$10

US$1

Principal
FEEH activities
e Insurance
underwriting
RN Deposit-taking
BEE Investment
holding
WEZAMRHE  Futures broking
W55 B4 Securities broking
FhREX Trustee services
PG AR Investment
e I trading and
insurance broking
PRE A Insurance agency
ZEEERE  Nominee services
P Property
management
BT Investment
holding
MERH Property holding
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AL 17
The Group The Bank
—0OO0Oh —OON —OO0Oh ZO0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008

oL T AL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

JE LTS 2 A Unlisted shares, at cost = = 25,000 25,000
AL & P VR A Share of net assets 126,521 92,838 - =

BT IEZEHEH  Loans to jointly
(51 a) controlled entities (note a) 55,098 61,062 55,098 61,062
181,619 153,900 80,098 86,062

M_OOMET+T_H=+—H2ZEEI The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31

PR EEm T December 2009:
BEHZ
[iFid’ 4
Place of WEARELR  Proportion
a1 K incorporation Ownership of voting
FA Name BEMB  and operation interest power T Principal activities
SR PE A BR /A | * Bank Consortium 7 Hong Kong 13.33% 14.29% FEHERIRFEIE]  Provision of trustee,
Holding Limited * ZA5%E ~ 17B  administration and
PR IR custodian services for
retirement schemes
PRI E B A PR ) * Joint Electronic 7 Hong Kong (3:18p) (3:%8p) ALAEMEE  Provision of ATM
Teller Services (note b) (note b) MZAHMFTS  network services
Limited *
s NGB AEMR/AR  Hong Kong Life Hong Kong 16.67% 16.67% AFERBRFEH  Life insurance
Insurance Limited business
BB A PR A 7 BC Reinsurance & Hong Kong 21.00% 21.00% FIARRR2ER Reinsurance business
Limited
i-Tech Solutions Limited* i-Tech Solutions 7 Hong Kong 50.00% 50.00% 7 FX{FEH  Electronic document
Limited * processing
* AT B 2 R R R *  Directly held by the Bank
R () PO TILMI R EMS 2 BKEMIE Note: (a) The loans to jointly controlled entities include an amount of
— 5 2335 51,300,0000T (O O HK$1,300,000 (2008: HK$1,318,000) which is unsecured and interest
JUAE R H51,318,0000T) 2 & free. The remaining balance is secured and interest-bearing at normal
o RN R S o BREE AT commercial terms.
SR L IE 2R SR o
(b)y ALEEIIHMAMREZ— > W (b) The Group is one of the five founding members which together have
LR HEA %A A 2 BRI £ o A a controlling interest in the company. The Group holds 20% of the ‘A’
A I B5 A R% 0 m)EEAT T LA B AR ordinary shares issued by the company to its founding members, and is
BE%E R AT R220% % HEA # entitled to 2.88% of dividends declared.

AT E IR 2 2.88%1E 45 o
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SL[m] 2 B S 2 BB BRI RE AN T Summary of financial information on jointly controlled entities is set out

below:

i A
Assets  Liabilities
wHTT  WB¥To
HK$’000 HK$’000

OO 2009
100% 100 percent 4,821,879 3,846,768
A 2 BB R Group’s effective interest 749,238 622,717

ZOO/N4E 2008
100% 100 percent 4,132,335 3,345,143
AR B A Group’s effective interest 637,462 544,624

JREA e VAR Share of net assets

Al

(& 18)

RE i W4 Net profit/
Equity Income (loss)
wRToT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
975,111 364,587 189,355
126,521 49,933 30,174
787,192 734,241 (452,672)
92,838 107,273 (84,667)

A4
The Group

—OO0Oh —OO0ON

2009 2008

T BT T

HK$°000 HK$’000

4,936 5,867

MR_OONET_HAH=+—HEK 00O The cost of the unlisted shares in the associates at 31 December 2009
NEF+_HA=+—H > A4 —[H/E and 31 December 2008 held by a subsidiary of the Bank amounted to
NEIITREA 2 S AR JE LR 2 Bl HK$2,983,000. The particulars of the Group’s interests in associates are

AAE B s 152,983,0007T - AEE TR as follows:
W N A Z GRS

Place of
iM% incorporation
4 Name BEWMY  and operation FEEH

BT Professional &l Hong Kong AR L3
fREE A Liability
HIRAH Underwriting

Services Limited

MERBERE  Equity i Hong Kong  fRERICIE
HRRAH Underwriters
Limited

Principal
activities

Insurance
agency

Insurance
agency

HH2ER
RS

I bz
iles3is
-

bz
iles3s
W=

Particulars

of issued ik
shares held B

Unlisted 27%
ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

Unlisted 40%

ordinary shares
of HKSI each

Interest
held
indirectly

2%

40%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Wi w2 BB EORMBEAE A R

ZOON4

100%
AL E M AR
OO\
100%

AL T e

1A —H
e

W3

WA P

A A
(REHEAEHIIR)

A i Z AW

— R
(FE+4ERLE)

— A
(+Z=L )

out below:
<93 ffi HE 42
Assets  Liabilities Equity
BRTT WWTxT BWTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2009
100 percent 114,296 91,006 23,290
Group’s effective interest 31,603 24,663 6,940
2008
100 percent 160,219 140,115 20,104
Group’s effective interest 50,436 44,569 5,867
AL
The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2,346,550 2,254,600
Additions - 10,866
Reclassifications, net (108,674) (56,502)
Fair value gains on revaluation 38,084 137,586
At 31 December
(professional valuation) 2,275,960 2,346,550
AL
The Group
—OO0Oh —OOAN
2009 2008
W T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Leasehold properties in
Hong Kong:
— Long-term leases
(over 50 years) 180,590 2,254,360
— Medium-term leases
(between 10 to 50 years) 2,095,370 92,190
2,275,960 2,346,550

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

Summary of financial information on associate companies entities is set

W& ¥ A
Income  Net profit
BTt W¥T
HK$’000 HK$’000
34,769 9,424
11,683 2,961
40,070 7,824
13,710 1,882
Y NF)

The Bank
ZO0h —OO0ON
2009 2008
i3 BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
2,425,050 2,324,700
- 11,224
(108,674) (56,502)
39,384 145,628
2,355,760 2,425,050

Y NF)

The Bank
—O0h —~0OO0ON
2009 2008
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
248,190 2,332,860
2,107,570 92,190
2,355,760 2,425,050



P B E W) S B 2 AG{E R — O O JL4F
ToA=+—H> UEMEKEELELE
HERABEA > LB (s
) > SR B T 28 B R EL s e
E o J UCE A K ply 8 57 P F] BB
N R MATIEST > HR B AFEUE
Fli £ i iy - 0 JRR I 0 A (EL4 26 10 BT A M
b A A A (AR B

AL [ K AT AR B Y A R
W - HEFHEE ARNRILE - BE
TOONFETFT_H=ZT—HILEE > 4
FEAEFHL A A 2 80 1 42 5 5 152,840,000
JC (O O/N4E : #5%2,206,0007T) °

Bt A=+ —H o AARE 2 B
B2 R B R WO B SR AR AR

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2009 by
capitalising the net rental income using the Investment Method of
Valuation or as appropriate, by making reference to comparable market
transactions using the Comparison Method. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, A.G. Wilkinson & Associates,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

The Group and the Bank lease out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of up to 4 years.
Contingent rentals included in leases for the year ended 31 December
2009 amounted to HK$2,840,000 (2008: HK$2,206,000).

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AR [ B AR AT
The Group and the Bank
ZO0Oh ZOO0ON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$°000

+ R Land and buildings

— LR — Within one year 102,278 109,944
— —HEUBEELFEN — After one year but within five years 106,520 122,994
208,798 232,938

AL B AT 2 A8 - i 4 A AL
Mo {8 > FREFES T

The Group’s and the Bank’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
land lease premium and their net book values are analysed as follows:

AR H R AT
The Group and the Bank
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TEFWRA - In Hong Kong held on:
— R4 (H+4ELIE) - Long-term leases (over 50 years) 102,564 134,632
— A (FEH+4) — Medium-term leases (between 10 to 50 years) 144,233 102,541
246,797 237,173
w—H—H At 1 January 237,173 241,345
L Reclassifications 13,982 _
HESH AL L Amortisation of prepaid land lease
8 (FEFE10) premium (note 10) (4,358) (4,172)
wr=—H=+—H At 31 December 246,797 237,173

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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A 5 W

WA {1

B0 ONE—A—H
ek

B

i

PRI 4

ER

W BT IS E AN (E
R_OOJUFE+_H=1+—H
EXEiR s

R_OOJLEE—H—H

[ifE 5 3 2

AAEFEITEE (5ERELO)

H B ] 3¢

AR R
RZOOJFE+—_H=1+—H
e T R EL

RZOONE+=H=+—H

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

The Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2009

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications, net

Surplus on revaluation

Less: elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation

At 31 December 2009

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2009

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year (note 10)

Written back on disposal
Elimination on revaluation

At 31 December 2009

Net book value

At 31 December 2009

i
Premises
BT
HKS$’000

455,552
22

94,692
4,039

(380)

553,925

114,984
1
9,248

(380)

123,853

430,072

AR B %
Furniture

and
equipment
BT
HKS$’000

586,811
29

116,080

(49,608)

653,312

437,612
63
67,060

(47,018)

457,717

195,595

it
Total
BT
HKS$°000

1,042,363
51
116,080

(49,608)
94,692
4,039

(380)

1,207,237

552,596
64
76,308

(47,018)

(380)

581,570

625,667



A A {E

W OO /NFE—H—H
[ifE 5% 5

g

&

S 1 R

AL R

W BRI IRA E A (E
H_OO/NF+_HA=+—H
2R

AR OONFE—H—H

[ifE 5% 5

AAEEYrEE (GERELO)

H A ] 3¢

L AR R
RZOONE+F+—H=+—H
e T YL
H_OO0O/NF+_H=+—H

The Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications, net

Surplus on revaluation

Less: elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year (note 10)

Written back on disposal
Elimination on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Net book value

At 31 December 2008

7
Premises
T T
HK$’000

398,774
(220)

56,502
780

(284)

455,552

108,007

(11)
7,272

(284)

114,984

340,568

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

EAWS &L}
Furniture
and
equipment
BT
HK$°000

540,993

268

65,671
(20,121)

586,811

407,340
82
48,239

(18,049)

437,612

149,199

it

Total
BT T
HK$’000

939,767
48
65,671
(20,121)
56,502
780

(284)

1,042,363

515,347
71
55,511

(18,049)

(284)

552,596

489,767

159



160

IR R R

Notes to the Financial Statements

LAV RE 2 WA SAEE AT

A 5 Wl

ZOOMNAE
AN E

MG EMIERFE
RIAYE SR
— — JLILHAE
— — UL\

— —O00—%
— 004
——O00Z=4#
— 00N
— ZOONE
——00t#E
— OO/
— OO L

—OON%E

HAE

MR EY EMIELFE
RIAYE- SRS
— — JLJLHAE
— — UL\
—_—00—#
——OO04
——O0Z=Z4
— OO0 N%F
— ZOONE
——00t#E
— OO/

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

The Group

5 08 % v

Furniture

B e and
Premises equipment
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000

2009
At cost 154,498 653,312
Reclassification from investment
properties stated at
professional valuation
— 1995 50,560 -
— 1998 64,726 -
—2001 12,164 -
—2002 12,600 -
—2003 8,190 -
— 2005 46,592 -
—2006 27,910 -
—2007 16,824 -
—2008 55,889 -
—2009 103,972 -
553,925 653,312
2008
At cost 154,476 586,811
Reclassification from investment
properties stated at
professional valuation
— 1995 50,560 -
— 1998 64,726 -
—2001 12,164 -
—2002 12,600 -
—2003 11,540 -
— 2005 46,592 -
—2006 27,910 -
—2007 16,824 -
—2008 58,160 -
455,552 586,811

it
Total
BT T
HK$’000

807,810

50,560
64,726
12,164
12,600
8,190
46,592
27,910
16,824
55,889
103,972

1,207,237

741,287

50,560
64,726
12,164
12,600
11,540
46,592
27,910
16,824
58,160

1,042,363



E.NF)

A A {E

R_OONE—~H—H
HE = 3

WE

&

LR

A LB

W BT ISy E AN (E
R_OOJNFE+_H=1+—H
EXEiR s
R_OOJLEE—H—H

[if % 3 2

AAEFEYT

o B [ 4%
H AR MR

RZOOJFE+—_H=1+—H

e T 93 {EL
RZOONE+=H=+—H

The Bank

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2009

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications, net

Surplus on revaluation

Less: elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation

At 31 December 2009

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2009
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
Elimination on revaluation

At 31 December 2009

Net book value

At 31 December 2009

R AR B i

Furniture

P B and
Premises equipment
W T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
369,318 557,100
- 25

- 101,576
- (49,316)

94,692 -
4,039 —
(380) -
467,669 609,385
100,533 415,382
- 63

7,891 60,849
- (46,744)

(380) -
108,044 429,550
359,625 179,835

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

it
Total
BT
HKS$’°000

926,418
25
101,576

(49,316)
94,692
4,039

(380)

1,077,054

515,915
63
68,740

(46,744)

(380)

537,594

539,460
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E.NF)

A B A

W OO /NFE—H—H
[ifE 5% 5

g

&

S 1 R

AL R

W BRI IRA E A (E
H_OO/NF+_HA=+—H
2R

W00 /NFE—H—H

[T = 3

AAE T

H A ] 3%

L AR R
R_OONE+—H=+—H
M T V(B

R_OO/NF+_H=+—H

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

The Bank

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications, net

Surplus on revaluation

Less: elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Written back on disposal
Elimination on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Net book value

At 31 December 2008

B
Premises
T T
HK$’000

312,320

56,502
780

(284)

369,318

94,905

5,912

(284)

100,533

268,785

1M B A
Furniture
and
equipment
BT
HK$°000

511,797

268

63,505
(18,470)

557,100

386,091

82

45,792
(16,583)

415,382

141,718

it

Total
BT T
HK$’000

824,117
268
63,505

(18,470)
56,502
780

(284)

926,418

480,996
82
51,704

(16,583)

(284)

515,915

410,503



LAV RE 2 WA SAEE AT

E.NF)

ZOOMNAE

BAE

H BB SR o 55 E
3l AR SEAG (E S 7R

— JUILE S
— UL\
“OO0—4
“OO0 4
TOO0=%
—OOHE
T OONE
ENOJOR o2
“ OO NE
“ OO JLE

—OON%E

HAE

BB SR 55 E
3l A SEAG E 51 7

— JULEH
— UL\
—“O0—4
“OO0 4
“OO0=%
—OOHEE

— ZOONEE

—00tE
O O/NEE

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

The Bank

5 08 % v

Furniture

B e and
Premises equipment
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000

2009
At cost 111,619 609,385
Reclassification from investment
properties stated at
professional valuation
— 1995 43,200 -
— 1998 42,771 -
—2001 12,164 -
—2002 6,840 -
—2003 8,190 -
— 2005 38,290 -
—2006 27,910 -
—2007 16,824 -
—2008 55,889 -
—2009 103,972 -
467,669 609,385
2008
At cost 111,619 557,100
Reclassification from investment
properties stated at
professional valuation
— 1995 43,200 -
— 1998 42,771 -
—2001 12,164 -
—2002 6,840 -
—2003 11,540 -
— 2005 38,290 -
—2006 27,910 -
—2007 16,824 -
—2008 58,160 -
369,318 557,100

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

it
Total
BT T
HK$’000

721,004

43,200
42,771
12,164
6,840
8,190
38,290
27,910
16,824
55,889
103,972

1,077,054

668,719

43,200
42,771
12,164

6,840
11,540
38,290
27,910
16,824
58,160

926,418
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7 2 MR T T E A4 The net book value of premises comprises:
AR N}
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OO0ON —OO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
MR Z Leasehold properties in
A Hong Kong:
— RIATHEA — Long-term leases
(H 4D L) (over 50 years) 197,528 251,213 173,315 217,837
— AT A — Medium-term leases
(+Z2H 1) (between 10 to 50 years) 195,171 50,948 186,310 50,948
392,699 302,161 359,625 268,785
8SY Ve Leasehold properties outside
A - Hong Kong:
— KA — Freehold 30,886 31,732 - -
— RIHMHA — Long-term leases
(HA4RLE) (over 50 years) 3,192 3,268 = =
— AT — Medium-term leases
(TEHTH) (between 10 to 50 years) 3,295 3,407 = =
430,072 340,568 359,625 268,785

A5 R AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—ZOO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#WTou BT
HK$’°000 HK$’000

22 2 ANESE 4 B9 K fE 55 Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes,

NAEME - at fair value:
— ki — Listed 507 515
—JF kT — Unlisted 33,499 594,956

34,006 595,471

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



AT 2 A7
SRS AR (FERE34)

MRTOONEFTH=+—H > A%£H
HBEHUNTEERSABGIEZ £/E&
5 19 i T L LU A B30 H 4908 2 TR A
N2 438w 2,144,0000C (O O
JUAE - #E#621,192,00078) > i A A

ACSE M A A7

R 51 2

The Group The Bank
—~OO0Oh ZOO0ON —~OO0Oh ZOON
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT T T BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
Certificates of deposit issued 402,144 1,372,172 402,144 1,372,172
Structured deposits (note 34) - 703,920 - 743,776
402,144 2,076,092 402,144 2,115,948

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2009 is higher than the amount
that the Group would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the
holders by HKS$2,144,000 (2008: HKS$21,192,000), which was mainly
due to changes in interest rate risk.

AL 17
The Group The Bank
—0OO0Oh —OO0ON —OO0Oh —ZO0O0ON
2009 2008 2009 2008
EW T BT BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFE Deposits from customers
— As stated in the
— WEERELRIR balance sheet 92,301,427 82,493,626 93,902,693 83,337,532
— SR LAAFEE — Structured deposits
s AR IRZ reported as financial
ERAEENZ liabilities designated
M at fair value through
(FEFE33) profit or loss (note 33) — 703,920 — 743,776
92,301,427 83,197,546 93,902,693 84,081,308
ST Analysed by:
— WE K — Demand deposits and
RIS current accounts 5,317,464 3,641,552 5,543,067 3,864,759
— REEK — Savings deposits 30,008,581 20,153,945 30,045,863 20,424,237
— EMATE K K — Time, call and
HHAE 3K notice deposits 56,975,382 59,402,049 58,313,763 59,792,312
92,301,427 83,197,546 93,902,693 84,081,308

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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A [ B AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—~OO0Oh —0OO0ON
2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
800,000,000 7T4%
B A BB 17 B AR HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note,
B GERa) measured at amortised cost (Note a) 800,000 =
#%700,000,000 7T4%
HESH A SRR B4 HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note,
fEZiE (FRED) measured at amortised cost (Note b) 700,000 =
#%1,500,000,000 0%
BESSASIIER EBE  HKS$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
fEZigE (51 fEc) measured at amortised cost (Note ¢) 1,500,000 =
3,000,000 -
FERE 0 (a) b 1800,000,0007C i B 45 & Note: (a) This represents HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note

(®)

(c)

HEM OO JUEL A U H B
17> MR e AR AR T
FIEAR o ICEEE R — O —JL
B A0 o SR
HE—O—MELA+THLH - |
WITHEREBEEBEEA G A
A BRI PR RS =8 A s
JCERAT IR] 2 PR B 2005 2y > DL
B MH BT R - HE& > M
PR A L R H ) > AR
B FE B B 5T 5 =R A W9 e iR
1T 2697 B 25052 -

I ¥ 700,000,000 7C T B 1% 1%
EWER OO JNFEILHA —+—=H
AT o W E B A AT
ZHIEA o LEEREIE RN O —
JUESLA —F— H B - s
BEH A O —4ERA =
Heo B¥i7HZ®EEmRA
ZHE A NS =
i A H1#5 JC 8- 17 [R] 2E 45 B 200
HEE o D A ET— e
HAR SRR e B R H
S| > 1% B FE & T A =AW
H W oo $R-47 [ 347 B 25058
2 o

I %1,500,000,0007C & 215 &
HER OO NET AN
H#47 > A9RGB A SE [ B A
FFZHINEAR o IWEFFH R O
R Sl & Rt oAV E 1 R
EHEEH B O—NETA
ZAJNH o BEEEE R D7 AR F
R570%HE > BT o

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

(®)

(c)

qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 14 July 2009. The note will mature on 14 July 2019 with an
optional redemption date falling on 15 July 2014. Interest rate for the
note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month HIBOR plus 200
basis points for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the note is not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the note will bear interest at 3-month HIBOR plus
250 basis points.

This represents HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 22 September 2009. The note will mature on 22 September 2019
with an optional redemption date falling on 23 September 2014.
Interest rate for the note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month
HIBOR plus 200 basis points for the first 5 years from the date of
issue to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the note is not
redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the note will bear interest at
3-month HIBOR plus 250 basis points.

This represents HK$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 28 December 2009. The notes will mature on 28 December 2021
with an optional redemption date falling on 28 December 2016.
Interest at 5.70% per annum is payable on a quarterly basis.



CHREEAMBRANMERZBELEBIEE The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
& (BfR) ZHBGRG > RN Z %8B balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:
wmr

A H The Group

ek
g Bk B
BEyE ELN fAEHE  Impairment

Accelerated Revaluation  Retirement  allowances

tax on benefit on loans and ] i At
depreciation  properties  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total

T %t #%Tx #WTx #WTx #WTx #% T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000

RZOOMNE—A—H At January 2009 (9,715)  (420,427) (35,241) 18,717 259,927 (115)  (187,454)
TElk#s® (GnB) /. (Charged)/credited to
e the income statement (8,819) (6,284) 237 (199)  (128,759) 575 (141,114)
FEHMAHREMEE  Charged to other comprehensive
(FEE39) income (note 39) = (666) = = = (10,428) (11,094)
RZOO0 N
+=A=+-H At 31 December 2009 (18534)  (4271377) (32,869) 18,518 131,168 (10,568)  (339,662)
Y. iy The Bank
B
ik BEE WA

BUESE  MEER  WAEE  Impairment

Accelerated Revaluation  Retirement  allowances

tax on benefit onloansand  BUEMEH Hl fit
depreciation  properties  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total

T %t #%Tx #WTx #WTx #WTx #% T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000

MO0 /UE—H—H At1 January 2009 (7,278) (420,159) (35,241) 13,166 174,238 737 (274,537)
TEk#E® (k) /. (Charged)/credited to

iR the income statement (6,167) (6,284) 2,372 1,062 (117,530) - (126,547)
FERMAMIEME  Charged to other comprehensive

(FE#839) income (note 39) - (666) - - = (10,554) (11,220)
RZOONE

+=A=+—H  At3] December 2009 (3445) (427,009  (32869) 14228 56,708 0817 (412304)
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36 Deferred taxation (Continued)

A H The Group
i Bk W
BURSE  WEER O WAEE  Impairment
Accelerated ~ Revaluation ~ Retirement  allowances
tax on benefit onloansand  BiHEH ity Gt
depreciation properties  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
ERTr Wt BETx EWTx ERTx T BT
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
HZOO0NE—HA—H At January 2008 (10,087) (421,694) (35,571) 18,777 4018 (19,602) (464,159)
el ik / Credited/(charged) to
(41B%) the income statement n 971 330 (60) 255,909 1,097 258,619
FRM AT Credited to other comprehensive
(FEF#39) income (note 39) = 296 = = = 17,790 18,086
RZOONE
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008 (9,715) (420,427) (35,241) 18,717 259,927 (715) (187,454)
ES ) The Bank
g%
g Bk B
BUENTE L EE A fFIEE  Impairment
Accelerated ~ Revaluation ~ Retirement  allowances
tax on benefit onloansand  BiFESE Hih Gt
depreciation properties  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
T Wt BMTT EWTx #BTx W%t BT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZOONF—~H—H At1 January 2008 (6,859) (421,410) (35,571) 13,301 - (143) (450,182)
Fk#i® () /- (Charged)/credited to
). the income statement (419) 971 330 (635) 174,238 = 174,485
FHEM AT Credited to other comprehensive
(3EFE39) income (note 39) = 280 = = = 880 1,160
RZ0O0NE
+-H=+—H At 31 December 2008 (7,278) (420,159) (35,241) 13,166 174,238 737 (274,537)

168 TKBESRATA BRAH] =0 O JLAR4EH



ACSE M

REEAELRNMERE  Net deferred tax assets
ZIRMERIEE FERAE  recognised in the balance sheet 75,159
NG EBERNMHEZ  Net deferred tax liabilities
ZHESERIIE A fEIF4E  recognised in the balance sheet (414,821)

P SR JE A T DR R AR B B A5 R 45 T 9
AR A 2 R Y6 ) S8 T A O A e
HEE T UM - R =00 NLFE+H
== H o> AR R 2 BE
18 £ %99,654,0000C (- O O J\4E -
) > ] &5 DL HE B R AR FERRBLURA o

The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
88,909
(276,363

(339,662)

(187,454

Y. N )
The Bank

—OO0Oh —~0O0ON
2009 2008

T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

) (412,304) (274,537)
) (412,304) (274,537)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the deferred tax benefit through future profits is
probable. At 31 December 2009, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
of HK$99,654,000 (2008: Nil) to be carried forward to set off against

future taxable profits.

N
The Group

—OO0Oh —OO0ON

2009 2008

BT BT

HK$°000 HKS$°000

JREAS ) 2L Interest payable 91,064 174,733
kB 1E Insurance liabilities 1,496,826 1,490,414
JEAST B LA HETE Accounts and other payable 2,203,682 946,082
3,791,572 2,611,229

YN )
The Bank

—O0Oh —0O0ON
2009 2008
T T o0
HK$’000 HKS$’000
102,304 175,364
1,803,727 678,233
1,906,031 853,597
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REGABHHWT - Insurance liabilities are analysed as follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Rk Gross
C 2R RERBR Claims reported and loss adjustment
R expenses 515,054 591,499
CE AR R RKIE Claims incurred but not reported 609,929 506,686
EN NS Unearned premiums 284,412 279,915
oA 6 Other reserve 1,299 1,467
oA 1) 307 J i A Provision for unexpired risk 14,305 17,236
HAth Others 71,827 93,611
TR B B R A Total insurance liabilities, gross 1,496,826 1,490,414
X TN ] Recoverable from reinsurers
C 2 REMIELK Claims reported and loss adjustment
S expenses 35,282 62,920
AR ERZ RHE Claims incurred but not reported 106,499 60,622
I 9 O Unearned premiums 35,021 32,411
TR AL PR B & AR Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
A (sLFE24 (a)) (note 24(a)) 176,802 155,953
T Net
O 2 RERIEL Claims reported and loss adjustment
PR expenses 479,772 528,579
BB HARRZ RE Claims incurred but not reported 503,430 446,064
o G R 2 Unearned premiums 249,391 247,504
HoAth A Other reserve 1,299 1,467
oA 1) 00 J g v A Provision for unexpired risk 14,305 17,236
Hofte Others 71,827 93,611
TR A Total insurance liabilities, net 1,320,024 1,334,461

C 2z REARH  HEHILIHAR
KE RS REERBERZ AEHRETHE
H 7 AT 48 R B B RS i [ 2 R o i
OONFEFT_H=Z1T—HK_OONF
T A=+ —HZ AR LR L
SERFE K o PR LA L P R

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment expenses liabilities and
the liability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The amounts for salvage
and subrogation at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are not
separately disclosed as they are not material.



SEAMREAS

300,000,000/% (—O O /N4 :
300,000,000/ ) &40 1% > AR 150

E T REME A

232,190,115/ (—.O O J\4E :
232,190,115/%) 4@ ML > ARSI

W2 R A A RO R B IR 2 B
B INERER AT 2 Bk b DU i — 52

977 ANBEEE o P 2 B AT 2
FEEFARFHAL

ACSE M

BRZOO0NE—~A—H Atl January 2009

& 2 5 Available-for-sale securities
- NHEESE — Changes in fair value
— A A — Transfer to income
g% statement on disposal
BfER Surplus on revaluation

B 8 0 ) b Share of associates’ reserves
FEIGSEFEHE®  Share of jointly controlled

it entities’ reserves
AFEERE Effect of deferred taxation on
HRIEBIAL fair value adjustments
P2 (7ERE30) (note 36)
T B A Profit for the year
LN L] Transfer to retained earning
RZOONE

+-H=+—H At 31 December 2009

Authorised:

300,000,000 (2008: 300,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$5 each

Issued and fully paid:

232,190,115 (2008: 232,190,115)
ordinary shares of HK$5 each

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Bank’s residual net assets.

The Group
Bl
B EE Gk Al
Bank  HERA

BARM  premises Investment R
Capital ~ revaluation  revaluation Statutory
reserve reserve reserve surplus

T %t #%Tx #WNTx

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000

57,500 6,145 173,794
- - 188766
- - (68,897)
- 4,039 -
- - 137
- - 4,489

- 666)  (10,428)

57,500 39,518 287,861

25

(25)

—OO0h

2009
oL
HKS$°000

1,500,000

1,160,951

e REEN
General Retained
reserve earnings
T %
HK$’000 HKS$°000

1,003,730 7,969,750

884,445

25

1,003,730 8,854,220

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$’000

1,500,000

1,160,951

it

Total
BT
HK$°000

9,240,944
188,766
(68,897)

4,039
137
4,489
(11,094)

884,445

10,242,829
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N The Bank
A
e il il
Bank
premises
revaluation
reserve
T
HK$’000
RTOONE—~H—H At January 2009 34,788
]t R Available-for-sale securities
— N TR s — Changes in fair value =
— i IR A — Transfer to income statement
2 7% on disposal -
ERLYRS Surplus on revaluation 4,039
N TE (9 R 30 Effect of deferred taxation on
FilEZ 2 (3hFE36)  fair value adjustments (note 36) (666)
FE A JE Ui A Profit for the year =
.0 O Jut:
+—-HA=+—H At 31 December 2009 38,161

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

HAG

B Gl i
Investment
revaluation
reserve

T
HK$°000

29,583
142,094

(13,290)

(10,554)

147,833

% 1 ik
General
reserve
W T
HKS$°000

1,003,730

1,003,730

Pk B i
Retained
earnings
T
HKS$’000

7,470,751

640,127

8,110,878

ait
Total
BT
HKS$°000

8,538,852
142,094

(13,290)
4,039

(11,220)
640,127

9,300,602



39 flifh (%)

39 Reserves (Continued)

A H The Group
B
R B
Bank BE R
AR premises  Investment R LHERME  REEA
Capital ~ revaluation  revaluation Statutory General Retained At
reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve earnings Total
W Wt wWTx #WTx wWMTx #WTx BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
RTO0NE—H—H At January 2008 57,500 35,069 972,543 = 1,003,730 9,250,310 11,319,152
Mk & 2% Available-for-sale securities
- AVFEESE ~ Changes in fair value - —(989,829) = = - (989,829)
— A E R A — Transfer to income
g% statement on disposal - - (131202 - = - (131202)
— B A — Transfer to income
g % statement on impairment = = 309,785 = = = 309,785
ERRYAR Surplus on revaluation = 780 = = = = 780
JEL A\ R b Share of associates’ reserves = = (175) = = = (175)
I ) 2 o Share of jointly controlled
FlfhE entities’ reserves = = (5,119) = = = (5,119)
NFEERES Effect of deferred taxation on
BRI fair value adjustments
P2 (7EFE30) (note 36) = 296 17,790 = = = 18,086
REE R Loss for the year = = = = = (816,155)  (816,155)
AR R Transfer to statutory surplus - - - 25 - (25) -
ER-00tH
AR S 2007 Final dividend paid - - - - - (348285) (348,285
ER_OONE
ik e 2008 Interim dividend paid - - - - - (116,095 (116,095)
RZOONE
+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2008 57,500 36,145 173,794 25 1,003,730 7,969,750 9,240,944
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ENF)

The Bank

R=OO0/NFE—H—H At January 2008

i 2 i
— nEERE
— R E R A

ETES
— RAE A
&R

HAGA R

O PR A B
BIEBIHZ
B (3EH36)

A H

Available-for-sale securities
— Changes in fair value
— Transfer to income statement
on disposal
— Transfer to income statement
on impairment
Surplus on revaluation
Effect of deferred taxation on
fair value adjustments
(note 36)
Loss for the year

Bk OO E4EAMBE 2007 Final dividend paid
EIR - OO/MEFHIEE 2008 Interim dividend paid

R0 0N
+=H=+—H

At 31 December 2008

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

Hfh

5 I (ot

Bank

premises
revaluation

reserve
T T
HK$°000

33,728

780

280

34,788

X

BOE i
Investment
revaluation
reserve

BT
HK$’000

92,800
(363,314)
(6,651)

305,868

880

29,583

270 i
General
reserve
Wit
HK$’000

1,003,730

1,003,730

R B i A
Retained
earnings
BT T
HKS$°000

8,229,500

(294,369)
(348,285)
(116,095)

7,470,751

it

Total
T
HK$’000

9,359,758

(363,314)

(6,651)
305,868

780

1,160
(294,369)
(348,285)
(116,095)

8,538,852



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

AIE B A s T A
R EL DR B i 1) AR AL Sl R AT R
TAATRE P L o

AL 5 A A SRR OR SRR L1
A& wHBCR L @

5 7 T {0 0 3 2 7
2 (L 2 A P B 2 2 3
22 4 0 R AR R L6 % 1740
B -

15 T 71 B T 65 B R 2 AR AT A
ECUNIEE DA o /AN
Fat R TR 10%5 0% - H 2
R 2 2 TR S 7 T A
f950% o &1 BR b i 58 AL HEAR 7]
A Sl 2 W 18 S AL 5 B WO
7 o

T3 ft 2 AT P2 AR R A i )
R

AEBHCHR OO NE+T = H=
+—H Z R 8E %A R RS
455,276,0007C (O O J\4F : # ¥
361,127,00070) 1F %4 € il - 15
SE b Ty B A R H R IR A
CERATZEMRM) Z Mk i B8 > T2 TH
ftifh & 58 B B RC R PR R i AL AT »
B G e A R -

FERGIWMEBRAMBELE (00
JNEE ¢ 4E) o

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

(2

The Group’s capital reserve was set up in relation to the
capitalisation by certain subsidiaries of their retained earnings for
the issue of new shares to the Bank.

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.11.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities until the securities
are derecognised or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in notes 1.6 and 1.7.

Statutory surplus reserve is provided at 10% of the audited profit
after tax of a subsidiary of the Bank which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China, until the reserve balance is equal to
50% of its registered share capital. Surplus reserve can be used to
offset accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital with the
approval of shareholders.

General reserve comprises previous years’ transfers from retained
earnings.

At 31 December 2009, included in retained earnings is an amount of
HK$455,276,000 (2008: HK$361,127,000) which was earmarked as
regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential
supervision purposes. Movements in the reserve are made directly
through retained earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.

The directors did not propose any final dividend (2008: Nil) after
the year end.

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

175



176

SR A L

Notes to the Financial Statements

BARAE T A& EE A RRIEE WA I
J& X FAERRATT

B 2 7
— A RN R4

— [7] S5 A e e Bk
— R H AR IE

B 24 R
— WA
— BRI
— DA R
SR

— HAdHRIE K T 2

(a) $EEH B4

A AR ) A R SR AR AT 3 > o]
TR I o FEMRAITRB AR
Pk~ T e S FA Nk~ BB e R B A
HEARAS © 2% F B P S HRAT SEHS AL AR 4R 11
TR BoymeE - HEEHEE -
B B A SR ~ < T 3y BB A T
Sy iE B o R BB BT AR AR K H A A
BB o REALSEB AT R 5 RO R AR
M5 o HAt 2EH R AREY ERE -
B K i S FE s o

RITFETE B A R B K H At
e EREs < EE KA BUH - U
Te AR BE 5 PR3 BiE T 45 52 3685 20 TR 0
HH -

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

Included in the following balance sheet headings are balances with
subsidiaries:

VN F)
The Bank
—~OO0Oh —0OO0ON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000
Amounts due from subsidiaries:
Cash and short-term funds 55,000 60,000
Placements with and loans and
advances to banks 315,000 320,000
Advances and other accounts 168,482 197,800
538,482 577,800
Amounts due to subsidiaries:
Deposits and balances from banks 93,439 97,028
Deposits from customers 1,601,266 846,787
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss - 39,856
Other accounts and accruals 36,920 20,660
1,731,625 1,004,331

(a) Business segments

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which
comprises five business segments. Retail banking includes acceptance
of deposits, mortgage and personal loan lending, wealth management
and insurance agency services. Corporate and commercial banking
includes advance of commercial and industrial loans, trade financing,
hire purchase and leasing. Treasury activities include foreign exchange,
money market and capital market activities. Insurance activities include
insurance underwriting and other related businesses. Brokerage activities
include securities and futures brokerage services. Other activities mainly
comprise investment properties holding, China and overseas operations.

Unallocated items mainly comprise assets and liabilities of the central
management unit and other shared services, taxation and any items
which cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.



(a) HEH 5 (4])

Z00n%E

FHSIA /(0
-5
~ b

RBER M
A/ Gith)
LN
— 5
~ b

UEE LN

R
b
~

REBK RS

ABERA /(B
BAEATREL H
st sEn
28
B AR 2 B

BBt
fEH

Rl Al

BRI
il RHER

HbEE
L]
B R

BEnakn
(]

niaiR
Wi A fn

ES-L

2009

Net interest income/(expense)
- External
- Inter-segment

Net fees and commission
income/(expense)
Other operating income
- External
- Inter-segment

Segment operating income

(Operating expenses
- External
- Inter-segment

Impairment charge for credit loss

Segment operating profit/(loss)
Fair value gains on investment properties
Share of net profits of jointly
controlled entities
Share of net profits of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit after tax

Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation charge

Segment assets

Inter-segment transactions

Interests in jointly controlled entities
Interests in associates

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Inter-segment transactions

Total liabilities

(a) Business segments (Continued)

FERIT
Retail
banking

T
HKS 000

102,435
544,270

046,705

71,943

103,137

$21,785

(584941)
(132,770)

(17.711)
(1,662)

102412

58,401
17,037

26,434,143

93,550,190

AR
iES T
Corporate

and
commercial
banking
T
HK$'000

439937
(159314)

280,623

46814

115459

442,896

(66,368)
(16,439)

(82,807)
93%9)

350,700

7,335
3,896

26,741,365

988,993

W%
Treasury
hT
HKS'000

654,066
(396.247)

257,819

(5,524)

179372

131,667
(37,179)
(6,502)

(43,680)

387,987

1219
2263

57,464,772

8,144,654

IRER
Insurance

T
HKS 000

8422
12,614

21,09

1,156

2,52
(25,489)
(170)

(25,659)

(3407)

736
463

1,874,776

1,569,931

&4
Brokerage

T
HKS 000

12,605
(1,614)

10991

247,662

33

262,04

(70,437)
(34,177)

(104614)
(839)

156,572

19,833
8,314

1,179,047

499,702

)
ot
Total
reportable
segments
hT
HKS000

1217465
(231)

1,217,234

366,895

402,495

1986,624

(184,413)
(190,058)

O74471)
(17,889)

994,264

87,524
41973

113,694,303

104,753,470
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X
Others
T
HKS’000

114359
31

114,590

15,180

119,060
134990

383,820

(117,639)
(6.262)

(123901)
(60,032)

199,887

7,138
15475

9,382,380

7,037,706

RAREH
R
A
Unallocated
and inter-
segment
elimination

R
HKS 000

50

(134,990)
(134,940)
(251,832)
196,320

(55,512)

(190452)

21318
13218

416,342

484,624

A%H
Group
HH T
HK$°000

1,331,824

1,331,844

382,125

521,555

2,035,504

(1,153,884)

(1,153,884)
(191)

1,003,699
38,084

30,174
2,961

1,074918
(190,473)

884,445

116,080
80,606

123,493,025
(6,369,657)
181,619
4,936

117,309,923

112,275,800
(6.369,657)

105,906,143
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41 P

(%)

(a) HEH 5 (4])

41 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

AEEH
Kl Rz
T T S
Corporate AT Unallocated
ZERMT and y ) Total and inter-
Retail  commercial B (R BE reportable A segment A%
banking b\anking Treasury  Insurance qukerage seguients chers elimination Group
BT EWTr EWTr  EWTx Rt Rt kT gkt T
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$°000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§000  HKS'000
ZOON (&51) 2008 (Restated)
RSB /(i) Netinterest income/(expense)
— 5 - External (954712) 719973 1,339,843 34,808 16238 156,150 121,183 - 1271333
— WHHH - Inter-segment 1567940 (544,142)  (1,116,512) 8,676 (4764)  (88802) 88,802 - -
613208 175831 223331 43484 ILAT4 1067348 209,985 - 171333
RHER R Net fees and commission
WA/ (k) income/(expense) 87,644 47,634 (5,043) - 19,145 326378 17,117 4 343499
HAEEIA /() Other operating income/(expense)
-5 - External 115783 (936,253) 168360  (386,892) 07 (1038295 114,667 - (923,628)
~ [WHR S - Inter-segment - - - - - - 126553 (126,553) -
IEEIA /() Segment operating income/(expense) 816655  (TILT88) 386646  (343408) 208326 355431 468322 (126549) 697004
B Operating expenses
i - External (539,557)  (54188)  (29,763)  (28,176) (35435  (T07,119)  (93,659)  (247448) (1,048,26)
—  Inter-segment (112356)  (16455)  (6.268) (16)  (1598) (I76844)  (8474) 185318 -
(651913 (70,643)  (36,031)  (28343)  (97,033)  (883963)  (102,133)  (62,130) (1,048,226)
[FRBRZHEAE Impairment charge for credit loss (229,036)  (34.521)  (462,927) (3,917) - (30400 (16324) - (746,125
AVEE (B8 /8F  Segment operating (loss)/profit (64204)  (817,952)  (112312)  (375,668) 111,293 (1,258933) 349865  (188,679) (1,097,747)
S EMEATEEZ & Fair value gains on investment properties 137,586
TEIG LR A Share of net losses of jointly controlled
LhER entities (84,667)
FEfRIE AT A Share of net profits of associates 1,882
BBiER Loss before tax (1,042,946)
st Tncome tax 226,791
BB Loss after tax (816,155)
BT Capital expenditure 26,557 5,960 31 1,101 3,269 37218 29812 9,507 76,537
TERBHER Depreciation and amortisation charge 19,010 2,002 2123 466 3,408 27,009 24,048 8,626 59,683
g Segment assets 26,271,162 18791415 50,726,095 1696330 751,048 98236,050 6,475,622 301,230 105,012,902
RS Inter-segment transactions (4,579,815
SRR Interests in jointly controlled entities 153,900
BanaEs Interests in associates 5,367
fEE Toal assets 100,392,854
e Segment liabilities 83,554,027 704404 4333400 1495753 324570 90412156 4,061,265 297353 94,770,774
LEY R Inter-segment transactions (4,579,815)
B Total liabilties 90,190959
FKBESRATA FRA T O O JUFAFHR



(b) F%& 33 = 53

A T EAE R B LY > AEEZ
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HEEDIR10% °
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ZEMERE RMESERHESHY
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HEZEEBT M
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A RS
[EESLNERE] P
A AR
AT DA O 2
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—HEHLUTZ
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JRASAE A 1
—FEUEZ
oAt R 3%

(ERS e
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(b) Geographical area

operations outside Hong Kong.

aggregate credit risk weighted amounts:

Contractual amount

Direct credit substitutes
Transaction-related
contingencies

Trade-related contingencies
Other commitments which are
unconditionally cancellable
Other commitments with
an original maturity of
one year or less
Other commitments with
an original maturity of over
one year

Credit risk weighted amount

AL

The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
#W T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
609,267 287,168
50,309 122,324
177,786 121,539
10,017,818 9,050,982
2,962,001 655,300
5,559,765 3,796,778
19,376,946 14,034,091
3,635,903 2,187,860

range from 0% to 150%.

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. Less than 10% of the
Group’s income, profit, assets or liabilities are attributable to the Group’s

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments, and the

YN F)

The Bank
—OO0Oh —0O0ON
2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
680,912 353,813
50,309 122,324
177,786 121,539
10,099,431 9,135,755
2,962,001 655,300
5,559,765 3,796,778
19,530,204 14,185,509
3,704,137 2,253,594

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts
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@ NTHAH=1T—H > FHERME (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in

WMEN 2 EAREIR - the financial statements are as follows:
AL E Y. iy
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OO0ON —OO0Oh — 00N
2009 2008 2009 2008

i T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EESLERIEMER  Contracted but not provided for 6,012 43,638 5,378 41,502
IR A A Authorised but not contracted for = 1,489 = 1,489

b)) R TZA=1+—H > ANAfs§ 28 (b) At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments payable

SERH B 2 R A B A A+ A B A IE AR under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
B
ASE M N
The Group The Bank
—OO0Oh —OON —OOh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

wWT T T oT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

b R Land and buildings
— R — Within one year 27,218 25,655 23,671 24,388
— After one year but within
— BB AEN five years 51,649 44,380 49,896 44,380
— HFEE — Over five years — 7,590 — 7,590

78,867 77,625 73,567 76,358
AREEEAITLEEMEMH —2Y  The Group and the Bank lease certain properties under operating leases.

¥ o HAEAFEW S —FENF o IWSEF The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years. None of the
LI AL 4G SR AU © leases include contingent rentals.

180 HKEESRATAH FRA A 0 O JUAFEAEH



(a) BRBLRTEFI (1) B3R B 2

Bl WG BB IR %R

BRBLAT A (1R
HREIHE
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BEYEE M)W
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FER BN &R
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B E

B S H At AR I

BEARNM, (B
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A A7k (=f A LIREIH)

B A7
AT 2 A7
MAPEER AR mRZ
4l B R

L HIRET Z Afd
LAt R IH Je T B

BEEHZBE Ol WA

HE

from operations

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Share of net (profits)/losses of
jointly controlled entities
Share of net profits of associates
Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities
Net loss on disposal of other properties
and equipment
Fair value gains on investment properties
Impairment charge for credit losses
Depreciation
Amortisation of land lease premium
Amortisaton of premium on available-
for-sale securities and held-to-
maturity securities

Operating profit/(loss) before changes
in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Short-term funds

Placements with and loans and
advances to banks maturing
beyond three months

Trading securities

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Advances and other accounts

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Net derivative financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks

maturing beyond three months
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit issued
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Trading liabilities
Other accounts and accruals

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

—O0Oh
2009

T
HK$’000

1,074,918
(30,174)
(2,961)
(68,897)
2,283
(38,084)
77,921

76,308
4,358

(26,459)

1,069,213
(1,333,579)
(2,049,387)
986,070
(1,291,194)
(9,695,538)
294,410
354,625
9,807,801
960,371
(1,673,948)

29,491
1,174,637

(1,367,028)

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash generated

—OO0ON

2008
T
HK$°000

(1,042,946)
84,667
(1,882)

(131,202)
1,635

(137,586)
746,725

55,511
4,172

(136,714)

(557,620)
904,509
616,115
(110,540)
495,665
(392,320)
366,352

81,488

12,012,268
(752,224)
(82,936)

(86)
(1,066,267)

11,514,404
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Bl K55 Al Bl & JH H Z &5 87 40 #r

(b) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents

—OO0Oh —~0O0ON

2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

JEA7 IR 4 M AR 2 Cash and balances with banks 2,375,819 2,160,442
J WA i m] 26 Money at call and short notice 15,039,967 33,882,916
Placements with and loans and
[F] 2 5 B A7 T80 B B K advances to banks with original
(REIWEAE=MAN) maturity within three months 7,635,999 3,983,327

Treasury bills with original maturity

within three months 1,258,930 629,910

Short positions in Exchange Fund

Bills and Notes (4,000) (594,956)

Deposits and balances from banks with

(@) AZOONFETZH=+—H > » —

2 1 BUH 95 907,200,0000T (%5 6] #E
M55 836,000 5 ~O O N4E+ A
=+—H : 3£57,200,0007C > % [H
H#E¥55.800,0000C) Z B MK
GINEAR S RERESRN . K
5 26 0 & W w1 > 1R B AR AT AR
BT 2B -

b) R_OONE+_H=+—H &

FH A Ik 1534,499,0009C (O O\
4 i %596,318,0007T) 11 A BE 3
SR RMES > B R EARITRE
B K [ I T v S i 2= A R S 4 B 4
AR A YL
B2 IEH M EOELT o M B R A
T I 4 2R 98 M Al 5 = B G AE [ HF
TEEEHEESE] N -

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

original maturity within three months (2,890,868) (762,256)

23,415,847 39,299,383

(a) At 31 December 2009, a money market deposit of US$7,200,000
(equivalent to HK$55,836,000; 2008: US$7,200,000 equivalent to
HK$55,800,000) included in cash and short-term funds has been
pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency of the United
States of America as a statutory deposit for the Bank’s branch in Los
Angeles.

(b) At 31 December 2009, Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and Notes
totalling HK$34,499,000 (2008: HK$596,318,000) which are
included in “Trading securities” have been pledged to secure the
Bank’s short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes under sale
and repurchase agreements entered into by the Bank in the normal
course of its business.



1) 55161Bf Z #1  Loans made by the Bank to officers and disclosed pursuant to section

MNEBZFEIE MU 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

B+-HA=+—H EERE
ZHRHE &R #
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
—O0Oh —OON —0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008 2009 2008

L T T oL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal and
interest 7,009 3,264 7,533 4,712
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2009
The Group and the Bank

Aggregate amounts outstanding
at the year end

— Loans

— Placement of deposits

— Deposits from customers

— Subordinated debt issued

— Other accounts and accruals

Off-balance sheet outstanding
— Exchange rate contracts
(notional amounts)

— Other commitments

The Group

Income for the year received
from related parties
— Interest income
— Other operating income
— Net insurance operating income

Expenses for the year paid to
related parties
— Interest expenses
— Operating expenses
— Net insurance operating expenses

184 HKEESRATAH FRA A 0 O JUAFEAEH

el
Holding
company
EW T
HK$°000

21,374
8,483
821,872
1,500,000

4,263

1,546,946

265

267

20918

20,921

JL i
PEHIE R
Jointly
controlled
entities

T
HK$°000

55,098

689,507

18,000

576
6,362
616

7,554

4,664
6,933
282

11,879

FE
(IN
Key

Bi# AR management

A‘ssociatgs
LS
HK$°000

584

584

18,886

18,892

Qersonngl
LS
HK$°000

4,181

595,445

2,086

66
60
34

160

579
43

622

Aty
HREANL
Other
related
parties
Wik
HK$°000

49

5,636,751

329

1,697
630
2,328

23,540

23,540

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
with related parties in the normal course of business, which include
loans, deposits, insurance and other financial related transactions. These
related parties are the company which has control over the Group, key
management personnel of the Bank, close members of their families and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by the Group or by
them. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, other material related party transactions entered
into by the Group are as follows:

fit

Total
LS
HK$°000

80,702
8,483
7,746,158
1,500,000

4,263

1,546,946

20415

2,604
7,638
651

10,893

49,707
6,936
19,211

75,854



47 ERABREBA L2 S (#)

47 Material related party transactions (Continued)

JE [ Iz oty
P E R fTHAE AREAL
Bl Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled ~ ${&/AF  management related )
company entities  Associates  personnel parties Total
wHTT BT RWTr BT BNt BWTx
HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$000
ZOON% 2008
REE R AT The Group and the Bank
Aggregate amounts outstanding
WSS H R AR at the year end
- &% - Loans - 61,062 - 6,571 150,005 217,638
— PR ~ Placement of deposits 31,028 = = = = 31,028
- EF — Deposits from customers 56,697 905,934 15,056 488,146 4,967,920 6,433,753
B AERIME Off-balance sheet outstanding
— H ki — Other commitments = 12,000 - 1,544 82 13,626
AGEE The Group
AR B B Income for the year received
AEZIA from related parties
— Fl B A — Interest income 151 2,133 = 238 5,129 7,651
- e YN — Other operating income = 7,145 580 173 1,697 9,595
— REREFEFRA — Net insurance operating income = 4,157 = - - 4,157
151 13,435 580 411 6,826 21,403
REEIAMTHBE  Expenses for the year paid to
ANLZ#ER related parties
—MERH ~ Interest expenses 1,106 13,413 3 18,731 69,902 103,184
—EELH — Operating expenses - 6,091 - - 5,715 11,806
— (B — Net insurance operating expenses - - 23,942 - - 23,942
1,106 19,504 23,974 18,731 75,617 138,932

AL ENG M A Al T ABIE AN 2 No impairment allowances have been recognised in respect of loans granted
BT RBAT T B M (O O /\4F

fE) o

to related parties (2008: Nil).
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Wingspan Incorporated
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AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group including
amounts paid to the Bank’s directors is as follows:

ZO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
T oY o W
HKS$°000 HK$’000

Salaries, bonus and other short-term
benefits 30,068 32,559
Retirement benefits 1,560 1,461
31,628 34,020

Hongnet Limited *

Sea Wing Investments Limited

Wing Lung Agency Limited

Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited *
Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited *

Wing Lung Credit Limited

Wing Lung Finance Limited

Wing Lung Futures Limited *

Wing Lung Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited **
Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited
Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited *
Wing Lung Property Management Limited *
Wing Lung Securities Limited *

Wingspan Incorporated

# Companies excluded in the computation of the consolidated capital ratios at
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 for regulatory reporting purposes

* Liquidation process commenced in January 2010

The directors consider that the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., which is
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised), Presentation of
financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the current year’s
presentation and comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed
for the first time in 2009 has been provided. Further details of these
developments are disclosed in note 1.1.
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Supplementary Financial Information

PUR A 2 BB B s R il e B R The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying
WU RS RIS B i S F A% I K 2 —  information to the financial statements and does not form part of the

A o audited financial statements.
—ZOO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
B Capital ratios
— AR — Capital adequacy ratio 16.2% 13.8%
— ZOEARR R LR — Core capital adequacy ratio 9.9% 12.0%

MRFE EAR = O O JLFE KX =0 O/  The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
TZA=ZT—HZERLRNERIER  capital ratios as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 is analysed
WRERATRIE H T AT as follows:

—O0Oh —O0O0ON

2009 2008
T T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

B EA Core capital:
B R ) 2 A AR Paid up ordinary share capital 1,160,951 1,160,951
fet i Reserves 5,851,230 6,249,989
B4 R Profit and loss account 56,912 (482,180)
FHBR - IEAEBIIE & Less: Deferred tax assets (3,768) (22,689)
BOER Core capital 7,065,325 6,906,071
W AZ D EAS N TE B Less: Deductions from core capital (399,087) (407,402)
FHJE H 8 W% D EASHE%E  Total core capital after deductions 6,666,238 6,498,669
MmE A Supplementary capital:
RAE A EE E A A
R A T A Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
Wi %5 1) fiti A revaluation of holdings of land and buildings 824,416 824,416
A TEEEAG R A Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
AL L R R 5 I RS revaluation of holdings of available-for-sale
B 5 2 A Wi A B b equities and debt securities 77,973 18,245
PR 22 2 P (A A A Unrealised fair value gains arising from
B A 56 A B 1l 2 R holdings of equities and debt securities
8 o M AR5 R 5 A AR designated at fair value through
ZARERI S profit or loss 199,550 35,610
—JREERAT 2L B AU IS E 5 Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 455,276 361,127
S5 G Al TRl (R M A Collective impairment allowances 126,403 117,364
BT 2 AR Term subordinated debt 3,000,000 =
[(ap)IBSZN Supplementary capital 4,683,618 1,356,762
W BRI EAS B e TE B Less: Deductions from supplementary capital (399,087) (407,402)
FHIE H & R M EASS4%E  Total supplementary capital after deductions 4,284,531 949,360
OIE B AZ N EA LB 44%H  Total capital base after deductions 10,950,769 7,448,029
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The capital ratios at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 were
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) under section 98A of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. In accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules, the Group has adopted the “standardised approach” for
the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk and market risk,
and the “basic indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk.

The basis of consolidation for calculation of the capital ratios at 31
December follows the basis of consolidation for financial reporting
but excludes certain subsidiaries as set out in note 48 to the financial
statements. The investment costs of these subsidiaries are therefore
deducted from capital.

—OO0h —OON
2009 2008
Liquidity ratio 55.0% 51.7%

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity ratio for the year calculated for
the Bank and a subsidiary as specified by the HKMA during the year
in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.



T A BB R R L B AR B R TSR 4R
CRATE (CEAR) BRI Bk 2 ZORT R
F2A G RHEETHEBARR T A=
T HZ AR A LR o BB R R G FR4s Tl
AT Rt ER 2 AR A R o

HBUR A SE < EABEMNT -

The capital ratios in note 1 to the supplementary financial information
represent the consolidated ratio that comprises the positions of the Bank
and subsidiaries for regulatory purposes as at 31 December computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
the basis of consolidation is described in note 48 to the financial
statements.

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:
(a) i BB Z & ACELR (a) Capital charge for credit risk
A4 B DU ME v L FH S BRI 2 E A The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital
BOK o charge for credit risk.
—0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
B 5B R R R A Sovereign exposures 1,465 501
N A L g R A Public sector entity exposures 28,741 35,109
[F] 2 R B 7k bE Bank exposures 928,600 772,211
A 3 JR B A Corporate exposures 3,011,691 2,239,695
H4TEH Cash items 14,943 6,385
28 2 R B A Regulatory retail exposures 148,638 141,992
EEILEH BN Residential mortgage loans 336,754 342,547
A A 2 A R g A A Other exposures which are not past due exposures 370,554 367,909
A ) JE B A A Past due exposures 23,314 16,370
AR AR AR AR I Total capital charge for on-balance
G ARTR sheet exposures 4,864,700 3,923,219
HEGFEAEN Direct credit substitutes 46,658 17,160
5 VE A B 2 s Transaction-related contingencies 1,823 4,734
PH2ETE B A B 2 o F &5 Trade-related contingencies 3,188 3,011
HoAth AR Other commitments 244,670 151,322
A e 4 Exchange rate contracts 3,586 840
H 24 #) Interest rate contracts 2,252 957
JRHEG %) Equity contracts 2,450 1,500
B AR R A AR R A Total capital charge for off-balance
ZHE AR sheet exposures 304,627 179,524
5 B R 2 S E AR ER Total capital charge for credit risk 5,169,327 4,102,743

B A TR Tyl A SR A A B w5 D5 ik
5% 2 JE\ B Ll i BHOR LAB %o wH B - A JE A
EMZHIE EEEAR] -

This disclosure is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted
amount derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the
Group’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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(b) T 5 8\ B 2 & A B R (b) Capital charge for market risk
A B DR ME JiLFHE T 5 A 2 B4 The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital
K o charge for market risk.
—0OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
PR B A YE (BEME)  Interest rate exposures (including options) 21,273 22,489
S LB AR A (BT A ) Equity exposures (including options) 7,653 17,480
471 HEE Ja i 7 A Foreign exchange exposures
(BT & LINHE) (including gold and options) 40,126 8,150
T35 JR by 2 AU AR B SR Capital charge for market risk 69,052 48,119
(c) & ¥ B Z B A B SR (c) Capital charge for operational risk
AL DA S LI B S A 2 The Group uses the basic indicator approach for calculating the capital
BAZR - charge for operational risk.
ZOO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
BT i R
HKS$°000 HK$°000
R R by 2 AU AR TR Capital charge for operational risk 283,199 276,392
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AEMPTAINER R BT > EIUEWHF  The US dollar net position constitutes 10% or more of the total net
AR B 10% A > BILAWEYE  position in all foreign currencies and is reported in Hong Kong dollar

EERZIES I equivalent as follows:
A4
The Group
ZOO0Oh —0OO0ON
2009 2008
BT T oo
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEEE Spot assets 22,096,772 15,113,826
ARk Spot liabilities (15,018,637) (14,717,978)
mE A Forward purchases 4,534,228 2,183,351
i W Forward sales (8,732,325)  (1,580,935)
HIREF A Net option position (19,832) (2,323)
R Net long position 2,860,206 995,941

RSB HEERE S B EMAE S The net option position is calculated based on the model user approach
it TANEERE R | R ATk [#E=0fTH  set out in the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position” issued by the
&I AEHE - HKMA.

AL A SR E g B 0 AR®  The RMB and US dollar net structural positions constitute 10% or
Je o0 B WA R T IR AG IR A5 M E ST 4% more of the total net structural position in all foreign currencies and are
HB10%8 LA > BILLHE S B 4  reported in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:

LU

A

The Group
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008

ol T
HK$°000 HK$’000

AEREME A BT R Net structural position
ESSH US dollar 289,412 273,454
NEY RMB 352,232 328,082

641,644 601,536
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(a) AT W F P B3R

FEF W0 2 Bk

WA
YE 090
ESd -y
B Rl
REER AL
iR IS S
R
T4 gy )% 3 g

B
R4 1 )
E B4
HoAt

fEA

WE [EEAHRE
wE ] TRAAZ
R At B
[H#E B
# T 2R

W E LA A

YK B 3K
fi R
St

B o &

1575 o LA Mt
Z K

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
Property development
Property investment
Financial concerns
Stockbrokers
Wholesale and retail trade
Manufacturing
Transport and transport
equipment
Recreational activities
Information technology
Others

Individuals

Loans for the purchase of
flats in the Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme

Loans for the purchase of
other residential
properties

Credit card advances

Others

Trade finance

Loans for use outside
Hong Kong

192 HKEESRATAH FRA A 0 O JUAFEAEH

—O0Oh
2009

FCA Al
%P
PA:Y 44
% of gross
advances
¥ TIC  covered by
HKS$’°000 collateral
4,524,586 19.5
15,592,270 89.9
1,521,105 14.5
20,000 -
1,996,928 32.6
499,229 59.3
1,066,172 33.6
26,801 50.3
3,031 70.9
3,011,099 62.4
1,546,572 100.0
9,428,580 100.0
422,898 -
1,361,120 93.2
411,467 69.5
41,431,858 74.4
11,378,700 40.7
52,810,558 67.2

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors

—0OO0ON

2008

i
HK$°000

4,133,346
13,185,748
271,809
229
851,923
526,514

1,365,053
20,372

3,084
3,357,481

1,765,912

9,552,132
470,908
1,410,419

622,556

37,537,486

5,830,616

43,368,102

HEAH A
HEFE R
ZHDW
% of gross
advances
covered by
collateral

23.8
93.9
98.5
100.0
88.6
67.8
25.4
82.3

82.4
55.1

100.0

99.8
93.9

62.5

79.9

45.0

75.2



(a) AT B F P B AH ()

HATENBZ EF B3R D& F &K
HEE10%M BRI > HE BMEER
HEMR ~ BT E R R s R L D
W S 2 S8 T

ZOOh&:
TEE W 2 B

TH4m
YIERE
B

S R A R

/R &
TEFHE LLAME
ZHH

—OONE
T 2 Bk

TH4m
YIERE
B

S R A R

/EIR= SN
TEF ¥ LLAME
ZHH

BUE

2009

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
and financial
Property investment
Individuals
Loans for the purchase of
other residential
properties
Loans for use outside
Hong Kong

2008

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
and financial
Property investment
Individuals
Loans for the purchase of
other residential
properties
Loans for use outside
Hong Kong

[BRT:)
ik
Impaired
loans
T T
HK$’000

13,677

5,880

185,365

204,922

4,707

9,537

28,076

42,320

18 53

ok 1

Individual
impairment
allowance
wHT o

HK$’000

12,135

1,063

51,504

64,702

3,982

419

25,118

29,519

AW\%

Tl P e

Collective

impairment
allowance

T

HK$’000

28,676

10,428

35,399

74,503

24,177

8,032

22,581

54,790
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T B A
3 i R 15
EU &8
New
impairment
allowances
charged

to income
statement

BT T
HK$’000

8,876

3,255

62,887

75,018

3,779

65

17,305

21,149

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors (Continued)

The gross amount of impaired loans, impairment allowances, amount of
new impairment allowances charged to income statement and the amount
of impaired loans written off for those industry sectors which constitute
not less than 10% of gross advances to customers is analysed as follows:

e
Tk A B 3k
Z &M
Amount of
impaired
loans
written off
i T
HK$°000

13,578

13,578

1,082

4,371

5,453

193



Tl T R

Supplementary Financial Information

M)W BZHEFREK - YR (b) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers, overdue
wK o~ EUAE Bk B el A e advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances

DI BB ZEF &3 @M E  The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
O CIRE BB EERERIESC S overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances is based
B F2Z BT AE AR 4 > WE % S A on the location of the counterparty, after taking into account the transfer

B B Ja B i R o of risk in respect of such advances where appropriate.
T e A
Individual o
Eiﬁ%%ﬁ impairmeﬂt allowance iﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ

Gross iM% CWMEED  BHEX CHEAESER  Collective
advances to Overdue  Impaired Overdue  Impaired impairment
customers advances loans advances loans  allowance
BT ¥ fr %t wWTr B%Tx BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

ZOOh# 2009

Hils Hong Kong 45,300,501 1,127,138 99,519 24,255 75,041 105,627

Hith Others 7,510,057 187,669 170,689 37,775 37,775 20,649
52,810,558 1,314,807 270,208 62,030 112,816 126,276

ZOON% 2008

& Hong Kong 39,440,052 1,328,541 81,233 37,695 41,415 108,592

Hit Others 3,928,050 2,762 1,249 1,249 1,249 8,434

43,368,102 1,331,303 82,482 38,944 42,664 117,026
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(c) BME R HIR

A K E] LLAIN 32 T T B #R S R 2
FRAE > J AR 35 22 5 3 F 4% A o i B% 1%
iz I 1A BB R R o
Wre#m—MZxHBTF2HREEHRS M@
TEARTR] B R 0 N A AR 7l R 3
R — T ER AT 2 AN A AT - T AR 2
LA — A1 AS [ f (B 2% > JaL g 1 e 5 2 1
— I B R AL B ) — R B R o %5 I
o 5 bk 7 AL R AR A 10%BK DA >
HIERAF

(¢) Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer
of risk. The transfer of risk from one country to another is recognised
if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in
a different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Those areas which
contribute 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are as
follows:

KB N

Public
T sector Hfiby L)
Banks entities Others Total

Wi Ton W% T W% Ton BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

ZOOhH 2009
51K [ Asia Pacific excluding

(LG Hong Kong 22,092,970 1,427,381 7,096,612 30,616,963
b3 K= North and South America 2,192,501 30,845 3,303,273 5,526,619
el Europe 19,372,430 19,486 1,037,413 20,429,329
ZOONH 2008
51K [ Asia Pacific excluding

(RNELHEAF ) Hong Kong 19,662,960 91,997 3,125,949 22,880,906
b3 K= North and South America 3,538,507 395,172 1,632,923 5,566,602
el Europe 20,337,435 = 76,123 20,413,558

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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(a) Bk (a) Overdue advances
REEZ K F @ ERINT The Group’s overdue advances to customers are analysed as follows:
—OO0Oh —OON
2009 2008
&P % F
Bk A B
ZHSW ZHEI
% of total % of total
WWTIC  advances to T L advances to
HK$°000 customers HK$’000 customers
Gross amount of advances
B AR Homi - which have been overdue for:
— =AM LEE — Six months or less,
~E A but over three months 14,541 0.03 11,570 0.03
— One year or less,
— NAAL EE—4E but over six months 90,676 0.17 9,656 0.02
— —4EDE — Over one year 25,496 0.05 24,144 0.06
130,713 0.25 45,370 0.11
A A5 2 g 1A Bk Secured overdue advances 100,976 17,964
4HE I 4 2 i W R R Unsecured overdue advances 29,737 27,406
130,713 45,370
Market value of collateral
AR 2 m i B held against the secured
Fr e 2 A5 T (E overdue advances 117,029 25,728
Individual impairment
L 435 {181 7] Uk (1 VAR allowances made 26,507 24,659

HR_OONFE+_H=+—H>R2ZE At 31 December 2009, there were no advances to banks which were
Al e ) = H A E (O O/\  overdue for over three months (2008: Nil).
A HE) o
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(b) il 36 1) %
AL 2 HA s I & E R

oA Y A
Hoglh -
—=AULERE

AR A
—ANEAULERE
=i

-~k

(c) E A %

AL 2 A ALK (B e 1
= A Sl AE Al (a) SH A 5 B 2 ) 4y

BT

R F HE

MR_OONFET_H=1T—H>F*EE At 31 December 2009, there were no rescheduled advances to banks
AP AR E A 2 B (20 O /A -

fiE) -

(b) Other overdue assets

Gross amount of other assets

which have been overdue for:

— Six months or less,

but over three months
— One year or less,

but over six months
— Over one year

ZO00Oh
2009

HipRE B
Other Accrued
accounts interest
BT B%Tx
HKS$°000 HK$’000
- 2,592

- 9,563

97,755 6,469
97,755 18,624

(c¢) Rescheduled advances

Rescheduled advances
to customers

HAhHRIA

Other
accounts
i T
HKS$’000

109,441

109,441

The Group’s other overdue assets are analysed as follows:

—0O0ON
2008
[FE 3%
Trade
bills
T
HK$’000

421

421

JRE A 15
Accrued
interest

T T
HK$°000

72

39
4,707

4,818

The Group’s rescheduled advances (net of those which have been
overdue for over three months and reported in item (a) above) are as
follows:

(2008: Nil).

—O0Oh
2009
&R
Bk 88
ZHAGl
% of total

W TIJC  advances to
HK$°000 customers
106,843 0.20

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited

—~OO0ON
2008
(-5
B
ZHETW
% of total

T IC  advances to
HK$’000 customers
83,829 0.19
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*E%T%(@ﬁ T (BER) BLAD > BT IR

SRAT 2 55 3 T 19 o A BR AR A5 R B
ﬁ*ﬁ]ﬁ%ﬁ!ﬁéﬁ%‘ il B SR A TR S 3R T
B 2 A U K e R B 2 B LA o
B o PR AERT MAAT B i S AT B
B 2 RA5 AR A -

ZOOhE 2009
A A A Mainland entities

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories
of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures defined by
the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference to the
HKMA return for non-bank Mainland exposures, these include exposures
extended by the Bank and its overseas branches only.

BEAME BEEAME

PNz PAbz A8 31 kAL

JoRL B 7 JoRL B 7 i
On-balance Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet AR FE#  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance

BT T T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

8,109,587 1,645,120 9,754,707 —

Companies and individuals

e E AT DNENEI DN E (PN outside Mainland where the

Pt sz B credit is granted for use
AR O B A in Mainland 4,475,079 1,953,894 6,428,973 6,078
Other counterparties where the
HoAth 52 5y 34 T i 48 exposure is considered by the
AATER BB N Bank to be non-bank
FESRAT R\ Mainland exposure 78,426 - 78,426 =
Gt Total 12,663,092 3,599,014 16,262,106 6,078
HEABR HEAMK
Nz PASh 2 {ERZIRE RN
JE\ B JE\ Bz A Heffg
On-balance  Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet HEPFEA  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance
T BT BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—OON4 2008
N Mainland entities 4,360,669 331,369 4,692,038 -
Companies and individuals
I B A A ) B AN outside Mainland where the
Pt s 2 Bk credit is granted for use
RO I A in Mainland 1,709,150 322,530 2,031,680 4,839
Other counterparties where the
HAth 32 5 34 T M exposure is considered by the
AATRR L2 B A Bank to be non-bank
FFERAT JE By Mainland exposure 21,407 = 21,407 =
Gl Total 6,091,226 653,899 6,745,125 4,839

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



(a) 15 B B
(i) 17 B Ja B R 1

AR oA R I A AR R
IR K HRE T AR S S AL
> Dhat B (5 SR BRI o ARl
CRRATSE CEAR) LA 26504 3R 43 Pr it 2
R LABC 3 SR A5 A A 4 RO BT
A% AN BT AR T AT A B A A £ T A B
WATHRAN Z TR R o

—OOh4#
L
Ja bR 1 23 Class of exposure
BEARELA On-balance sheet
HHEE Sovereign
R Public sector entity
SERERT Multilateral development bank
ignTES Bank
¥ Corporate
HamH Cash items
HESE Regulatory retail
frEmER Residential mortgage loan
Other exposures which are
Ht Rk 1 not past due exposures
i 1 o Past due exposures
BEAREDI Off-balance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
B AR R RYE other than OTC derivative
MTE TR HEEE  transactions or credit derivative
it THA BRI contracts
BOMETRRS OTC derivative transactions
AR BB R & 1 Exposures deducted from capital base

(a) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
Fitch Ratings are the External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAIs”)
that the Group has used in relation to the credit risk exposures below.
The process it used to map ECAI issuer ratings or ECAI issue specific
ratings to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as
prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.

2009
The Group

CHE#z

R &

it TR

GEILRT

¥4 vsid

CHER Total
Z AL exposure
WiEHZ  covered by

Eﬁﬁﬁ«’%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁwﬁ JiBASE  recognised

(iedil i3 ) . JAKE B Total  guarantees

g Pposuresafer ecognised W{m LELH SHUH  exposure or recognised
ki credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk-  covered by credit

Total G w4 o4 A% weighted recognised  derivative
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts  collateral contracts
T EWFx #RTx #WTx #%Tx #WTx #WTx #%Tx
HK$°000  HKS°000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HKS$°000  HKS$°000 HKS$°000

902,063 7,215,145 - 18317 - 18317 - -
24606 250,048 1546243 50010 309248 359,258 - -
000 42,020 - - - - -

46,886,009 41,493,665 2,860,589 10,708,873 898,622 11,607,495 - 5948261

4497792 6873597 33045714 4600424 33045714  3T646,138 805,820 7,545255

473,186 - 1,328,693 - 186789 186,789 - -
2,490,232 - 24779 - 189! 1857972 4271 8,665
12,624,171 - 11,052,486 ~ 4209419 4209419 - 1571685

4,677,338 129,962 4,501,959 129,962 4,501,959 4,631,921 45,417 -
217,984 - 217,984 - 291,419 291,419 55,477 2,556

4169024 818,568 3350456 500874 3203368 3704242 102,493 589,224
/077 207534 43238 60363 43238 103,601 - -

17455197 57,030,539 60,424,658 16,068,823 48,547,748 64616571 1013478 15,665,646

798,049
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8 b P (4)

(a) fr BB (41)

(i) 15 B R R IE ()

8 Risk management (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

ZOONH 2008
A4 H The Group
LR
ERaEE
it TR
AHTARS
bail u3 ]
B Total
AR exposure
BRI SRR M2 covered by
%2 Bkl Ja Rk o recognised
. Exposures after recognised JAR I E R Rt E Total  guarantees
flill credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts EHAW exposure  or recognised
i Total risk-  covered by credit
Total [ ELEE B WP weighted  recognised derivative
[ Class of exposure exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts  collateral contracts
BT BETT R E¥TT EETr E%Tr BETx T
HK$°000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000 HK$°000
BEAREIN On-balance sheet
HhES Sovereign 541,655 649,033 = 6,64 = 6,64 = =
US43 Public sector entity 383,632 418969 1,764,486 85969 352,897 438,866 = =
BT Bank 44152,804 43780545 419498 9465202 187421 9,652,643 = 373,359
%3 Corporate 29634175 4198,000 25,092,765 2903419 25,092,765 27,996,184 188,882 1,839,999
HEHH Cash items 497,383 - 43380 = 86,057 86,057 = =
HERE Regulatory retail 2,374,523 - 2366539 — 1774905 1,774,905 7,984 =
EEYERK Residential mortgage loan 12,937,848 - 11,138,025 - 4281836 4,281,836 S 1,799,823
Other exposures which are
piRiFSan v not past due exposures 4,647,989 74934 4523925 74934 4503925 4598859 49,131 =
R R Past due exposures 150,855 — 150,855 — 204,626 204,626 25419 3,544
BEAREUID Off-balance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
B B BRI BR other than OTC derivative
(oM TR S Bifs & transactions or credit derivative
fitE THA#BRIH) contracts 2,418,901 352,093 2,066,808 209,171 1,993,662 2,202,833 31,523 224728
BOME TR OTC derivative transactions 69,377 39,587 29,790 11,423 29,790 41213 = S
97809232 49,513,161  48296,071 12,756,402 38,527,884 51284286 302,939 4241453
AN bR R b RAE Exposures deducted from capital base 814,292

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR



(a) {5 SABE (%) (a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) X 81 F 2 (5 BIm iR I

(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures

AEEBGIMTAE LR G EEZ T The following table summarises the Group’s main credit exposures
G EE ARSI arising from OTC derivative transactions:

A H The Group
—0OO0Oh —OOoON
2009 2008
T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000

oM LRZEGE 4 OTC derivative

NS (H 4B EE Gross total positive fair value 112,204 37,082
BB Credit equivalent amount 250,772 69,377
JE g Eb 4 E Risk weighted amounts 103,601 41,213

5 B 45 B AR MR B R 3 2 gt

The breakdown of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit exposures,

TNHESEE Z Ayt F - and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as follow:
A H The Group
—O0Oh — 00N
2009 2008
W T T I0
HK$°000 HK$°000
VA kI Notional amounts:
RAT Banks 12,204,188 3,824,770
12 Corporates 1,824,669 1,003,092
HAth Others 932,221 506,626
14,961,078 5,334,488
fFEME S Credit equivalent amounts:
AT Banks 186,500 39,587
12 Corporates 43,849 4,700
HAth Others 20,423 25,090
250,772 69,377
JEVB: b A Risk-weighted amounts:
RAT Banks 49,845 11,423
12 Corporates 33,333 4,700
HAth Others 20,423 25,090
103,601 41,213
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(a) fr BB (48)
(i) X5 81 F 2 (5 B BRI (4H)

AERROONFE+_H=+—HK
ZOONEFET A=t — Y EEES
B THEHAH -

ALEFIARGE CRATE (BA) A £/
W R IE R R & AL 5 B F 1)
JE BRI o AN SR B A TR0 T % T A HE
TR WA 5L Ty 3 2 AR BURSEAAR
HH 2 38 LA RS A SR A T AE 2 JL B R
¥ o

AEEB L 5B F 2 IGMIETRGH
2 BB R A P BOA BRAEE o PR B TR
RKFIRE R BN B PR OB AT
BEERERA -

(b) & g 71k

AL F G R GBS L) Tk DLETE
e 7 AL R B R 38 2 A5 8B o A 42 [
AL B A U 0 SR o A o

A AR ) fo ) A AR B~ AR A
B MR 5 S BT AR A SN AR AT A A
> LIS RS IR AL 2 Ja Bk IfE

ZOOhE
A4
2 A ) B i e 4 Securitisation exposures
LSl Traditional securitisations
BRI G Securitised investments
A HER Synthetic securitisations
SR Financial
¥ Corporate

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, there are no credit derivative contracts
in the Group.

The Group currently uses the current exposure method for purpose of
providing capital for counterparty exposures in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. Internally, the Group measures counterparty
credit exposure using the marked-to-market exposure with appropriate
add-on for future potential exposures.

The Group has internal limit for counterparty exposure with respect
to OTC derivative contracts. When the limit is reached, the senior
management will take appropriate action including reduction of the
position.

(b) Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate
the credit risk for securitisation exposures. It is an investing institution
for all classes of exposures below.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
Fitch Ratings are the ECAIs that the Group has used in relation to the
securitisation exposures below.

2009
The Group
100 o 4
Exposures deducted from its
B BB ML B BABE BOEA Fit 5 A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core Supplementary
amounts amount requirements capital capital
T T BT T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
1 1 - - -
1 1 = - -
28 - - 14 14
97 = = 48 49
125 - - 62 63



8 b P (4)

(b) B &b (4)

8 Risk management (Continued)

(b) Asset securitisation (Continued)

—OON4 2008
A H The Group
19 PR
Exposures deducted from its
R AR ESH EARE BLER it A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core  Supplementary
7R B B Securitisation exposures amounts amount  requirements capital capital
T T T T T T
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
(St eidle Traditional securitisations
HHEIBE Securitised investments 3 3 - _ _
G Financial 1 1 = = =
ZHEER Student loan 1 1 = = =
5 5 - - -
A HER Synthetic securitisations
64 Financial 265 28 2 63 63
3% Corporate 825 88 7 193 193
1,090 116 9 256 256

Annual Report 2009 Wing Lung Bank Limited
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() T SRAT IR H Py A Jie A Dl i % ¥

S R RE B B 15 A A [ B 5 )
FIEATRIEYE S 1 > LA T Z R 12
TR A AR ] 2 SES AT 2 S E o HAb L
LRy BEA R 2 B RTREA

T SRAT Bz B 1A B FBCARE gt 7 5 B A DA
SN 58 o A RR A HAR A
EAESIIN o o V-8 (B 58 B P /2 A 2 R 3
B8 g B 75 At 22 T 0 o 7 R I 8 ST R
AR HE SR 2 AN BLE AN - HE SR
L TR MR TE P S B (E o R R AR E
fiti 5% B Ak 1A 2 I e R 2 B WHIE i
T Wit i 3% N RERR.

e by 2 B > HAFEE
TIPTS5 2 AR o JF b i A
a6 7l R A T BT S AR R A o
B (6 DA A 0 R AT 52 5 B8 HL At 28 1 S T 5
2B 2 ARG -

(c¢) Equity exposures in banking book

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a strategic
cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging the respective
strengths to enhance the Group’s business are classified by the Group as
strategic investments. Other equity investments are held for capital gain
purposes.

Equity exposures in the banking book are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve, until the equity exposure
is derecognised or impaired. At this time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is recognised
in the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. For unquoted equity holdings with no active market,
the Group establishes fair value by the use of recent arm’s length
transactions or other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.

AR The Group
—OO0Oh —OO0ON
2009 2008
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
G W EAE 2 BB Realised gains from sales/
i Hepite s e 12,891 3,236
oA 568 B E Ak A 4 Unrealised revaluation gain
R NENIEHY Amount included in reserves but not through
i A 2 [t it AR income statement 99,371 37,197
AL G TE B 0 EAS R 2 AR Amount included in supplementary capital 45,256 17,461

AKBESRATAH AR — 0 O JUFEAEHR
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(d) Interest rate exposures in banking book

The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposures on a monthly basis
by assessing the impact on earnings in banking book due to parallel

movements of 200 basis points upward in all yield curves.

2009
The Group

7
HKS$
BT
HK$000
Interest rate risk
(200 basis points upward)
— Increase/(decrease) in earnings 164,358
2008
The Group
ESH
HKS$
BT
HK$000
Interest rate risk
(200 basis points upward)
— Increase/(decrease) in earnings 159,482

e
Us$
T
HK$’000

18,982

Xt
US$
R
HK$°000

(3,766)

The impact on earnings of the Group is calculated by assuming that the
changes in interest rates last for a period of 12 months and all positions
are repriced at the mid-point of each time band.

B
Currency
W Atc HA ait
AS NZ$ Others Total
EWTFr  wWTx  BWTx  BWTx
HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$’000  HKS$’000
(8,727) (2,534) 392 172,471
B
Currency
Lo At HAth GEil
A$ NZ$ Others Total
BT BT BTt E%T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
1,812 2,334 (4,636) 155,226
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“BANKWILUNG” Hong Kong
WUBAHKHH

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Cable Address: “BANKWILUNG” Hong Kong
SWIFT Address: WUBAHKHH

Telephone: (852) 2826 8333

Telex: HX73360

Telefax: (852) 2810 0592

BT E A : wib@winglungbank.com

B % B AR A% A ¢ http://www.winglungbank.com
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Email: wib@winglungbank.com

Hong Kong Island

North Point
Central District
Western District
Happy Valley
Causeway Bay
Wan Chai

Quarry Bay
Convention Plaza
Percival Street
Aberdeen
Johnston Road
Kennedy Town
Sai Wan Ho

Des Voeux Road West

Kowloon

Lai Chi Kok Road
Sham Shui Po
San Po Kong
Mongkok

Kwun Tong

Tsim Sha Tsui

To Kwa Wan

Tsz Wan Shan
Jordan

Kowloon Bay
Nam Cheong Street
Hunghom

Lam Tin Sceneway Plaza

China Hong Kong City
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

Internet: http://www.winglungbank.com

361 King’s Road

112 Queen’s Road Central
262 Queen’s Road West
44 King Kwong Street

45 Jardine’s Bazaar

383 Hennessy Road

1A Westlands Road

1 Harbour Road

62 Percival Street

201 Aberdeen Main Road
118 Johnston Road

28 Catchick Street

123 Shaukeiwan Road
347 Des Voeux Road West

17 Lai Chi Kok Road

111 Tai Po Road

8 Shung Ling Street

Bank Centre, 636 Nathan Road
339 Ngau Tau Kok Road

4 Carnarvon Road

64 To Kwa Wan Road

25 Fung Tak Road

123 Woo Sung Street

19 Lam Lok Street

85 Nam Cheong Street

28 Wuhu Street

8 Sceneway Road

Shop 7, G/F, China Hong Kong City
Shop N94, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall

55 Telephone

2571 2211
2544 7011
2546 6211
2573 8395
2890 9753
2891 7371
2565 0080
2802 4822
2881 6028
2552 7688
2834 0208
2816 0028
2513 1771
2857 6068

2380 2281
2720 4135
2325 0271
2710 4188
2342 2117
2369 9255
2363 6237
2327 0208
2770 7117
2753 8328
2728 3993
2333 6088
2727 6200
2314 0233
2370 9933
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New Territories

Tsuen Wan 251 Sha Tsui Road

Sha Tin 8 Tai Wai Road

Yuen Long 37 On Ning Road

Kwai Chung 128 Wo Yi Hop Road

Tuen Mun 42 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
Sheung Shui 128 San Fung Avenue

Tai Po 1 On Chee Road

Fanling 15 Luen Hing Street

Shatin Plaza 21 Shatin Centre Street

Shenzhen Branch

Room A-C, 16/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre
4003 Shennan Road East, Luohu District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Nanshan Sub-branch

Shops 105-106, Garden City Phase I
Nanhai Road, Shekou, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shanghai Branch

Units 1008-1009, 10/F, Bank of Shanghai Mansion
168 Yin Cheng Middle Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

Guangzhou

Room 1302, Guangzhou Peace World Plaza
362-366 Huan Shi Dong Road

Guangzhou, PRC

Los Angeles
201 East Valley Boulevard
Alhambra, California 91801, USA

Cayman Islands

P. O. Box 1034 GT
Harbour Place, 4th Floor
103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

56 Telephone

2493 4161
2697 6202
2479 0181
2428 4211
2459 7061
2670 1298
2663 2277
2677 7888
2606 1783

55 Telephone

(86 755) 2598 2298

(86 755) 2689 2609

(86 21) 6859 7018

55 Telephone

(86 20) 8384 8027

55 Telephone

(626) 656-8118

(345) 949-8455
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Wingspan Incorporated
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Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited
Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited

Wing Lung Finance Limited

Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited
Wing Lung Credit Limited

Wing Lung Agency Limited

Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited
Wing Lung Securities Limited

Wing Lung Futures Limited

Hongnet Limited

Sea Wing Investments Limited

Wing Lung Property Management Limited
Wingspan Incorporated

Wing Lung Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
Wing Lung Capital Limited
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WING LUNG BANK
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45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
wlb@winglungbank.com
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